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BeepeHue

YyebHbIlh npouecc B Y3b6ekucTaHe H6bICTpO pa3BMBaeTcA, B OCHOBHOM yAapeHue
CTAaBUTCA Ha WM3y4YeHWEe WMHOCTPaHHbLIX A3bIKOB. B y4yebHbIX 3aBeAeHMAX CTpaHbl
N3y4atoTCA aHIIMUCKUN, HEMELKUN, GPaHLYy3CKUN M Ap. A3bIKW. [na nsydyeHua
MHOCTPAHHbIX A3bIKOB NYybAMKYHOTCA afanTUMPOBAHHbIE PaCcCKasbl W3BECTHbIX
nucaTtenemn.

3T0 y4yebHO-meTOAMYECKOe nocobue 06palleHO Ha YCOBEPLUEHCTBOBAHMIO
NEeKCUKO-TPpamMMaTUYECKOro C/I0BAPHOrO0 COCTaBa pPacckas3oB. [laHHbIM cOOpHUK
aflaNnTMPOBAHHbIX PACCKA30B AHIMMUCKMX WU aMepPUKAHCKMX nucaTenen moxkeT
6bITb MCNONb30BaH ANA PAa3BUTMA HABbIKOB YTEHMA, Pa3roBopa W ayaupoBaHMUA
ana  yydawmxcs KypcoB aHrAMIMCKOro s3blka. Pacckasbl pa3Hoo6pasHbl no
TEMATMKE, A3bIKY M CTUAO, MNPEeACTAaBAAOT COOO0M WHTEPECHbIN CHOXKETHbIN
MaTepuan, AatoT BO3MOXKHOCTb BbINTM Ha obCyKaeHUe NpobaemHbIX BOMNPOCOB,
Nerko nogaarTca nepeckasy.

MepBasa YacTb COOPHUKA COCTOUT U3 ABYX Pa3ae/oB:

TekcTbl MepBoro pasgena nmeroT Hebobwon 06bem. ITO AaeT BO3MOXKHOCTb
npopaboTaTb JSIEKCUYECKUI MaTepunan, OTBETUTb Ha MNOCTaB/IEHHble BOMPOCHI W
NPUHATb Ha yyacTue B AMCKyccum 6e3 6onblioi 3aTtpaTbl yyebHOro BpemeHw.
Hebonbwon o06bem TEKCTOB MO3BOMAET MCMNO/b30BaTb 3TM TEKCTbl AaA
ayAMpoBaHUA U MU3NOXKEHWUN. Bce TeKcTbl MepBoi YacTn CHabXeHbl cneumanbHo
pa3paboTaHHbIMU YNParKHEHUAMMW.

Pacckasbl Broporo pasaena cogepykaTt 60/siee CNOXKHbI A3bIKOBOW MaTepuan u
npeAHa3sHavyalTca  ANA  CaMOCTOATE/IbHOTO  YTeHMA € Nocineaylowmx
obcykaeHMem. ITW  pacckasbl Bbl MoXeTe TaKKe WCMNoNb30BaTb  ANf
CaMOCTOATENIbHOIO YTeHUA.

CoctaBunu: H.A6bacoBa, npenogasaTtenb aHITMNCKOro A3blKa.

PeueH3eHT: [l.NaHMEBA, KaHAMAAT PUNOIOTUYECKUX HAYK.
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Unit 1
THE SCHOLARSHIP fiom “Green Years” by A. J. Cronin

... Robert Shannon will be able to continue his studies only if he gets the
scholarship founded by Sir John Marshall, but his best friend Gavin becomes his rival.

It was the first day of the Easter Holidays. | was going fishing with Gavin. The last pleasure |
allowed myself before beginning to prepare for the Marshall.

We met early in the morning. Gavin was waiting for me. Impossible to describe the silent joy of
our meeting... We walked side by side through the quiet village to the lake.

“No fishing until evening, | am afraid”, Gavin murmured. “No wind and the day is too bright”.

Until the sun went down, Gavin and | sat on an upturned boat, outside his father's fishing hut. We
spoke very little. At seven o'clock, after Mrs. Glen, the woman of the cottage had given us some tea and
boiled eggs and milk, we pushed the boat into the water. | took the oars. When we were far from the
shore, Gavin spoke, hidden by the growing darkness.

“I understand you are sitting the Marshall, Robie?”

| was greatly surprised. “Yes... How did you know?”

“Mrs. Keith told my sister”, Gavin paused, breathing heavily. “l am trying for it too”.
| looked at him in silence. | was shocked and confused.

“But Gavin... You do not need the money!”

Gavin frowned. "You'll be surprised." He spoke slowly. "My father has had trouble in the
business". He paused. "He has done so much for me... now then he is worried, | would like to do
something for him."

| was silent. | knew that Gavin adored his father; and | had heard whispers that all was not well
with the Mayor's business. Yet his words came as an unexpected blow.

"All the cleverest boys in the country are competing," he continued. "One more won't make much
difference. Besides there is the honour of the town. It is twelve years since a Levenford boy took the
scholarship." He drew a deep breath. “One of us must win it”.

“You may be the one, Gavin”, | said in a low voice; | knew he was a fine scholar.

Gavin replied slowly. “I would like to win for my father’s sake. But | think you have
a better chance”. He paused. “If you win, will you go on to be a doctor?”

Gavin was the only person on earth to whom | could tell the truth. | said: “I wish with all my heart
to be a medical biologist, you know, a doctor who does research”. There was a long pause.

“Yes”, Gavin said thoughtfully. “It is bad that we have to fight each other over the scholarship.
But, it will not affect our friendship, of course”.

Yet | felt a sudden sadness in my heart. | thought: “Gavin and I... One of us must be defeated”.



NOTES:

rival — KOHKypeHT

scholarship — ctunenaus

Easter Holidays — nacxanbHble KaHUKY/bI
oars —Bec/a

to sit the Marshall — cpaBaTb 3K3ameHbl Ha CTUMNEHAMIO
Mapwanna

Exerciges and Aggignments on the
Text

Yopaxnenus u 3agaHus K Tekcry

Assignment # One — 3aoanue No 1

Haiioume 6 mexcme aHenulickue 35K6UBANEHMbl CIeOVIOWUX ClO8, BbIPANCEHUN U
000pomos:

mMmon4yanmean pagocCtb — ;

wan pagom — ;

nepeBepHyTas 04Ka — ;

CTONKHYU B BOAY — ;

TAXeno Aplia — ;

oboxan otua — ;

A0 MeHA AoWnn Chyxm — ;

1
2
3
4
5. cAaBaTb 3K3aMeH Ha ... — ;
6
7
8
9

rny6oKo B3L,0XHYN — ;

10. NpeKpacHbI yYEHUK — ;

11. eQMHCTBEHHDINM Ha cBeTe — ;

12. 3To He NoMeLlaeT Hallen apyxbe -

Assignment # Two — 3aoanue Ne 2

Hatime pycckue dK8uU8aieHmMbl C1e0VIOWUX CILO8, 8bIPANCEHUN U 0O0POMO8 U3 MmeKcma,
Cocmasbme no mpu npeoioHCeHUs ¢ KAHCObIM UX IMUX 000POMO8:



to prepare for smth. —

to be greatly surprised —

in silence —

to be confused —

to compete in smth. —

for smb’s sake —

to do research —

to be defeated —

Assignment # Three — 3adanue Ne 3



Omeemvme Ha cnedyroujue 60NPoCyHl:

1) Who was Robie?

Robie was

2) What did he want to become?

Robie wanted to become a

3) Why couldn't he study without the scholarship?

4) What shows, that he was seriously preparing for the exams?

5) What did Gavin tell Robie about?

6) Why was the boy shocked and confused?

7) What was the reason for Gavin's sitting the Marshall?

8) Which words prove the generosity of both boys?

Assignment # Four — 3aoanue No 4

Ilepeckasicume paccxas om quya. 1) Pooou, 2) I'seuna.

Assignment # Five — 3a0anue Ne 5

Hatioume 6 mexcme 6ce Inazonvl HenpasuivbHo2o cnpsdiceHus u 3anoiHume mabauyy,
oasas ux opmel. Ileped evinonnenuem Ynpasxxcuenuti 5 u 6 Bam neobxooumo
o3Hakomumuvcs ¢ napacpagpamu 48, 49, 50 u 51 5 Inaswvr «Inacony 1 Yacmu «Hacmu
Peuu 6 Anenutickom szvike» Ilepgoco moma Eounoco I pammamuyeckoeo Komniexca.
Bcio neobxooumyro Bam cnpagounyro unghopmayuro Ber mooiceme natimu 6o Bmopom
mome 6 Ilpunosxcenusx «Tabruya Bpemen Axmusnoco u Ilaccusnozo 3an02o06x.
IIposepums ynompebnenue ¢hopm npuvacmuii 1 u 2 (Participles 1 & 2) (smopas,
mpemvsi U uemeepmas opmul 2nazonos) modxcho no Tabauyam  “Cnpsocenue
Henpasunvnoix enaconos». Obpawairo éHumanue Ha mo, 4mo mabdauy 0ee: 8 0OHOU
0aemcsi CNUCOK HeNpAasuiibHulX 21a20108 8 AlPAGUMHOM HOPSOKe — ee sI PeKOMEHOYI0
NPUMEHAMb OJis1 OLICMPO2O NOUCKA He0OXO00UMO20 Cl08d, 80 6MOPOL 21A20/bl 0AHbl NO



munam obpazoeanusi Gopmvl — HA dmy MaodIUYY He0OXO0OUMO OPUEHMUPOBAMbCS NPU
3ayuuUBaHUuU HAU3yCmbv:

Assignment # SiX — 3aoanue Ne 6

Haiioume 6 mexcme ece Ilpeonoscenus 6 Hacmoswem u Ipoweowem Ilpodonsicernnvix
spemenax. Ileped evinonnenuem Ynpaosicnenuss Bam Heobxooumo osHakomumscs ¢
napaepagamu 52, 53, 54 u 55 «Bmopas epynna Bpemen — Continuous Tensesy 5 I naswi
«lnacony 1 Yacmu «Hacmu Peuu 6 Awnenutickom szvike» Ilepsoco moma Eounoco
I'pammamuyeckozco komniexca. Bcro Heobxooumyto Bam cnpasounyro ungopmayuro Bei
Modceme Haumu 60 Bmopom mome 6 [lpunooscenusx «Tabruya Bpemen Axmugnozo u

Ilaccusnoeo 3a10206.



Assignment # Seven — 3adanue Ne 7

3aoatime sonpocwl K C108aM, 8bl0€NEHHLIM NOOYEPKHYMbIM HAKIOHHLIM WPUDMOM:

1) | was going fishing with Gavin.

2) We met early in the morning.

3) We walked side by side through the quiet village to the lake.

4) My father has had trouble in the business.

Assignment # Eight — 3aoanue Ne 8

Haiioume 6 mexcme s6ce npeonoocenus, cooepacawue Ilpsmyro peus (Direct Speech) u
nepeoenraume ux 6 Koceennyio peun (Indirect Speech). [Ilepeo ewvinonnenuem
Ynpaosicnenus Bam neobxooumo oznakomumucs ¢ napazpagamu 69, 70 u 71 «llpsamasn u
Koceennas peuvy 5 Inasvr «lnazony 1 Yacmu «Yacmu Peuu 6 Anenuuickom s3vikey
Ilepeoco moma Eounoeo [ pammamuueckoeo xomniexca. Bcio neobxooumyro Bawm
cnpagounyro ungopmayuro Bol mosiceme natimu 6o Bmopom mome 6 Ilpunoswcenusx.
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Unit 2
A DOG AND THREE DOLLARS by M. Twain

| have always believed that a man must be honest. "Never ask for money you have not earned", |
always said.

Now | shall tell you a story which will show you how honest | have always been all my life.

A few days ago at my friend's house | met General Miles. General Miles was a nice man and we
became great friends very quickly.

"Did you live in Washington in 1867?" the general asked me.
"Yes, | did," | answered.
"How could it happen that we did not meet then?" said General Miles.

"General", said |. "We could not meet then. You forget that you were already a great general
then, and | was a poor young writer whom nobody knew and whose books nobody read. You do not
remember me, | thought, but we met once in Washington at that time."

| remember it very well. | was poor then and very often | did not have money even for my bread. |
had a friend. He was a poor writer too. We lived together. We did everything together: worked, read
books, went for walks together. And when we were hungry, we were both hungry. Once we were in
need of three dollars. | don't remember why we needed these three dollars so much, but | remember
well that we had to have the money by the evening.

"We must get these three dollars," said my friend. "I shall try to get the money, but you must also

try.

| went out of the house, but | did not know where to go and how to get the three dollars. For an
hour | was walking along the streets of Washington and was very tired. At last | came to a big hotel. "I
shall go in and have a rest," | thought.

| went into the hall of the hotel and sat down on a sofa. | was sitting there when a beautiful small
dog ran into the hall. It was looking for somebody. The dog was nice and | had nothing to do, so | called
it and began to play with it.

| was playing with the dog, when a man came into the hall. He wore a beautiful uniform and |
knew at once that he was General Miles. | knew him by his pictures in the newspapers. "What a
beautiful dog!" said he. "Is it your dog?"

| did not have time to answer him when he said, "Do you want to sell it?"

"Three dollars", | answered at once.

"Three dollars?" he asked. "But that is very little. | can give you fifty dollars for it."
"No, no. | only want three dollars."

"Well, it is your dog. If you want three dollars for it, | shall be glad to buy your dog."
General Miles paid me three dollars, took the dog and went up to his room.

Ten minutes later an old man came into the hall. He looked round the hall. | could see that he was
looking for something.

11



"Are you looking for a dog, sir?" | asked.
"Oh, yes! Have you seen it?" said the man.

"Your dog was here a few minutes ago and | saw how it went away with a man," | said. "If you
want, | shall try to find it for you."

The man was very happy and asked me to help him.

"I'shall be glad to help you, but it will take some of my time and..."

"I am ready to pay you for your time," cried the man. "How much do you want for it?"
"Three dollars," answered I.

"Three dollars?" said the man. "But it is a very good dog. | shall pay you ten dollars if you find it for

me.
"No sir, | want three dollars and not a dollar more," said I.

Then | went up to General Miles's room. The General was playing with his new dog." | came here
to take the dog back", said I.

"But it is not your dog now — | have bought it. | have paid you three dollars for it," said the
General.

"I shall give you back your three dollars, but | must take the dog back", answered I. "But you have
sold it to me, it is my dog now."

"I could not sell it to you, sir, because it was not my dog."

"Still you have sold it to me for three dollars." "How could | sell it to you when it was not my dog?
You asked me how much | wanted for the dog, and | said that | wanted three dollars. But | never told
you that it was my dog."

General Miles was very angry now.
"Give me back my three dollars and take the

dog," he shouted. When | brought the dog back to its master, he was very happy and paid me
three dollars with joy. | was happy too because | had the money, and | felt | earned it.

Now you can see why | say that honesty is the best policy and that a man must never take
anything that he has not earned.

Exercises and Agsighments on the
Text

YopaxHeHus u 3agaHusa K Tekcry

Assignment # One — 3adanue Ne 1

Haiioume 6 mekcme amnenuiickue 9K6UBANEHMbL CLeOVIOUUX CLO6, BbIPANCEHU U
060pomos:
12



MHe 6bl10 Heyem 3aHATbCA — ;

cpasy goragaTbcs — ;

1. OblTb YeCTHbIM — ;

2. NPUATHLIN YenoBeK — ;

3. KOTOpPOro HWKTO He 3HaN— ;
4. paxe Ha xneb — ;

5. KBeyepy-— ;

6. OTAOXHYTb — ;

7.

8.

9.

yepes AecATb MUHYT — ;

10. roTtoB 3annaTuTb — ;

11. a ponKeH 3abpaTb cobaky — ;

12. BepHyn cobaky Xo03anHy —

Assignment # Two — 3adanue Ne 2

atime pycckue 2K8u8aieHmul C1e0yIOWUx Clo8, 8blpANCeHUll U 000POMO8 U3 MmeKcma,
Cocmasbme no mpu npeodioHceHuUs: ¢ KAHCObIM UX IMUX 000pOmMo8:

earn some (a lot of, little) — ;

become great friends — ;

be in need for smth — ;

wear a uniform — ;

it takes (took, will take) smb. some time to do smth. — ;

13



to be angry with — ;

with joy — ;

Assignment # Three — 3aoanue Ne 3

Omeembme Ha cnedyoujue 60npochl:

1) Whom did the author meet at his friend’s house one day?

One day the author

2) Did General Miles recognise the author? Why could not he?

General Miles

met

3) Prove that the author’s childhood was very hard.?

4) Why did the boy find himself in the hotel one day?

5) Who ran into the hall suddenly? It was a funny little dog, was not it?

6) Why did the boy sell the dog to General Miles for three dollars?

7) What happened ten minutes later?

8) What brilliant idea came to the boy's mind?

9) How did he manage to take the dog back?

10) Did the boy's behaviour prove his words, "Never ask f or money you haven't earned"?

14



Assignment # Four — 3aoanue No 4

IIpokommenmupyume nocnosuyy: “Honesty is the Best Policy”. Pacckasxcume Ha
auenuickom sA3vike, Kaxk Bol nonumaeme eé. Ilpounnocmpupyiime ee npumepamu.

Assignment # Five — 3aoanue Ne 5

llepeckasicume pacckaz om nuya: 1) [ocenepan Maiinza; 2) Cmapuka; 2) [pyea
ManbYUKa.

Assignment # Six — 3adanue Ne 6

Hanuwume xpamrxoe coodepoicanue Pacckaza. Bvi 0onoichul ynoowcumscs 6 10 npocmouix
npeonoHceHull.

Assignment # Seven — 3adanue No 7

Hartioume 6 mexcme 6ce I'nazonvl nHenpasunvnozo cnpsodiceHus u 3anonnume maobauyy,
oasas ux opmol. Ilepeo evinonnenuem Ynpasxcnenuni 5 u 6 Bam Heobxooumo
osHakomumucs ¢ napazpagamu 48, 49, 50 u 51 5 I'nasvr «lnacon» 1 Yacmu «Hacmu
Peuu 6 Amnenutickom sazvikey Ilepsoco moma Eounozo I pammamuueckozo xomniexca.
Bcio neobxooumyro Bam cnpasounyro ungopmayuio Bui moowceme natimu 6o Bmopom
mome 6 Ilpunooicenusx «Tabauya Bpemen Axmusnoco u Ilaccusnozo 3a10206».
IIposepums ynompebnenue gopm npuuacmuti 1 u 2 (Participles 1 & 2) (smopas,
mpemvsi U uemeepmas opmul 2nazonos) modxcho no Tabauyam  “Cnpsoicenue
Henpasunvnoix enaconos». Obpawaio éHumanue Ha mo, 4mo mabdauy 0ee: 8 0OHOU
0aemcsi CNUCOK HEeNpasuiibHulX 21420108 8 AlpasumHOM HOpsiOKe — ee sI PeKOMEHOYI0
NpUMEHAMb OJis1 OLICMPO2O NOUCKA He0OX00UMO20 Cl08d, 80 6MOPOLL 21A20/bl 0aHbl NO
munam obpazoearuss Gopmvl — HA My MAOIUYY HEOOXOOUMO OPUEHMUPOBAMbCI NPU
3ayYUBAHUU HAUZYCIND:
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Assignment # Eight — 3aoanue Ne 8

Haitioume 6 mexcme ece Ilpeonoscenus ¢ Hacmoswem u Byoywem Ilpodondicennvix
spemenax. Ilepeo evinonnenuem Ynpaoicnenuss Bam Heobxooumo o3Hakomumscs ¢
napazcpagpamu 52, 53, 54 u 55 «Bmopas epynna Bpemen — Continuous Tensesy 5 I iaewi
«lnacony 1 Yacmu «Hacmu Peuu 6 Anenuiickom szvike» Ilepsoco moma Eounoco
I pammamuueckozo xomnaekca. Bcro neobxooumyro Bam cnpagounyto ungopmayuro Bl
Mmodiceme Havumu 60 Bmopom mome 6 Ilpunoscenusx «Tabauya Bpemen Axmusnoco u
Ilaccusnozo 3a10208».

Assignment # Nine — 3aoanue No 9

3aoaiime 6onpocul K c108aM, 8blOEIeHHLIM NOOUEPKHYMbIM HAKIOHHbIM UPUDIMOM

1) A few days ago at my friend's house | met General Miles.

2) We did everything together: worked, read books, went for walks.

3) For an hour | was walking along the streets of Washington.

4) | shall pay you ten dollars if you find it for me.
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Assignment # Ten — 3adanue Ne 10

llepeckasxcume cyeny 6 xomname /[{ocenepana Maiinza, ucnonvszys Koceennyro peus
(Indirect Speech). Ilepeo svinonnenuem Ynpasicnenus Bam neobxo0umo 03HaKkoMumucsi ¢
napazpagamu 69, 70 u 71 «llpamas u Koceennas peuv» 5 Inasvr «lnacony 1 Yacmu
«Yacmu Peuu 6 Anenuiickom szvikey Ilepsoco moma Eounoco [ pammamuueckozo
Komniexca. Bcio neobxooumyro Bam cnpaeounyro ungpopmayuro Bul mosceme naiimu 6o
Bmopom mome 6 [Ipunoorcenusx.
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Unit 3
A DAY’S WAIT by E. Hemingway

He came into the room to shut the windows while me were still in bed and | saw he looked ill. He
was shivering, his face was white, and he walked slowly as though it ached to move.

"What's the matter, Schatz?"

"I've got a headache".

"You better go back to bed".

"No, | am all right".

"You go to bed. I'll see you when I'm dressed".

But when | came downstairs he was dressed, sitting by the fire, looking a very sick and miserable
boy of nine years. When | put my hand on his forehead | knew he had a fever.

"You go up to bed," said, "you are sick".

"I'am all right", he said.

When the doctor came he took the boy's temperature.
"What is it?" | asked him.

"One hundred and two."

Downstairs, the doctor left three different medicines in different coloured capsules with
instructions for giving them. He seemed to know all about influenza and said there was nothing to worry
about if the fever did not go above one hundred and four degrees. This was a light epidemic of influenza
and there was no danger if you avoided pneumonia.

Back in the room | wrote the boy's temperature down and made a note of the time to give the
various capsules.

"Do you want me to read to you?"

"All right. If you want to," said the boy. His face was very white and there were dark areas under
his eyes. He lay still in the bed and seemed very detached from what was going on.

| read about pirates from Howard Pyle's "Book of Pirates", but | could see he was not following
what | was reading.

"How do you feel, Schatz?" | asked him.
"Just the same, so far," he said.

| sat at the foot of the bed and read to myself while | waited for it to be time to give another
capsule. It would have been natural for him to go to sleep, but when | looked up he was looking at the
foot of the bed.

"Why, don't you try to go to sleep? I'll wake you up for the medicine."
"I'd rather stay awake."

After a while he said to me. "You don't have to stay in here with me, Papa, if it bothers you."

18



"It doesn't bother me."
"No, | mean you don't have to stay if it's going to bother you."

| thought perhaps he was a little light-headed and af ter giving him the prescribed capsules at
eleven o'clock | went out for a while...

At the house they said the boy had refused to let any one come into the room.

"You can't come in," he said. "You mustn't get what | have." | went up to him and found him in
exactly the same position | had left him, white-faced, but with the tops of his cheeks flushed by the
fever, staring still, as he had stared, at the foot of the bed.

| took his temperature.

"What is it?"

"Something like a hundred," | said. It was one hundred and two and four tenths.
"It was a hundred and two," he said.

"Who said so? Your temperature is all right," | said. "It's nothing to worry about."
"I don't worry," he said, "but | can't keep from thinking."

"Don't think," | said. "Just take it easy."

"I'm taking it easy," he said and looked straight ahead.

He was evidently holding tight onto himself about something.

"Take this with water."

"Do you think it will do any good?"

"Of course, it will."

| sat down and opened the "Pirate" book and commenced to read, but | could see he was not
following, so | stopped.

"About what time do you think I'm going to die?" he asked.

"What?"

"About how long will it be before | die?"

"You aren't going to die. What's the matter with you?"

"Oh, yes, | am. | heard him say a hundred and two."

"People don't die with a fever of one hundred and two. That's a silly way to talk."

"I know they do. At school in France the boys told me you can't live with forty-four degrees. I've
got a hundred and two."

He had been waiting to die all day, ever since nine o'clock in the morning.

"You poor Schatz," | said. "It's like miles and kilometres. You aren't going to die. That's a different
thermometre. On that thermometre thirty-seven is normal. On this kind it's ninety-eight."

"Are you sure?"

"Absolutely," | said. "It's like miles and kilometres. You know, like how many kilometres we make
when we do seventy miles in the car?"
19



"Oh," he said.

But his gaze at the foot of the bed relaxed slowly. The hold over himself relaxed too, finally, and
the next day he was very slack and cried very easily at little things that were of no importance.

NOTES:

Schatz (Hem.) — noporoii
102 rpagycos no ®apeHrenTy = 38,9 rpaaycos no Lleabcuto

so far - noka

Exerciges and Aggignments on the
Text

YnpaxHeHusa u 3aganus K Tekcry

Assignment # One — 3aoanue No 1

Haiioume 6 mexcme aHenuiickue 35K6UBANEHMbl CLeOVIOWUX ClOB, BbIPANCEHUN U
000pomos:

6b1210 60/1bHO ABUraTbHCA — ;

60NbHOM N HecYacTHbIN — ;

y Hero »ap — ;

dopma rpmnna — ;

3anncan Bpema npmuema nNeKkapcts — ;

TeéMHble Kpyrnh nog rnasamu — ;

He cnyuwan, 4To A Y1UTako — ;

HemMHoro bpeaun — ;

W 0 N o U kB W N

HUKOTro He NyCKan B KOMHaATy — ;

10. ato rnynoctun — ;

11. ero B3rnag yXe He 6b1n TaKNUMm HanpA>XeHHbIM — ;

12. HanpseHue cnano —
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Assignment # Two — 3aodanue Ne 2

Hatime pyccxue 5K8u8aieHmvl C1e0VIOWUX CIL08, 8bIPANCEHUN U 0O0POMO8 U3 MmeKcma,
Cocmasgvme no mpu npeodnoAHceHUs: ¢ KAHCObLM UX IMUX 060poOmos:

look ill = ;

take smb's temperature — ;

there is something (nothing) to worry about — ;

there is some (no) danger — ;

to go to sleep — ;

cannot keep from doing smth — ;

do good - ;

be of some (much, no) importance — ;
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Assignment # Three — 3aoanue Ne 3

Omeembme Ha cnedyoujue 60NPOCyL.

1) What signs of illness could the boy's father notice when he came into the room?

When he came into the

2) Did the boy go to bed as his father had asked him?

room

3) What did the doctor say? What did he prescribe?

4) Find in the text the sentences which prove that something serious worried the boy.

5) Why didn't the boy let anyone come into the room?

6) Which of the boy's questions reviled everything to his father?

7) What was the real reason of the boy's sufferings?

8) In what way did father explain everything to his son?

Assignment # Four — 3aoanue No 4

Ilepeckasicume pacckas om auya: 1) Omya manvuuxa, 2) Manrvuuka.

Assignment # Five — 3a0anue Ne 5

Hatioume 6 mexcme ece Inaconwi HenpasujlbHOcO CHPAJNCEHUA U 3anonnume ma6ﬂuuy,

oasas ux opmel. Ileped evinonnenuem Ynpasxcuenuti 5 u 6 Bam neobxooumo

o3Hakomumuvcs ¢ napacpapamu 48, 49, 50 u 51 5 Inaswvr «Inacony 1 Yacmu «Hacmu

Peuu 6 Anenutickom szvike» Ilepeoco moma Eodumoco Ipammamuueckoeo komniexca.

Bcio neobxooumyro Bam cnpagounyro unghopmayuro Bel mooiceme natimu 6o Bmopom

mome 6 Hpuﬂoofceﬁuﬂx «Ta6ﬂuua BpemeH Axmuenoco u Ilaccusnozo 3a10206».

IIposepums ynompebnenue ¢hopm npuvacmuti 1 u 2 (Participles 1 & 2) (sémopas,
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mpemuvsi U uemeepmas Qopmel 21a2on08) Mmoxcno no Tabnuyam “‘Cnpsoicenue
Henpasunvnvix enaconos». Obpawaio enumanue Ha mo, umo mabauy 0e6e. 8 00HOU
0aemcst CNUCOK HeNnpasUibHbIX 2l1a20N08 8 AlasumHOM NopsoKe — ee 5 PeKOMEHOYIO
NpUMEeHAmMb 0JisL ObLICMPO20 NOUCKA HEO0DXO00UMO20 C108d, 80 8MOPOU 211a201bl OAHbL NO
munam obpazoeanuss Gopmvl — HA dmy MaodIUYY He0OXO00UMO OPUEHMUPOBAMbCS NPU
3ayUuUBaHUU HAUZYCMb.

Assignment # Six — 3aoanue Ne 6

Haiioume 6 mexcme sce [Ipeonoicenus 6 [lpouweouwem Ipooonsxcennom epemenu. Ilepeo
gbinoIHeHueM Ynpasicnenuss Bam neobxooumo oznaxomumucs ¢ napazpagamu 52, 53, 54
u 55 «Bmopas epynna Bpemen — Continuous Tensesy 5 [naswr «Inacon» 1 Yacmu

«Yacmu Peuu 6 Anenuiickom szvikey Ilepsoco moma Eounoco Ipammamuueckozo
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Komniexca. Bcio neobxooumyro Bam cnpagounyio ungopmayuro Bol mosxceme naiimu 6o
Bmopom mome 6 Ilpunooscenusx « Tabnuya Bpemen Axkmuenozo u Ilaccusnozo 3a10208».

Assignment # Seven — 3adanue Ne 7

3aoaiime 6onpocel K c108am, 8blOEIeHHLIM NOOUYEPKHYMbIM HAKIOHHBIM WPUDMOM:

1) When the doctor came he took the boy's temperature.

2) | sat at the foot of the bed and read to myself.

3) At school in France the boys told me you cannot live with forty-four degrees.

4) He had been waiting to die all day, ever since nine o'clock in the morning.

Assignment # Eight — 3aoanue Ne 8

3amenume e6ce eonpocet 6 mexcme 6 Koceennvie (Indirect Questions). [lepeo
gbinoIHeHueM Ynpascnenus Bam Heobxooumo o3nakomumscs ¢ napacpaghamu 69, 70 u
71 «llpsmasa u Koceennas peuvy 5 [naewi «lnacony 1 Yacmu «Yacmu Peuu 6
Anenutickom asvike» Ilepeoco moma Eounoeco I pammamuueckoeo xomniekca. Bcro
Heobxooumyto Bam cnpasounyio ungopmayuto Bei mosiceme navimu 6o Bmopom mome 6
Ipunoorcenusx.

Assignment # Nine — 3aoanue Ne 9

Cocmasvme 01/[0]1021/[, UCNno1b3yA I’lpuG@O@HHble HUJICEe Cloea U 6blpassiCeHUuA.

it aches to move

have a headache

look very sick

have a fever

take one's temperature
give medicines

avoid smth.

NoupsrwNeE

Assignment # Ten — 3adanue Ne 10

Onuwume Ha Anenutickom s3vike Baw nocneonuu eusum x 0okmopy. Hcnonv3syiime
C108a u 8vipadicenus: us mexkcma u Ynpaosicnenus 9.

Assignment # Eleven — 3aoanue Ne 11
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Paccrasicume na Anenuiickom sizvike, KAkuM 00pa30M MONACHO NPedomepamums 60Je3HU.
Ymo nomoeaem Bam coxpansme cebs 6 xopouteii popme (10 keep fit)?

Assignment # Twelve — 3aoanue Ne 12

IIpoxommenmupytime cnedyowjue nO2080pKU, NOCMApanumecs HAUMU MAKCUMATLHO
Onu3Kue um sxeusaienmeol 8 Pycckom sizvike:

1. “Anapple a day keeps a doctor away”.
2. “Health is above wealth”.
3. “Early to bed and early to rise makes a man healthy, wealthy and wise”.
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Unit 4
THE GREEN DOCTOR by O. Henry

Rudolf Steiner, a young piano salesman, was a true adventurer. Few were the evenings when he
did not go to look for the unexpected. It seemed to him that the most interesting things in life might lie
just around the corner. He was always dreaming of adventures.

Once when he was walking along the street his attention was attracted by a Negro handing out a
dentist's cards. The Negro slipped a card into Rudolf's hand. He turned it over and looked at it. Nothing
was written on one side of the card; on the other three words were written: "The Green Door". And
then Rudolf saw, three steps in front of him, a man throw away the card the Negro had given him as he
passed. Rudolf picked it up. The dentist's name and address were printed on it.

The adventurous piano salesman stopped at the corner and considered. Then he returned and
joined the stream of people again. When he was passing the Negro the second time, he again got a card.
Ten steps away he examined it. In the same handwriting that appeared on the first card "The Green
door" was written upon it. Three or four cards were lying on the pavement. On all of them were the
name and the address of the dentist. Whatever the written words on the cards might mean, the Negro
had chose him twice from the crowd.

Standing aside from the crowd, the young man looked at the building in which he thought his
adventure must lie. It was a five-storey building. On the f irst floor there was a store. The second up
were apartments.

After finishing his inspection Rudolf walked rapidly up the stairs into the house. The hallway there
was badly lighted. Rudolf looked toward the nearer door and saw that it was green. He hesitated for a
moment, then he went straight to the green door and knocked on it. The door slowly opened. A girl not
yet twenty stood there. She was very pale and as it seemed to Rudolf was about to faint. Rudolf caught
her and laid her on a sofa. He closed the door and took a quick glance round the room. Neat, but great
poverty was the story he read.

"Fainted, didn't I?" the girl asked weakly. "Well, no wonder. You try going without anything to eat
for three days and see."

"Heavens!" cried Rudolf, jumping up. "Wait till | come back." He rushed out of the green door and
in twenty minutes he was back with bread and butter, cold meat, cakes, pies, milk and hot tea.

"It is foolish to go without eating. You should not do it again," Rudolf said. "Supper is ready."

When the girl cheered up a little she told him her story. It was one of a thousand such as the city
wears with indifference every day — a shop girl's story of low wages; of time lost through illness; and
then of lost jobs, lost hope and unrealised dreams and — the knock of the young man upon the door.

Rudolf looked at the girl with sympathy.

"To think of you going through all that," he exclaimed. "And you have no relatives or friends in the
city?"

"None whatever."

"As a matter of fact, | am all alone in the world too," said Rudolf after a pause.
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"I am glad of that," said the girl, and somehow it pleased the young man to hear that she
approved of his having no relatives.

Then the girl sighed deeply. "'I'm awfully sleepy," she said.

Rudolf rose and took his hat.

"How did it happen that you knocked at my door?" she asked.

"One of our piano tuners lives in this house. | knocked at your door by mistake."
There was no reason why the girl should not believe him.

In the hallway he looked around and discovered to his great surprise that all the doors were
green.

In the street he met the same Negro. "Will you tell me why you gave me these cards and what
they mean?" he asked.

Pointing down the street to the entrance to a theatre with a bright electric sign of its new play,
"The Green Door", the Negro told Rudolf that the theatre agent had given him a dollar to hand out a few
of his cards together with the dentist's.

"Still it was the hand of Fate that showed me the way to her," said Rudolf to himself.

Exerciges and Aggignments on the
Text

YopaxueHnus v 3aganus 1o Tekcry

Assignment # One — 3aoanue Ne 1

Haiioume 6 mexcme aHenuiickue 35K6UBANEHMbl CLeOVIOWUX ClO8, BbIPANCEHU U
000pomos:

WCTUHHBIN UCKaTeNb ﬂpMKJ'Il-O‘-IeHVIlZ -

B MNONCKaX HEOXNOAHHOIO —

pa3gatowero BU3anNTHble KapTOYKU —

B Tpex warax ot Hero —

NpPoXoAna MMMO Herpa Bo BTOPOW pas —

TEM e NOoYEPKOM —

yTo 6bI He 0603HaYanu ciosa —

3aKOH4YUNB OCMOTpP —

W 0 N o U~ W N

HEKOTOpPOE BpeEMA Konebanca —

10. 6blna rotoBa ynactb 63 co3HaHuA —

11. 6biCcTpO OrNAAEN KOMHATY —

12. He yaMBUTENbHO —
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13. oA4Ha M3 MHOTUX UCTOPUI — ;

14. HeocywecTBAEHHble MeYTbl — ;

15. HACTPOMLLMK — ;

16. pyka Cyabbbl —

Assignment # Two — 3adanue Ne 2

atime pycckue 2x8u8anenmol c1e0ylouwux cllos, 8blpadceHuti U 000pomos U3 mexkcmad,
Cocmasbme no mpu npeodioHCeHuUs: ¢ KAHCObIM UX IMUX 000pOmos:

dream of smth. — ;

attract smb’s attention — ;

see smb. do smth — ;

walk up (down) the stairs — ;

look at smb. with sympathy — ;

approve of smth. — ;

by mistake — ;

28



to one’s surprise — ;

Assignment # Three — 3adanue Ne 3

Omeemvme Ha cedyoujue 60npocy.

1) Who was Rudolf Steiner and what was his favourite occupation?

Rudolf Steiner was

2) Who attracted Rudolf’s attention as he was walking along the street?

Rudolf’s attention was attracted

3) What was written on the card which Rudolf got and on the card which he picked up?

4) What happened when Rudolf was passing the Negro the second time?

5) What did Rudolf do next?

6) Whom did he see behind the door?

7) Why was the girl so pale and weak?

8) In what was did the young man help the girl?

9) What did the girl tell him about herself?

10) How did Rudolf explain to the girl his unexpected visit?

11) What was the real reason why Rudolf had got the card with the words “The Green Doctor”?
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Assignment # Four — 3aoanue No 4

Kpamko nepeckasicume pacckas ne 6onee, uem 6 oecamu npeoyioHCeHUsIx.

Assignment # Five — 3aoanue Ne 5

Ilepeckasicume pacckas om nuya. 1) Pyoonvgha [lImaiinepa; 2) oesouxu.

Assignment # Six — 3adanue Ne 6

Ob6cyoume credyrowjue memoi:

1. Why does the author call the girl's story “one of a thousand such as the city wears with indifference
every day”?

2. Try to imagine the girl's life described by the author as follows: “It was a story of low wages, of time
lost through illnesses, of lost jobs, lost hopes and unrealised dreams”.

3. Why did Rudolf knowing the real reason of his meeting with the girl still called it “the hand of Fate”?

Assignment # Seven — 3adanue Ne 7

Hatioume 6 mexcme e6ce I'nazonvl nHenpasunvHozo cnpsdiceHus u 3anonnume maobauyy,
oasas ux Gopmul. Ilepeo evinonnenuem Ynpasxcnenuni 5 u 6 Bam Heobxooumo
osHakomumucs ¢ napazpagamu 48, 49, 50 u 51 5 I'nasvr «lnacon» 1 Yacmu «HYacmu
Peuu 6 Amnenutickom sazvikey Ilepsoco moma Eounozo I pammamuueckozo xomniexca.
Bcio neobxooumyro Bam cnpagounyro unghopmayuto Bl moowceme uaiimu 6o Bmopom
mome 6 Ilpunooicenusx «Tabauya Bpemen Axmusnoco u Ilaccusnozo 3a10206».
IIposepums ynompebnenue gopm npuuacmuii 1 u 2 (Participles 1 & 2) (emopas,
mpemvsi U uemeepmas ¢opmul 2nazonos) modxcho no Tabauyam  “Cnpsoicenue
Henpasunvnvix enazonos». Obpawaio éHumauue Ha mo, 4mo mabdiuy o0ee. 8 0OHOU
0aemcsi CNUCOK HEeNpasuiibHulX 21420108 8 AlpAasUMHOM HOpSOKe — ee 5I PeKOMEHOYI0
NPUMEHAMb OJis1 OLICMPO2O NOUCKA He0OX00UMO20 Cl08d, 80 6MOPOLL 21A20/bl 0aHbl NO
munam oopazoeanuss Gopmvl — HA My MaAOIUYY HeO0OXOOUMO OPUEHMUPOBAMBCA NPU
3ayYUBAHUU HAUZYCIND:
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Assignment # Eight — 3aoanue Ne 8

Haiioume 6 mexcme ece I[lpeonosicenuss 6 Cmpadamenvnom 3anoee (Passive Voice).
Ilepeo swinonnenuem Ynpasicnenus Bam neobxooumo o3naxomumuvcs ¢ napazpagamu
72-79 «Cmpadamenvuoiii 3anoe» 5 Inasvr «lnacony 1 Yacmu «Yacmu Peuu 6
Anenutickom asvike» Ilepeoco moma Eounoeo I pammamuueckoeo xomniekca. Bcro
Heobxooumyto Bam cnpasounyio ungopmayuro Bur mosceme navimu 6o Bmopom mome 6
Ipunoscenusx «Bpemena Axkmusnozo u Ilaccusnozo 3an10206», «CnpsoicerHue 21azonos 6
Cospemennom aHenutiCKoOM s3blKey.

Assignment # Nine — 3aoanue Ne 9

Ilepeseoume Ha pycckutl A3vIK cledyroujue npedlodiceHue:.
“Rudolf saw a man throw away the card”.

Kaxasa epammamuueckas  KOHCMpPYKYus  NpumMeHeHd 6 OMOM  NpPeoNoNCeHUuu?
Hcnonw3zytime 3my KoHCmMpyKYuto, CKOMIOHOBAB U3 08YX NPEONONCEHUN OOHO!

1) He was a Negro. The Negro was handing out a dentist’s card.

2) Rudolf saw three or four cards. They were lying on the pavement.

3) Rudolf knocked on the door. The girl heard it.
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4) Rudolf was a kind-hearted man. The girl felt it.

Assignment # Eight — 3aoanue Ne 8

Haiioume 6 mexcme 6ce npeonoxcenus, cooepacawue [lpsmyro peus (Direct Speech) u
nepeoenraume ux 6 Koceennyio peun (Indirect Speech). [Ilepeo ewvinonnenuem
Ynpaosicnenus Bam neobxooumo oznakomumucs ¢ napazpagamu 69, 70 u 71 «llpamasn u
Koceennas peuvy 5 Inasvr «lnazony 1 Yacmu «Hacmu Peuu 6 Anenuuickom s3vikey
llepeoco moma Eounoeo [ pammamuueckozo xomniexca. Bcio neobxooumyro Bawm
cnpasounyto ungopmayuro Bul mosceme natimu 6o Bmopom mome 6 Ilpunoswcenusx.
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Unit 5
MARTIN EDEN (extract) by J. London

Part |

Martin Eden, a strong man and talented worker, belongs to a working-class family. He meets Ruth
Morse, a girl from a rich bourgeois family, and falls in love with her. He decides to become her equal in
knowledge and culture. He must make a career for himself and become famous. He begins to read and
study and Ruth helps him.

A week of heavy reading had passed since the evening he first met Ruth Morse, and still he did
not dare to go and see her. He was afraid of making mistakes in speech and manners.

Martin tried to read books that required years of preparatory work. One day he read a book on
philosophy, and the next day a book on art. He read poetry, he read books by Karl Marx. He did not
understand what he was reading but he wanted to know. He had become interested in economy,
industry and politics. He sat up in bed and tried to read, but the dictionary was in front of him more
often than the book. He looked up so many new words that when he saw them again, he had forgotten
their meaning and had to look them up again. He decided to write the words down in a note-book, and
filled page after page with them. And still he could not understand what he was reading. Poetry was not
so difficult. He loved poetry and beauty, and there he found beauty, as he found it in music.

At last Martin Eden had enough courage to go and see Ruth. She met him at the door herself and
took him into the living-room. They talked first of the books he had borrowed from her, then of poets.
He told her of his plans to educate himself.

"You should go back and finish grammar school, and then go through the high school and
university," Ruth said.

"But that takes money," he said.

"Oh!" she cried. "I had not thought of that. But then you have relatives, somebody who could help
you?"

He shook his head.

"My father and mother are dead. I've two sisters and some brothers,— I'm the youngest,— but they
never helped anybody. The oldest died in India. Two are in South Africa now, and another is on a fishing-
boat at sea. One is travelling with a circus. And | think | am just like them. I've taken care of myself since

| was eleven — that's when my mother died. | think | must study by myself, and what | want to know is
where to begin."

"I should say the first thing of all would be to get a grammar. Your grammar is not particularly

He got red. "l know | talk a lot of slang. | know words, picked them up from books, but | cannot
say them correctly, so | don't use them."

"It isn't what you say, so much as how you say it. You don't mind my saying that, do you? | don't
want to hurt you."

"No, no," he cried. "Tell me everything. | must know, and | had better hear it from you than from
anybody else."
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"Well, then, you say 'You was', it must be 'You were'. You say 'l seen' for 'l saw'."
"That is clear," said Martin. "l never thought of it before."

"You'll find it all in the grammar," she said and went to the bookcase. She took one of the books
from the shelf and gave it to Martin.

Several weeks went by, during which Martin Eden studied his grammar and read books. During
those weeks he saw Ruth five or six times and each time he learned something. She helped him with his
English, corrected his pronunciation and taught him arithmetic.

Part Il

A few months after Martin had started to educate himself, he had to go to sea again as all his
money was spent. He went as a sailor on a ship that was going to the South Sea.

The captain of the ship had a complete Shakespeare, which he never read. Martin had washed his
clothes for him and in return was allowed to read the books. For a time all the world took the form of
Shakespearean tragedy or comedy; even Martin's thoughts were expressed in the language of
Shakespeare. This trained his ear and gave him a feeling for good English.

The eight months were spent well; he learned to understand Shakespeare and speak correctly,
and what was most important, he learned much about himself. Now he knew that he could do more
than he had done. He wanted to show Ruth the beauty of the South Sea and decided to do it in his
letters.

And then the great idea came to him. He would describe the beauty of the world not only for Ruth
but for other people as well. He could do it. He would be one of the eyes through which the world saw,
one of the ears through which the world heard, one of the hearts through which it felt. He would be a
writer. He would write — everything — poetry and prose, novels and descriptions, and plays like
Shakespeare. There was career and the way to win Ruth.

For the first time he saw the aim of his life, and saw it in the middle of the great sea. Martin
decided to begin writing when he comes back. He would describe the voyage to the South Sea and sell it
to some San Francisco newspaper. He would go on studying, and then, after some time, when he had
learned and prepared himself, he would write great things.

Part Il

When Martin Eden returned to San Francisco, he began to write. He sent his works to newspapers
and magazines, but the editors sent his manuscripts back. Martin continued to write and study at the

same time.

Martin lived in a small room where he slept, studied, wrote and cooked his meals. Before the
window there was the kitchen table that served as desk and library. The bed occupied two-thirds of the
room. Martin slept five hours; only a man in very good health could work for nineteen hours a day. He
never lost a moment. On the looking-glass were lists of words: when he was shaving or combing his hair,
he learned these words. Some lists were on the wall over the kitchen table, and he studied them while
he was cooking or washing the dishes. New lists were always put there in place of the old ones. Every
new word he met in his reading was marked and later put down on paper and pinned to the wall or
looking-glass. He even carried them in his pockets and looked them through in the street or in the shop.
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The weeks passed. All Martin's money was spent and publishers continued to send his

manuscripts back. Day by day he worked on and day by day the postman delivered to him his

manuscripts. He had no money for stamps, so the manuscripts lay on the floor under the table. Martin
pawned his overcoat, then his watch.

One morning the postman brought him a short thin envelope. There was no manuscript in that
envelope, therefore, Martin thought, they had taken the story. It was "The Ring of Bells". In the letter
the editor of a San Francisco magazine said that the story was good. They would pay the author five
dollars f or it. And he would receive the check when the story was published.

Exerciges and Aggignments on the
Text

Ynpaxuaenus v 3a1aHus o TekcTy

Assignment # One — 3aoanue No 1

Hatioume 6 mexcme aHenutickue 35K6UBANEHMbI CLEOVIOWUX CNO8, BbIPANCEHUL U

0060pomos:

1
2
3
4
5.
6
7
8
9

10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.

BNOOUTBLCA — ;

6bITb HapaBHe C Hel — ;

TpeﬁoBal’IM ,D,ﬂMTeanOﬁ noaroToBKU — ’

CMOTPETb CnhoBa B C/i0Bape — ;

ncnumcbiBan CTpaHULY 3a CTpaHMLI,eﬁ - ’

Habpasacsa myKecTBa — ;

3abotnnca o cebe cam —

He xouy obugetb — ;

ncnpasaAA ero nponsHoweHune — ’

noaHoe c06paHv1e COYMHEHNM LLIeKchpa - ’

roBopuTb NPaBUIbHO — ;

CNyXXnn nnCbMeHHbIM CTO/IOM — ;

He TepA HU MUHYTbI — ;

CMUCKKM cnos. —

NPUKPENNAATb K CTEHE — ;

BO3BpaLLaTb PyKOMNMCKU — ;

AeHb 33 AHem — ;

3a/10XKMNN NanbTo —

Assignment # Two — 3adanue Ne 2
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Hatime pyccxue 5K8u8aieHmMbl C1e0VIOWUX CILO8, 8bIPANCEHUN U 0O0POMO8 U3 MeKcma,
Cocmasgvme no mpu npeodioAHceHUs: ¢ KAHCObIM UX IMUX 060pOMmMo8:

make a career — ;

to be greatly surprised — ;

dare to do smth. — ;

be afraid of doing smth. — ;

a book on philosophy (art) — ;

become interested in smth. — ;

getred (pale) - ;

do smth. in return — ;
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go on doing smth. — ;

Assignment # Three — 3aoanue Ne 3

Omeembme Ha cedyoujue 60npochl:

1) What made Martin begin to read and study?

2) Using the text prove that Martin read books without any system.

3) Reading was hard work for him, wasn't it? What did Martin do to make it easier?

4) What did Ruth advise Martin when they met?

5) What did Martin tell Ruth about his family?

6) What were Ruth's remarks about Martin's grammar? Did they hurt him?

7) Why did the young man have to go to sea again?

8) In what way did Shakespeare's books help Martin to educate himself?

9) What idea came to him? What did he want to write about?
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10) Describe Martin's room. Prove that while writing stories he continued to educate himself.

11) Why do you think publishers sent his manuscripts back?

12) What happened one day?

Assignment # Four — 3aoanue No 4

Ilepeckasicume pacckaz om auya: 1) Mapmuna Hoena, 2) Pyc Mopc, 3) kanumana
Kopaobas.

Assignment # Five — 3a0anue Ne 5

Kpamio nepeckasicume pacckas, nocmapaguucs yioxcumscs 6 15 npeonoscenuti — no 5
npeonodNceHutl 0 Kaxcoou u3 uacmeti mexkcma.

Assignment # Six — 3aoanue Ne 6

Hartioume 6 mexcme 6ce I'nazonvl HenpasuivbHo20 CRpsidceHUus U 3anoiHume mabauyy,
oasas ux opmol. Ileped evinonnenuem Ynpasxcnenui 5 u 6 Bam HeobdXooumo
osHakomumucs ¢ napazpagamu 48, 49, 50 u 51 5 I'nasvr «lnacon» 1 Yacmu «HYacmu
Peuu 6 Anenutickom szvike» Ilepsoco moma Eoumoco I pammamuyeckoeo komniekca.
Bcio neobxooumyro Bam cnpagounyro unghopmayuro Bel moowceme natimu 60 Bmopom
mome 6 Ilpunosxcenusx «Tabruya Bpemen Axmuenoco u Ilaccusnozo 3ano2o8x.
IIposepums ynompeonenue gopm npuuacmuti 1 u 2 (Participles 1 & 2) (emopas,
mpemvsi U uemeepmas opmul 2nazonos) modxcho no Tabauyam  “Cnpsocenue
Henpasunvnvix enaconos». Obpawairo éHumanue Ha mo, 4mo mabdauy 0ee: 8 0OHOU
0aemcsi CNUCOK HEeNpAasUibHbIX 21a20108 8 AlPABUMHOM HOPSOKe — ee 51 PeKOMEHOYVI0
NpUMeHAmMb OJis1 OLICMPO2O NOUCKA He0OXO00UMO20 Cl08d, 80 6MOPOL 21A20/bl 0aHbl NO
munam obpazoeanuss Gopmvl — HA My MAOAUYY He0OXOOUMO OPUEHMUPOBAMbCI NPU
3aYYUBAHUU HAUZYCIND:
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Assignment # Seven — 3adanue Ne 7

3aoaiime 6onpocul K c108am, 8blOEIeHHLIM NOOUEPKHYMbIM HAKIOHHbIM UPUDIMOM

1) | was going fishing with Gavin.

2) We met early in the morning.

3) We walked side by side through the quiet village to the lake.

4) My father has had trouble in the business.
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Assignment # Eight — 3aoanue Ne 8

Haiioume 6 mexcme ece npeonoxcenus, cooepacawue Ilpsmyio peus (Direct Speech) u
nepederaume ux 6 Koceennyio peun (Indirect Speech). [Ilepeo ewvinonnenuem
Ynpaoicnenus Bam neobxooumo oznakomumucs ¢ napazpagamu 69, 70 u 71 «llpamasn u
Kocseennas peuvy 5 Inasvr «lnazon» 1 Yacmu «Hacmu Peuu 6 Anenuuckom s3vikey
llepeoco moma Eounoeo [pammamuueckozo xomniexca. Bcio neobxooumyro Bam
cnpagounyto ungopmayuro Bur mosiceme natimu 6o Bmopom mome 6 Ilpunoswcenusx.

Assignment # Nine — 3adanue Ne 9

Iloocomosbmecv Kk 00CyIHCOEHUIO CLEOYIOUJUX MEM.:

1. When Martin and Ruth were discussing the problem of his education and Martin said that it took
money, Ruth answered, "l hadn't thought of that". Why do you think she said so? What else shows
that the young people belonged to different stratas of society?

2. Do you agree that Martin was a very industrious and determined person? Find all the facts in the
text to prove it. Say how it helped him in his work.

3. The book "Martin Eden" is autobiographical. Do you know any other books in which the writers used
facts from their own life?

Assignment # Ten — 3aoanue Ne 10

Hatioume 6 mexcme ece Ilpeonoscenus ¢ Ipoweowem Cosepuwennom (Past Perfect),
Byoywem ¢ Ilpoweowem (Future-in-the-Past) u Ilpoweowem IIpooonsxcennom (Past
Continuous) epemenax. Ileped evinoanenuem Ynpaosicnenus Bam — Heobxooumo
o3Hakomumocs ¢ napazpagamu 52, 53, 54 u 55 «Bmopas epynna Bpemen — Continuous
Tensesy, napazpapamu « Tpemws epynna Bpemen — Perfect Tensesy 5 Iaeswvr «Inacony 1
Yacmu «Yacmu Peuu 6  Anenuiickom  sazvixe»  Ilepsoco moma  Eounozo
I'pammamuyeckozco komniexca. Bcro Heobxooumyio Bam cnpagounyro ungopmayuro Boi
Mmodiceme Havmu 60 Bmopom mome 6 Ilpunoscenusx «Tabauya Bpemen Axmusnoco u
Ilaccusnozo 3a10208».

Assignment # Eleven — 3adanue Ne 11

Haiioume 6 mexcme ece Ilpednosicenuss ¢ Cmpadamenvrnom 3anoee (Passive Voice).
Ilepeo swvinonnenuem Ynpasicnenus Bam neobxooumo o3naxomumvcs ¢ napazpagamu
72-79 «Cmpaoamenvuviii 3an0e» 5 Inaevt «Inacony 1 Yacmu «YHacmu Peuu 6
Anenutickom asvixe» Ilepeoco moma Eounoeo [ pammamuueckoeo xomniekca. Bcro
Heobxooumyto Bam cnpasounyio ungopmayuro Bui mosceme navimu 6o Bmopom mome 8
Ipunoscenusix «Bpemena Axkmusnozo u Ilaccusnozo 3an0206», «CnpsoiceHue 21azonos 6
CogpemeHnoM aHeTULICKOM S3bIKe ).

Assignment # Twelve — 3a0anue No 12
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Ilepeoenaiime npeonoxcenuss uz [eiicmeumensnoco 3anoea (Active Voice) &
Cmpaoamenvuwiii (Passive Voice). Ilepeo svinoanenuem Ynpasicnenus Bam neobxooumo
osHakomumucs ¢ napazpagamu 72-79 «Cmpaoamenvuwii 3an02y» 5 Inasvr «lnacony 1
Yacmu «YHacmu Peuu 6 Awnenutickom  sa3vike»  Ilepgoco  moma  Eounoco
I'pammamuueckozo komnaexca. Bcro nHeobxooumyro Bam cnpagounyro ungopmayuro Boi
moxceme Haumu 60 Bmopom mome 6 I[lpunoowcenuax «Bpemena Axmusnoco u
Ilaccusnozco 3an0206», « Cnpsascenue enazonos 6 CogpemMeHHOM AH2AULCKOM S3bIKe).

1) Martin washed the captain's clothes and he gave him his books to read.

2) He would describe the beauty of the world in his books.

3) Ruth corrected his pronunciation and taught him arithmetic.
4) He wrote the words down in a note-book and filled page after page with them.
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Unit 6

IS He LIVING OR IS HeE
DeAD

by M. Twain

"A long time ago | was a young artist and came to France where | was travelling from place to
place making sketches. One day | met two French artists who were also moving from place to place
making sketches and | joined them. We were as happy as we were poor, or as poor as we were happy,
as you like it.

"Claude and Carl —these are the names of those boys — were always in good spirits and laughed at
poverty. We were very poor. We lived on the money which we got from time to time for our sketches.
When nobody wanted to buy our sketches we had to go hungry.

"Once, in the north of France, we stopped at a village. For some time things had been very
difficult for us. A young artist, as poor as ourselves, lived in that village. He took us into his house, and
saved us from starvation. The artist's name was Francois Millet.

"He wasn't greater than we were, then. He wasn't famous even in his own village; and he was so
poor that very often he hadn't anything for dinner but cabbage, and sometimes he could not even get
cabbage. We lived and worked together for over two years. One day Claude said:

“Boys, we've come to the end. Do you understand that? Everybody is against us. I've been all
around the village and they do not want to sell food until we pay all the money”. There was a long
silence. At last Millet said, “What shall we do? | can't think of anything. Can you, boys?”

"We made no answer. Then Carl began to walk up and down the room. Suddenly he stopped in
front of a picture and said: 'It's a shame! Look at these pictures! They are good, as good as the pictures
of any well-known artist. Many people had said so too.

"'But they don't buy our pictures,' said Millet.

“Carl sat down and said, 'l know now how we can become rich”.
“'Rich! You have lost your mind”.

“No, | haven't.”

“Yes, you have — you've lost your mind. What do you call rich?”

“A hundred thousand francs for a picture”.

“He has lost his mind. | knew it”.

“Yes, he has. Carl, these troubles have been too much for you, and...”

“Carl, you must take some medicine and go to bed”.

“Stop it!” said Millet seriously, “and let the boy say what he wants to. Now, then — go on with
hour plan, Carl. What is it?”
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""Well, then, to begin with, | will ask you to note this fact in human history: many great artists die
of starvation. And only after their death people begin to buy their pictures and pay large sums of money
for them. So the thing is quite clear”, he added, “one of us must die. Let us draw lots”. We laughed and
gave Carl some medical advice, but he waited quietly, then went on again with his plan.

"'Yes, one of us must die, to save the others — and himself. We will draw lots. He will become
famous and all of us will become rich. Here is the idea. During the next three months the man who must
die will paint as many pictures as he can, sketches, parts of pictures, fragments of pictures with his name
on them, and each must have some particulars of his, that could be easily seen. Such things are sold too
and collected at high prices for the world's museums, after the great man is dead. At the same time the
others of us will inform the public that a great artist is dying, that he won't live over three months.

“But what if he doesn't die?” we asked Carl.

“Oh, he won't really die, of course; he will only change his name and disappear, we bury a dummy
and cry over it and all the world will help us. And = But he wasn't allowed to finish. Everybody
applauded him, we ran about the room, and fell on each others' necks, and were happy. For hours we
talked over the great plan and quite forgot that we were hungry.

"At last we drew lots and Millet was elected to die. We collected the few things we had left and
pawned them. So we got a little money for travel and for Millet to live on for a few days. The next
morning Claude, Carl and | left the village. Each had some of Millet's small pictures and sketches with
him. We took different roads. Carl went to Paris, where he would begin the work of building Millet's
fame. Claude and | were going abroad.

"On the second day | began to sketch a villa near a big town because | saw the owner standing on
the veranda. He came down to look on. | showed him my sketch and he liked it. Then | took out a picture
by Millet and pointed to the name in the corner.

“Do you know the name?” | said proudly. “Well, he taught me!” | finished.
"The man looked confused.
“Don't you know the name of Francois Millet?” | asked him.

“Of course it is Millet. | recognise it now”, said the man, who had never heard of Millet before, but
now pretended to know the name. Then he said that he wanted to buy the picture. At first | refused to
sell it, but in the end | let him have it for eight hundred francs. | made a very nice picture of that man's
house and wanted to offer it to him for ten francs, but remembered that | was the pupil of such a
master, so | sold it to him for a hundred. | sent the eight hundred francs straight back to Millet from that
town and was on the road again next day.

"Nom that | had some money in my pocket, | did not walk from place to place. | rode. | continued
my journey and sold a picture a day. | always said to the man who bought it, “I'm a fool to sell a picture
by Ftancois Millet. The man won't live three months. When he dies, his pictures will be sold at a very
high price”.

"The plan of selling pictures was successful with all of us. | walked only two days. Claude walked
two — both of us afraid to make Millet famous too near the village where he lived — but Carl walked only
half a day and after that he travelled like a king. In every town that we visited, we met the editor of the
newspaper and asked him to publish a few words about the master's health. We never called Millet a
genius. The readers understood that everybody knew Millet. Sometimes the words were hopeful,
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sometimes tearful. We always marked these articles and sent the papers to all the people who had
bought pictures of us.

"Carl was soon in Paris. He made friends with the journalists and Millet's condition was reported
to England and all over the continent, and America, and everywhere.

"At the end of six weeks from the start, me three met in Paris and decided to stop asking for more
pictures from Millet. We saw that is was time to strike. So we wrote Millet to go to bed and begin to
prepare for his death. We wanted him to die in ten days, if he could get ready. Then we counted the
money and found that we had sold eighty-five small pictures and sketches and had sixty-nine thousand
francs. How happy we were!

"Claude and | packed up and went back to the village to look after Millet in his last days and keep
people out of the house. We sent daily bulletins to Carl in Paris for the papers of several continents with
the information for a waiting world. The sad end came at last, and Carl came to the village to help us.
Large crowds of people from far and near attended the funeral. We four carried the coffin. There was
only a wax figure in it. Millet was disguised as a relative and helped to carry his own coffin.

"After the funeral we continued selling Millet's pictures. We got so much money that we did not
know what to do with it. There is a man in Paris today who has seventy Millet's pictures. He paid us
two million francs for them."

NOTES:
Francois Millet — ®paHcya Munne, ppaHLy3CKNIA XyAOKHUK (1814 — 1875);

funeral — noxopoHbl;

coffin —rpo6.

Exercises and Agsighments on the
Text

YopaxHeHus v 3agaHud 1Mo TekcTy

Assignment # One — 3aoanue Ne 1

Haiioume 6 mexcme aHenutickue 3K6UBANEHMbL CLeOVIOWUX ClO6, BbIPANCEHUN U
000pomos:

1. penaTb HaBpPOCOK — ;
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cnac ot ronoda — ’

HUYEro, KPOMe KanycTbl — ;

OOLWN A0 PYYKM — ;

pasborateTb — ;

OTMETUTb 3TOT PaKT — ;

nnaatuTb 6bonblune AeHbIN — ;

Aasavte 6pocm Kpebunin — ;

L 0 N o Uk~ W N

XapaKTepHble 0COBEHHOCTU — ;

=
o

. XOPOHUTb MaHeEKeH — ’

[EnY
[y

. 3aK/1a4pblBaTb BELM — ;

[EEN
N

. co3pasaTtb cnasy Munne — ;

[EEN
w

. MPUTBOPWACA, YTO 3HAET — ;

=
N

. NpoAaBan No KapTuHe B Ae€Hb — ’

[EEN
Ul

. PeaaKTop raseTbl — ;

[EEN
D

. U3 BANKHUX U AaNbHUX MeCT — ’

[EEN
~

. BOCKOBas purypa — ;

18. ero 3amackuposanau nog poaAcCTBEHHUKaA —

Assignment # Two — 3adanue Ne 2

atime pycckue 2K8uU8aieHmul C1e0VIOWUX CILO8, 8bIPANCEHUL U 0O0POMO8 U3 MeKCma,
Cocmasbme no mpu npeodioHCeHUs ¢ KAHCObIM UX IMUX 000POMO8:

be in good sprit — ;

lose one’s mind — ;

to begin with — ;

it's quite clear that... - ;
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inform smb. — ;

applaude smb. — ;

go abroad — ;

look confused — ;

sell smth. at a high price — ;

be successful — ;

report smth. — ;

Assignment # Three — 3adanue Ne 3

Omeemvme Ha cedyoujue 60Npocsl.

1) Under what circumstances did the author get acquainted with Claude and Carl?
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2) Describe their way of life.

3) Who joined their company some time later?

4) Why didn't people buy their pictures?

5) Which well-known fact of human history did Carl make use of in his plan?

6) Describe his plan in detail.

7) Which of the four was elected to die?

8) Prove that the plan was successful with all the young men.

9) What was the role of journalists in making Millet famous?

10) Describe the funeral.

11) What was the result of their successful “operation”?
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Assignment # Four — 3aoanue No 4

Ilepeckascume paccxkas om nuya. 1) Kapn; 2) Knoo, 3) @pancya Munne.

Assignment # Five — 3aoanue Ne 5

Kpamko nepeckasicume pacckas He 6onee, uem 6 15 npeonodxcenusix.

Assignment # Six — 3adanue Ne 6

Hatioume ¢ mexcme e6ce I'nazonvl nenpasunvnozo cnpsdiceHus u 3anonnume maobauyy,
oasas ux opmol. Ileped evinonnenuem Ynpascnenuti 5 u 6 Bam neobxooumo
osHakomumucsi ¢ napazpagamu 48, 49, 50 u 51 5 I'nasvr «lnacon» 1 Yacmu «Hacmu
Peuu 6 Amnenuiickom azvikey Ilepsoco moma Eounozo I pammamuueckozo xomniexca.
Bcio neobxooumyro Bam cnpasounyro ungopmayuio Bvi mooiceme natimu 6o Bmopom
mome 6 Ilpunoocenusx «Tabauya Bpemen Axmuenoco u Ilaccusnozo 3ano2oex.
IIposepumv ynompebnenue gopm npuuacmuii 1 u 2 (Participles 1 & 2) (emopas,
mpemovsi U uemeepmas Gopmel 21azono8) Mmoxcno no Tabnuyam “Cnpsorcenue
Henpasunvnvix enaconos». Obpawaio eénumanue Ha mo, 4mo mabauy 08e: 8 O0OHOU
0aemcsi CHUCOK HenpasuibHbIX 21d20Nl08 8 AlpasumnHom nopsoke — ee s PeKoOMeHOYI0
npumenams 0Jisi ObICMPO20 NOUCKA HeO0OX0OUMO20 CN08d, 80 8MOPOU 21A20bl OAHbl NO
munam oopazoeanuss Gopmvl — HA dMy MAOIUYY He0OXOOUMO OPUEHMUPOBAMbCI NPU
3ayUUBAHUU HAUZYCIND:
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Assignment # Seven — 3adanue Ne 7

Haiioume 6 mexcme e6ce Ilpeonoswcenus co CpasHumenbHbIMU KOHCMPYKYUAMU
(Comparative constructions).

Assignment # Eight — 3aoanue Ne 8

Hatioume 6 mexcme ece [lpeonosicenuss 6 Cmpadamenvnom 3anoee (Passive Voice).
Cmompume uncmpyKyuu gvluie.

Assignment # Nine — 3adanue No 9

Obcyoume credyrowue memoi.

1) Why do you think different people bought Millet's pictures without even knowing his name? Were
they really keen on art?
2) The boys' plan was based on a lie. Can you approve of their behaviour? Give your grounds.

Assignment # Ten — 3aoanue Ne 10

Ilepeoenatime smu npeonodicenus 6 Bonpocvl ¢ O00NOIHUMENbHHIM OKOHUAHUEM
(Disjunctive questions):

1) The plan of selling pictures was successful.

2) The readers understood that everybody knew Millet.

3) They don't buy our pictures.

4) He has lost his mind.

Assignment # Eleven — 3aoanue Ne 11
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Ilepeseoume npeonoxcenus uz Ilpsmou peuu (Direct Speech) e Kocsennyio (Indirect
Speech). [Ilepeo ewvinonnenuem Ynpaosicnenuss Bam Heobxooumo o3naxomumvcs ¢
napazpagpamu 69, 70 u 71 «llpamas u Koceennas peuv» 5 I[nasvr «lnacony 1 Yacmu
«Yacmu Peuu 6 Anenuiickom szvikey Ilepsoco moma Eounoco [ pammamuueckozo
Komniexca. Bcio neobxooumyro Bam cnpaeounyro ungpopmayuro Bul mosceme naiimu 6o
Bmopom mome 6 [Ipunoorcenusx.

1) "These troubles have been too much for you, Carl," — said Claude.

2) "Let the boy say what he wants to," — said Millet.

3) "Can you think of anything?" — said Claude.

4) "How much does the picture cost?" — asked the owner of the villa.
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Unit 7
AS YOU LIKE TT by W. Shakespeare

Many years ago, there lived in France two girls who were the very best of friends. They were
cousins, and both were beautiful. The taller and stronger of them was called Rosalind, and the name of
the other was Celia. Rosalind's father was a great duke, but his brother, Celia's father, had driven him
out of his own dukedom. Many noblemen, who hated the cruel brother, but loved Rosalind's father,
went with him, to live in the Forest of Arden.

When Rosalind's father was driven from the cas- tle, her uncle kept the girl there. She grew up
together with his own little girl Celia. They grew up together, and Celia was so sweet and so kind to
Rosalind that Rosalind sometimes forgot to be sad because her father had been driven away.

One of the truest friends of the former duke had been a brave knight called Sir Rowland. He was
dead but he had left two sons. Oliver, the elder, was not a good brother. Instead of doing as his father
had wished, and being kind to his younger brother whose name was Orlando, he gave him neither
money nor any chance of learning anything, and made him take all his meals with the servants. He hated
Orlando because he was so brave and strong and handsome, and he was kinder to his horses than he
was to Orlando. Sir Rowland had had an old servant named Adam. Adam loved Orlando, and was very
sorry that Oliver was so cruel to his younger brother.

One day, when Orlando felt that he could not bear Oliver's cruelty any longer, he asked him to
give him the money that his father had left him and let him go and seek his fortune. He said he couldn't
go on doing nothing and learning nothing. But Oliver only laughed at him, and so the brothers had a
quarrel. Oliver hated Orlando more than ever after that quarrel. He thought of the best way to kill him
and to keep for himself the money that their father had left for Orlando.

About this time Celia's father gave a great wrestling match. He had a very strong paid wrestler of
his own. This man wrestled so well that only the bravest had the courage to wrestle with him, for he
often killed those with whom he wrestled. Orlando was a very good wrestler and was afraid of no one,
so he made up his mind to go to the match and wrestle with this man.

When Oliver learned that Orlando intended to do this, he ordered the Duke's wrestler to come to
his castle. He told the wrestler all sorts of lies about Orlando. He said that Orlando was one of the worst
men in France, that the wrestle would be doing a good deed if he broke his neck. The wrestler promised
to do his best to kill Orlando.

The following day the wrestling match took place on the grass in front of the Duke's castle. The
Duke and all his noblemen came to see the sport, and Celia and Rosalind also came. For in those days it
was the custom for ladies to look at things that now seem to us very cruel.

When Orlando came forward, he looked so young and brave and handsome that even the cruel
duke who did not know who he was, was sorry to think that the wrestler would kill him.

"Try to persuade the lad not to wrestle," said the duke to Celia and Rosalind. "He has no chance at
all. My man is sure to kill him."

Very kindly but urgently Celia and Rosalind begged Orlando not to wrestle.
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But Orlando answered, "Do not think badly of me because | refuse to do what you wish. It is not
easy to say 'no' to ladies who are so kind and so fair. Let your beautiful eyes and good wishes go with

me.

Then the wrestling began, and everyone expected the duke's wrestler to kill Orlando. But Orlando
lifted the strong man up in his arms and threw him on to the ground. All the people shouted in
admiration, and the duke called out, "No more! No more!"

He turned to his wrestler and asked him how he felt. But the man lay quite still and quiet, he
could neither speak nor move.

"He cannot speak, my lord," said one of the noblemen. So the duke ordered his men to carry his
wrestler away.

"What is your name, young man?" he asked of Orlando.
"Orlando, my lord, the younger son of Sir Rowland."

"Your father was my enemy," said the duke. "I would have been better pleased with your brave
deed if you had told me of another father."

Then the duke and his lords and his servants went away, and Orlando was left alone with Rosalind
and Celia. The girls went up to Orlando and praised him for his bravery. Celia was sad that her father had
spoken so unkindly to Orlando. And Rosalind, taking a gold chain off her own neck, gave it to him. She
would have given him a richer gift, she said, if she had not been only a poor girl. Orlando loved them
both for their goodness, but he loved Rosalind so much that he made up his mind to marry her one day,
if she would agree to marry him.

Meanwhile the duke was angry with Orlando, the son of his enemy, for having defeated his
wrestler, and he was angry with Rosalind for having given Orlando her gold chain.

The more the duke thought of these things, the angrier he grew. At last he told Rosalind to leave
his castle.

"If you are found even twenty miles from here within the next ten days, you shall die," he said.

Celia was very sad at her father's cruelty to Rosalind, who was so dear to her. She begged the
duke not to be so unkind, but he refused to listen to her. Then she told him that if he sent Rosalind
away, he must send her away, too, because she could not live without Rosalind.

"You are a fool!" her father shouted. He told Rosalind that she would be killed if she did not go at
once.

But Celia would not let Rosalind go alone. So they made up their minds to travel together to the
forest of Arden, where Rosalind's father and his friends were hiding. They knew they might meet
robbers on their way, so Celia stained her face to make it look sunburned, and dressed herself like a
poor country girl. Rosalind put on boy's clothes, and took a little axe and spear with her.

Now the duke, Celia's father, had a jester called Touchstone. This jester was a very funny fellow
who was always talking nonsense and joking. He was very fond of his young mistress Celia.

"What if we took Touchstone with us?" said Rosalind when they were ready to start on their way.
"Will he not be a comfort to us?"

"He will go all over the wide world with us," said Celia. "Let me ask him to come."
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So when Rosalind and Celia went off to the forest, kind Touchstone led the way. In his red clothes,
with the bells on his cap jingling, he cheerfully stepped out in front of them, carrying their bundle of
food and clothes. And when night fell and the forest was dark, and Rosalind and Celia grew tired and
sad, Touchstone's merry face and the jokes he made, soon cheered the two girls up again.

While these things were happening, Oliver was planning how to kill Orlando. He hated him all the
more when he heard people praising him. He made up his mind to have him murdered in some way or
other.

Adam, the old servant, warned Orlando of the danger. Orlando decided to go to the Forest of
Arden, and Adam said he would go with him as well.

Orlando had no money, but Adam gave him all his savings, and so they too went off to the Forest.
Far away, in the woods Rosalind's father and his friends led a happy life together. They hunted wild
animals, and had plenty of good food. They often feasted under the thick green trees. As they feasted
together one day, a young man rushed out from among the trees, his drawn sword in his hand.

"Stop, and eat no more!" he cried.
The duke and his friends asked him what he wanted.
"Food," he said. "I am almost dying for want of food."

They asked him to sit down and eat, but he refused because an old man who had followed him
out of deep love was in the wood, dying of hunger. He said he would eat nothing until he had first fed
him.

The young man was Orlando, and when the duke and his followers had helped him to bring Adam
to where they were, and fed them both, the old man and his young master grew quite strong again.
When the duke learned that Orlando was the son of his friend Sir Rowland, he welcomed him and the
faithful old servant more warmly still.

So Orlando lived happily with the duke and his friends in the forest, but all the time he was
thinking of Rosalind. Every day he wrote poems about her, and pinned them on trees in the wood or
carved them deep in the bark of the trees.

Now Rosalind and Celia and Touchstone had also come safely to the forest, and were living in a
little. cottage that belonged to a shepherd there.

Rosalind loved Orlando as much as he loved her, and when she read the verses that Orlando had
left on the trees, she was happy, for she knew that he had not forgotten her.

At last one day she and Celia met Orlando. He did not recognise them in the clothes they were
wearing. And with their faces stained brown, he took them for the shepherd boy and his sister that they
pretended to be.

He became great friends with them, and often came to see them in their. little cottage, and talked
to them of Rosalind, the beautiful lady that he loved.

Meanwhile Orlando's brother was punished severely for his cruelty. When Orlando went away,
Celia's father thought that Oliver had killed his brother. He took Oliver's land away from him, and told
him never to come back to his court until he had found Orlando.

So Oliver went away alone, to look for his brother. He looked for him week after week in vain,
until his clothes were worn and his hair so long and dirty that he looked like a beggar. On his way from
Rosalind's cottage, Orlando came on him one day. Oliver was lying fast asleep under an old oak. Round
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his neck there was a big snake that was just going to bite him and kill him when it saw Orlando and
escaped Even as it went away, Orlando saw another awful danger near his unkind brother. A hungry lion
was hiding under some bushes, ready to kill the sleeping men.

For a moment Orlando thought only of his brother's cruelties. He knew that he well deserved
death. Twice he turned away to leave him, but he had too kind a heart to do so cruel a thing, even to his
worst enemy.

He fought the lion and killed it, but not before it had torn his arm with its sharp teeth.

The noise of the fight awoke Oliver, who saw that Orlando was risking his own life to save him.
Ashamed of what he had done to Orlando, Oliver told his brother how sorry he was, and begged his
pardon, and they became friends. Orlando took his brother to the duke, and he was fed and clothed
there.

When Rosalind saw a handkerchief stained with Orlando’s blood, and realised that he had been
wounded, she fainted. Thinking that she was a boy, those who were near her, laughed at her for being
so womanish.

But soon Rosalind told them her secret.

When the duke learned that Rosalind was his own daughter, and Orlando learned that the
shepherd boy was his own fair Rosalind, there were no other men in all France as happy as the duke and
Orlando.

Rosalind and Orlando were married at once, and on the same day Oliver, who was truly sorry for
the bad deeds he had done, was married to Celia. Just then a messenger came to the duke and said that
his brother, Celia’s father had been sorry for his cruelty and had returned his brother’s dukedom to him.

So they were all happy there under the green trees.

NOTES:

duke — repuor;
jester — wyrT;

shepherd — nacryx.

Exercises and Agsighments on the
Text

Yopaxuenus v 3aganus 1Mo TekcTy

Assignment # One — 3adanue Ne 1
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Haiioume 6 mexcme aHenulickue 3K8UBANEHMbl CNeOVIOWUX ClO8, BbIPANCEHUN U
000pomos:

BbIrHaN U3 ee BNageHun — ;

3abblBana o neyanu — ;

CamMbI NpeaaHHbI Apyr — ;

ObIBLIMI repuor — ;

€CTb CO CIyramm — ;

He mor 6osiblue TepneTb — ;

MCKaTb C4acCTbA — ’

1.
2
3
4
5. BO3MOKHOCTb Y4YUTbCA — ;
6
7
8
9

NOCCoOpUANCH — ;

10. np1cBOUTbL AEHbIN — ;

11. ocmenmBanncb 6opoTbCA C HUM— ;

12. coBepLINT XOPOLLUMNI NOCTYNOK — ;

13. HaBepHsAKa ybbeT ero — ;

14. B BOCXMLLEHUN — ;

15. Tem BpemeHem — ;

16. ymonana repuyora — ;

17. nepeopaenacb AepeBeHCKOW AeBYLIKON — ;

18. 6ogpo waran Bnepeay — ;

19. npeaynpeaunn o6 onacHocTn — ;

20. BCce cBOU cbeperkeHuns — ;

21. nuposanu — ;

22. npeaaHHbIn cnyra — ;

23. 6bl/1 NOXOX Ha HULLEro — ;

24, Kkpenko cnan — ;

25. cTblgAch TOro, YTO OH caenan — ;

26. NoONpocuA NPOLLeHnA —

Assignment # Two — 3adanue Ne 2

Hatime pycckue 2K8uU8aieHMbl C1e0VIOWUX CILO8, 8bIPANCEHU U 0O0POMO8 U3 MeKCma,
Cocmasbme no mpu npeoioHCeHUs ¢ KAHCObIM UX IMUX 000POMO8:

instead of doing smth. — ;

neither... nor... — ;
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be cruel (nice, kind) to smb. —

go on doing smth. —

make up one’s mind —

do one’s best —

take place -

persuade smb. —

refuse smth. (to do smth.) —

expect smb. to do smth. —
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be angry with smb. — ;

let smb. do smth. — ;

be a comfort to smb. — ;

punish smb. for smth. — ;

risk one’s life — ;

be sorry for smth. — ;

Assignment # Three — 3adanue Ne 3

Omeemvme Ha Cﬂedyiou;ue 680Nnpocyvl.

1) Who were Rosalind and Celia?

2) How did it happen that Rosalind’s father found himself in the Forest of Arden?

3) What were the relations between Oliver and Orlando?
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4) How did Oliver make the wrestler promise to kill Orlando?

5) What was the result of the wrestling match and why was not the duke pleased to bark
who the winner was?

6) Prove that Celia’s father was very cruel and unkind to Rosalind.

7) What was the girls’ plan?

8) Who cheered the girls up when they were going through the forest?

9) How did Adam help Orlando? Can you call him a true friend?

10) How did Rosalind's father get acquainted with Orlando?

11) Did Orlando recognise his fiancee when he met her in the forest?

12) Prove that in spite of his brother's cruelty and unjustice Orlando helped him when he was in danger.

13) How did the story end?

Assignment # Four — 3aoanue No 4

Ilepeckasicume pacckas om auya: 1) Opnanoo, 2) Onusepa; 3) Pozanunowr.

Assignment # Five — 3ao0anue Ne 5

Ilepeckasicume ochogHoe codepicanue pacckasa He 6oiee, uem 8 15 npeonosiceHusix.

Assignment # Six — 3adanue Ne 6

Hatioume 6 mexcme 6ce I'nazonvl HenpasuivHo2o cnpsdiceHus u 3anonnume maoauyy,

oasas ux opmel. Ileped evinonnenuem Ynpasxxcuenuti 5 u 6 Bam neobxooumo

o3Hakomumucs ¢ napacpagpamu 48, 49, 50 u 51 5 Inaswvr «Inacony 1 Yacmu «Hacmu

Peuu ¢ Anenuiickom sazvike» Ilepeoco moma Eounoco I pammamuueckoeo komniexca.
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Bcro neobxooumyro Bam cnpasounyro ungopmayuro Bui moowceme natimu 6o Bmopom
mome 6 Ilpunoowcenusx «Tabauya Bpemen Axmusnoco u Ilaccusnozo 3an0206».
IIposepums ynompebnenue ¢hopm npuuacmui 1 u 2 (Participles 1 & 2) (smopas,
mpemuvsi U uemeepmas Gopmel 2n1a2on08) MmoxcHo no Tabnuyam “Cnpsowcenue
Henpasunvnvix enaconos». Obpawaro enumanue Ha mo, umo mabauy 06e. 8 00HOU
0aemcsi CNUCOK HEeNpAasulibHuIX 21a20J108 8 AlpasUmHOM NOpSOKe — ee 51 PeKOMEHOYI0
NpUMEeHAmMb O0Jisl OLICMPO20 NOUCKA HE0DOXO00UMO20 C108d, 80 6MOPOL 21A201bl OAHbL NO
munam obpazoeanuss Gopmvl — HA dmy MaodIUYY HeoOXO00UMO OPUEHMUPOBAMbCS NPU
3ayUU8AHUU HAUZYCND:

Assignment # Seven — 3aodanue Ne 7
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Haiioume 6 mexcme e6ce Ilpeonoowcenuss 6 Ilpoweowem Cogepuennom epemenu (Past
Perfect Tense). Ilepeo evinonnenuem Ynpasxcuenuss Bam neobxooumo 03HAKOMUMbBCSL C
napaepagamu 57, 58, 59 u 60 «Tpemwvs epynna Bpemen — Perfect Tensesy 5 [naewi
«lnacony 1 Yacmu «Hacmu Peuu 6 Anenuiickom sazwike» Illepsoco moma Eounoco
I'pammamuueckozo komnaexca. Bcro nHeobxooumyro Bam cnpagounyro ungopmayuro Boi
Mmooiceme Havumu 60 Bmopom mome 6 Ilpunoscenusx «Tabruya Bpemen Axmusnoco u
Ilaccusnozco 3a102086».

Assignment # Eight — 3aoanue Ne 8

Ilepeseoume na pycckutl A3vIK cledyroujee NpeonodceHue:
“‘He gave him neither money nor any chance of learning anything”.

e

Ilepeoenaiime credyrowue npednodicenus, Ucnov3ys koncmpykyuto “neither... nor...

1) The wrestler couldn't speak. He couldn't move either.

2) Rosalind couldn't stay in the castle. She couldn't leave her cousin alone there.

3) Orlando didn't recognise Rosalind. He didn't recognise her sister either.

4) Celia's fafter didn't give Oliver any land. He didn't let him stay at his court.

Assignment # Nine — 3aoanue Ne 9

Ilepeseoume cnedyroujee npednodiceHue:
"The more the duke thought of these things, the angrier he grew."

Cocmasvme cobcmeerHvle NPedslodCeHUsL CO CAeOYUWUMU 0bopomamu. the sooner... the
better...; the more... the better...; the more... the worse...; the less... the better....

Assignment # Ten — 3aoanue Ne 10

Iloocomosbmecs Kk 006CYIHCOEHUIO CIEOYIOUUX NPEOTIONCEHULL:

1. Characterise Oliver. What do you think caused his cruelty towards his brother? What role can envy
play in the relations of people?
2. Compare the two brothers and the two sisters. What was different in their attitude to each other?
In fairy-tales good always wins over evil. And what about real life?
4. Read the following lines from Shakespeare's poem and explain how you understand them:
This above all: to thine own self true,

w

And it must follow, as the night the day,

Thou canst not then be false to any man.
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Love all, trust a few, do wrong to none.

Assignment # Eleven — 3aoanue Ne 11

3aoatime sonpocwl K C108aM, 8bl0€NEHHLIM NOOYEPKHYMbIM HAKIOHHLIM WPUDMOM:

1) Rosalind's father and his friends led a happy life in the Forest of Arden.

2) The girls praised Orlando.for his bravery.

3) They made up their minds to travel to the Forest of Arden.

4) Oliver was planning how to kill Orlando.
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Unit 8

LHE BANKS OF

SACRAMENTO
by J. London

"Young" Jerry was a fourteen-year-old boy with red hair, blue eyes and freckled skin. Together
with his father "old" Jerry, he lived on the bank of the Sacramento in California. "Old" Jerry was an old
sailor who had been given a job at the Yellow Dream mine and was in charge of the ore cables that ran
across the river. On the bank one could see a steel drum round which the endless cable passed. An ore
car, when loaded, crossed the river, carried down by its own weight and dragging back, at the same
time, an empty car travelling in the opposite direction along the same cable. The Yellow Dream mine
had been abandoned and the cars were no longer used for carrying ore, but "old" Jerry still remained
watchman over the cables.

That morning "young" Jerry was alone in the cabin. His f ather had gone to San Francisco and was
not to be back till next day. It was raining heavily all the morning, and Jerry decided not to go out, when,
at one o'clock, there came a knock at the door. A man and a woman came in. They were Mr. and Mrs.
Spillane, ranchers who lived a dozen miles back from the river.

"Where is your father?" Spillane asked, and Jer- ry noticed that both he and his wife were excited.
"San Francisco," Jerry answered briefly.

"We've got to get across, Jerry," Spillane continued, taking his wife by the hand, "her father's
been badly wounded in an explosion; he's dying. We've just been told. Will you run the cable for us?"

Jerry hesitated. Of course, he had worked t'he cable many times, but only with the help of his
father.

I'll stand for the risk," Spillane added, "don't you see, kid, we've simply got to cross."

Jerry nodded his head. They all came out into the raging storm, and the man and the woman got
into the ore car.

"Let's get started!" Spillane shouted to make himself heard above the roar of the wind. Jerry
slowly and carefully let the car go, and the drum began to go round and round. Jerry carefully watched
the cable passing round the drum.

"Three hundred feet" he was saying to himself, "three hundred and fifty, four hundred -" The
cable stopped. Something had gone wrong.

The boy examined the drum closely and found nothing the matter with it. Probably it was the
drum on the other side that had been damaged ...

He was afraid at the thought of the man and woman hanging out there over the river in the
driving

rain. Nothing remained but to cross over to the other side by the Yellow Dragon cable some
distance up the river. He was already wet to the skin as he ran along the path to the Yellow Dragon.
Safely across, he found his way up the other bank to the Yellow Dream cable. To his surprise, he found
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the drum in perfect working order. From this side the car with the Spillanes was only two hundred and
fifty feet away. So he shouted to the man to examine the trolley of his car. The answering cry came in a
few moments.

"She's all right, kid!"
Nothing remained but the other car which hung somewhere beyond Spillane's car.

The boy's mind had been made up. In the toolbox by the drum he found an old monkey-wrench, a
short iron bar and a few feet of rope. With the rope he made a large loop round the cable on which the
empty car was hanging. Then he swung out over the river, sitting in the rope loop and began pulling
himself along the cable by his hands. And in the midst of the storm which half blinded him he arrived at
the empty car in his swinging loop. A single glance was enough to show him what was wrong. The front
trolley wheel had jumped off the cable, and the cable had been jammed between the wheel and the
fork. It was clear that the wheel must be removed from the fork. He began hammering on the key that
held the wheel on its axle. He hammered at it with one hand and tried to hold himself steady with the
other. The wind kept on swinging his body and often made his blows miss. At the end of half an hour the
key had been hammered clear but still he could not draw it out. A dozen times it seemed to him that he
must give up in despair. Then an idea came to him — he searched his pockets and found a nail. Putting
the nail through the looped head of the key he easily pulled it out. With the help of the iron bar Jerry got
the wheel free, replaced the wheel, and by means of the rope pulled up the car till the trolley once more
rested properly on the cable.

He dropped out of his loop and down into the car which began moving at once. Soon he saw the
bank rising before him and the old familiar drum going round and round.

Jerry climbed out and made the car fast. Then he sank down by the drum and burst out crying. He
cried because he was tired out, because his hands were all cut and cold and because he was so excited.
But above all that was the feeling that he had done well, that the man and woman had been saved.

Yes, Jerry was proud of himself and at the same time sorry that his father had not been there to

see!
NOTES:
1. freckled — BecHywuaTbIi;
2. cable —T1poc;
3. ore car — BaroHeTKa;
4. monkey-wrench — pa3BogHol Kntoy;
5. key—30. wWnauHT;
6. axle—ocsb.

Exercises and Agsignments on the
Text
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YnpaxsaeHus u 3a1aHus no TekcTy

Assignment # One — 3aoanue Ne [

Haiioume 6 mexcme aHenulickue 3K8UBANEHMbl CIeOVIOWUX ClO8, BbIPANCEHUN U
000pomos:

PbI*KEBOMOCHIN — ;

oTBeYas 3a — ;

nog TAXecCTbio CO6CTBEHHOrO BEca — ’

NPOTUBOMNO/IOXKHOM HaNnpaBaeHUU — ’

6blna 3abpoweHa — ;

LLIEN CUbHbIN AOXKAb — ;

nepebpaTbca Ha apyroii beper — ;

yNpaBAsTb TPOCOM — ;

L 0 N o Uk~ W N

Konebancs — ;

=
o

. BHUMATENIbHO Haﬁmop,an - ;

=
[y

. emy bbl/I0 CTPALIHO NPU O4HOM MbIC/M O... — ;

[EEN
N

. MPOMOK 40 HUTKN — ;

[N
w

. O4HOro B3rnaga 6b110 AO0CTAaTOYHO — ;

[EEN
S

. COCKOYMNOo CTpOCa — ;

[
%]

. NpoAoaXKan packaynBaTtb €ro Teso — ’

16. cgaTbCcA B OTYAAHUM —

Assignment # Two — 3adanue Ne 2

Hatime pycckue 9K8uU8aieHmul C1e0VIOWUX CILO8, 8bIPANCEHUL U 0O0POMO8 U3 MeKcma,
Cocmasbme no mpu npeodioHCeHUs ¢ KAHCObIM UX IMUX 000POMO8:

use no longer — ;

be excited — ;

be badly wounded - ;
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stand for the risk —

nod (shake) one’s head —

make oneself heard —

examine smth./smb. —

there’s something (nothing) the matter with —

nothing remained but —

be in perfect order —

make up one’s mind —
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burst out crying — ;

be proud of — ;

Assignment # Three — 3adanue Ne 3

Omeembme Ha cedyoujue 60npocs.

1) What was “old” Jerry in charge of?

2) What made ore cars move along the cable?

3) Who knocked at the door of Jerry's house one morning when “old” Jerry was away?

4) Why did Mr. and Mrs. Spillane have to cross the river?

5) Could Jerry work the cable? Why did he hesitate? Why did he agree at last?

6) What happened suddenly?

7) What did Jerry find out when he examined the drum?

8) What was Jerry’s plan?

9) What was wrong with the car? How long did it take Jerry to repair it?

10) Why did Jerry burst out crying when everything was over?

Assignment # Four — 3aoanue No 4
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Ilepeckasicume pacckas om nuya. 1) Howceppu, 1) omya Hoceppu, 2) [-na Cnunnsiina.
Assignment # Five — 3aoanue Ne 5

Hatioume 6 mexcme e6ce I'nazonvl nHenpasunvno2o cnpsdceHus u 3anoanume maobauyy,
oasas ux ¢oopmwi. Ilepeo evinonnenuem Ynpasicnenus Bam neobxooumo oznakomumuvcs ¢
napazpagamu 48, 49, 50 u 51 5 I'naswvr «Inazon» 1 Yacmu «Hacmu Peuu 6 Anenutickom
azvikey» llepsoco moma Eounozo I’ pammamuueckoco xomniexca. Bcio neobxooumyro Bam
cnpagounylo ungopmayuro Bul moowceme natimu 6o Bmopom mome 6 Ilpunoscenusix
«Tabnuya Bpemen Axmusnoeo u Ilaccuenoco 3anozosy. Ilposepumsv ynompebienue
Gopm npuuacmuii 1 u 2 (Participles 1 & 2) (smopas, mpemvs u uemsepmas gopmol
enazonos) moxcno no Tabauyam “Cnpsocenue Henpasunvnvix enaconos». Obpawaio
BHUMAHUE HA Mo, 4mo mabauy 0ee: 8 0OHOU 0aemcs CNUCOK HeNpasuibHbIX 21a20J108 8
angasumuom nopsioke — ee s PEeKOMEeHOYI0 HNpumMeHsmv Oas Oblcmpoco NoUcKa
He0OX00UMO020 C108A, 80 8MOPOU 21a20abl 0AHbl N0 MUNAM 00pA308aHus Gopmvl — HA
amy mabauyy Heobxo0UMo OPUEHMUPOBAMbCA NPU 3AYYUBAHUU HAUZYCIb.!
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Assignment # Six — 3adanue Ne 6

3aoaiime 6onpocel K c108am, 8blOEIEHHBIM NOOYEPKHYMbIM HAKILOHHLIM UWPUDMOM:

1) | was going fishing with Gavin.

2) We met early in the morning.

3) We walked side by side through the quiet village to the lake.

4) My father has had trouble in the business.

Assignment # Seven — 3adanue Ne 7

TIlompenupyiimecv 6 pabome co credylOWUMU MOOEIAMU, 3AKOHYUMe Cledyiouue
NpPeonoNCeHUs "

1) Itis perfectly impossible to...

2) Itis perfectly clear that...

3) Itis enough that...

4) ltis beyond my power to...

Assignment # Eight — 3aoanue Ne 8

Obcyoume credyrowue membl:

1) Was Jerry running a risk when he agreed to take the Spillanes across the river? He
could have refused to help them, couldn't he? Why didn't he do it?

2) How does Jerry's behaviour characterise him? Make a character sketch of the boy.

3) Is bravery always connected with unselfishness? Give your grounds.
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4) Jerry tried to be like his father, did not he? Which lines in the text prove it? How do
you imagine Jerry's father?

Assignment # Nine — 3aoanue Ne 9

Haiioume 6 mexcme ece npeonogicenusi, cooepacawue Past Perfect u Past Perfect
Passive. Cpasnume ux. Ileped evinonnenuem Ynpasicnenus Bam neobxooumo
osHakomumucs ¢ napazpagamu 48, 49, 50 u 51 5 I'nasvr «lnacon» 1 Yacmu «Hacmu
Peuu 6 Amnenuiickom azvike» Ilepsoco moma Eoumozo I pammamuueckozo xomniexca.
Bcio neobxooumyro Bam cnpasounyro ungopmayuio Bui moowceme natimu 6o Bmopom
mome 6 Ilpunoscenusx «Tabnuya Bpemen Axmuenoco u Ilaccusnozo 3ano2oex.
IIposepums ynompebnenue gopm npuuacmui 1 u 2 (Participles 1 & 2) (emopas,
mpemvsi U uemeepmas Gopmel 21a2ono8) Mmoxcno no Tabnuyam “Cnpsorcenue
Henpasunvuvix enaconos». Obpawaio enumanue Ha mo, umo mabauy 06e. 8 00HOU
0aemcsi CRUCOK HeNnpasuibHbIX 21d20Nl08 8 AlpasumnHom nopsioke — ee s PeKoMeHOYI0
npumenams 0Jisi ObICMPO2O NOUCKA HEeO0OX0OUMO20 CN08d, 80 8MOPOU 21A20Nbl OAHbl NO
munam obpazoeanuss Gopmvl — HA My MAOIUYY HE0OXO0OUMO OPUEHMUPOBAMbC NPU
3ayuu8aHuU HAU3yCcmo.

Assignment # Ten — 3aoanue Ne 10

Cocmasbme nian u nepeckasxcume cooepaicanue mexcma 6 15-20 npednodsceHusx.

Assignment # Eleven — 3adanue Ne 11

Hatioume 6 mexcme sce npeonosicenus, cooepacawue Complex Object.

Assignment # Twelve — 3a0anue Ne 12

Ilepeoenatime npeonoicenus 6 sonpocel ¢ okonuanusmu (Disjunctive questions):

1) The cars were no longer used for carrying ore.
2) Mr. Spillane and his wife were excited.

3) Letus get started!

4) You will run the cable for us.

5) He found the drum in perfect working order.
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Unit9
A SERVICE OF LOVE by 0. Henry

Joe Larrabee dreamed of becoming a great artist. Even when he was six, people
in the little western town where he lived used to say, "Joe has great talent, he will
become a famous artist." At twenty, he left his home town and went to New York. He
had his dreams — but very little money.

Delia had her dreams too. She played the piano so well in the little southern village where she

lived that her family said, "She must finish her musical training in New York." With great difficulty they
collected enough money to send her north "to finish".

Joe and Delia got acquainted at a friend's house where some art and music students had gathered
to discuss art, music and the newest plays. They fell in love with each other, and in a short time they
married.

Mr. and Mrs. Larrabee began their married life in a little room. But they vrere happy, for they had
their Art, and they had each other. Joe was painting in, he class of the great Magister. Mr. Magister got a
lot of money for his pictures — and he took a lot of money for his lessons. Delia was taking piano lessons
from the great Rosenstock, and he was taking a lot of money from Delia.

The two young dreamers were very, very happy while their money lasted. But it didn't last very
long. Soon, they didn't have enough to pay for their lessons and eat three times a day. When one loves
one's Art, no service seems too hard. So Delia decided she must stop taking lessons and give lessons
herself. She began to look for pupils. One evening, she came home very excited, with shining eyes.

"Joe, dear," she announced happily, "I've got a pupil. General Pinkney — | mean — his daughter,
Clementina. He's very rich, and they have a wonderful house. She's so beautiful — she dresses in white;
and she's so nice and pleasant! I'm going to give her three lessons a week; and just think, Joe! Five
dollars a lesson. Now, dear, don't look so worried, and let's have supper. I've bought some very nice
fish."

But Joe refused to listen to her. "That's all right for you, Dellie, but all wrong for me," he
protested. "Do you suppose I'm going to let you work while | continue to study Art? No! Never! | can get
a job as a mechanic or clean windows. I'll get some kind of work."

Delia threw her arms around him. "Joe, dear, you mustn't think of leaving Mr. Magister and your
Art. | am not giving up music. The lessons won't interfere with my music. While | teach, | learn, and | can
go back to Rosenstock when | get a few more pupils."

"All right," said Joe. "But giving lessons isn't Art."
"When one loves one's Art, no service seems too hard," said Delia.

During the next week, Mr. and Mrs. Larrabee had breakfast very early. Joe was painting some
pictures in Central Park, and he needed the morning light especially, he said. Time flies when you love
Art, and it was usually seven o'clock in the evening when Joe returned home. At the end of the week,
Delia, very proud but a little tired, put fifteen dollars on the table. "Sometimes," she said, "Clementina is
a very dif ficult pupil. And she always wears white. I'm tired of seeing the same colour."
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And then Joe, with the manner of Monte Cristo, pulled eighteen dollars out of his pocket and put
it on the table too. "l sold one of my pictures to a man from Washington," he said. "And now, he wants a
picture of the East River to take with him to Washington."

"I'm so glad you haven't given up your Art, dear," Delia said. "You are sure to win! Thirty-three
dollars! We have never had so much money to spend."

The next Saturday evening, Joe came home first. He put his money on the table and then washed
what seemed to look like a lot of paint from his hands. Half an hour later, Delia arrived. There was a big
bandage on her right hand. "Dellie, dear, what has happened? What is the matter with your hand?" Joe
asked.

Delia laughed, but not very happily. "Clementina," she explained, "asked me to have lunch with
her and the General af ter our lesson. She's not very strong, you know, and when she was giving me
some tea, her hand shook and she spilled a lot of very hot water over my hand. But General Pinkney
bandaged my hand himself. They were both so sorry. Oh, Joe, did you sell another picture?" She had
seen the money on the table.

"Yes," said Joe. "To the man from Washington. What time this afternoon did you burn your hand,
Dellie?"

"Five o'clock, I think," said Delia. "The iron — the water was very hot. And Clementina cried, and
General Pinkney..."

Joe put his arms round Delia. "Where are you working, Dellie? Tell me," he asked in a serious
voice.

Delia was about to say something, but-suddenly tears appeared in her eyes and she began to cry.
"I couldn't get any pupils," she said. "And | didn't want you to stop taking lessons, so | got a job ironing
shirts in the big laundry on Twenty-Fourth Street. This afternoon, | burned my hand with a hot iron.
Don't be angry with me, Joe. | did it for your Art. And now, you have painted those pictures for the rrian
from Washington..."

"He isn't from Washington," said Joe slowly.

"It makes no difference where he is from," said Delia. "How clever you are, Joe! How did you
guess that | wasn't giving music lessons?"

“I guessed”, Joe said, "because about five o'clock this afternoon, | sent some oil up to the ironing-
room. They said a girl had burned her hand. You see, dear, | work as a mechanic in that same laundry on
Twenty-Fourth Street."

“And the man from Washington...?”

“Yes, dear”, Joe said. “The man from Washington and General Pinkney are both creations of the
same art, but you cannot call it painting or music”. And they both began to laugh.

“You know, dear”, Joe said. “When one loves one’s Art, no service seems...”

”n n

But Delia stopped him with her hand on his mouth. “No”, she said, “just — “when one loves”.
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NOTES:

1. bandage — noBsska;
2. laundry — npayeyHas.

Exerciges and Aggignments on the
Text

YopaxxkaeHud u 3agaHus 0o TekcTy

Assignment # One — 3aoanue No 1

Haiioume 6 mexcme awnenutickue 35K8UBAIEHMbL CAEOYIOUUX CILOB, BbLIPANCEHUU U
000pomos:

mMedTan Ctatb Xy40OXKHUKOM — ’

norosapueann — ;

MY3blKaJ/ibHOe 06paaosaHme— ’

nocnegHune nbecbl — ;

O4YeHb B3BO/IHOBAHHAA — ;

M CnywaTtb He XoTen — ;

6pPOCUTb 3aHATUSA MY3bIKON — ;

1.
2
3
4
5. 6pana ypoku urpbl Ha dopTenunaHo — ;
6
7
8
9

Bpems 6eXnT 6bicTpo — ;

10. yTO cnyumnoce? — ;

11. nponnna KNNATOK Ha PYKY — ;

12. cobupanacb 4TO-TO CKas3aTb — ;

13. rnagutb pybaLlKkm — ;

14. He BaXXHO, OTKy4a OH — ;

15. BblAYMaHHblE NEPCOHANKM —

Assignment # Two — 3aoanue Ne 2

Haiime pycckue sK6ueanenmsi ciedylowux 108, 8blpadceHuti u 060pomos u3 mekcma,
Cocmasbme no mpu npeonodceHus ¢ KaxicObiM Ux 3mux 0b6opomos:

72



with great difficulty —

get acquainted —

fall in love with smb. —

last for a long time —

stop doing smth. —

to announce smth. —

look worried —

let smb. do smth. —

be tired of smth. (doing smth.) —
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ask in a serious voice — ;

be angry with smb. — ;

guess smth. — ;

Assignment # Three — 3aoanue Ne 3

Ckaoicume, ucmuHubl U credylowue ymeepowcoenus. Ecau ymeepowcoenus nesephul,
ucnpagome ux:

1. Joe and Delia came to New York from the same town.

Yes, No

2. After they married, both of them stopped taking lessons.

Yes, No

3. Delia soon found a pupil, named Clementina.

Yes, No

4. Joe had not enough courage to tell Delia the truth about his job.

Yes, NO

5. The moment Joe saw Delia’s bandaged hand, he understood everything.

Yes, NO

6. Delia got angry when she learned about Joe’s job.

Yes, NO

Assignment # Four — 3adanue Ne 4
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Omeemvme Ha cnedyroujue 80NPOCHL.

1) Why did Joe Larrabee and Delia come to New York?

2) Where did the young men get acquainted?

3) In what way did they continue their education after marriage?

4) What made Delia give up her music lessons?

5) Why was Joe disappointed when he learnt about Delia's plan?

6) What was Joe's plan? Did Delia know about it?

7) Every week Joe brought some money. How did he explain it to Delia?

8) What happened one day?

9) How did Joe guess the truth?

Assignment # Five — 3a0anue Ne 5

Hartioume 6 mexcme 6ce I'nazonvl HenpasunvHo2o cnpsdiceHus u 3anonnume maobauyy,
oasas ux ¢hopmoui. Ileped evinornenuem smozo Ynpaogichenus Bam Heobxooumo
o3Hakomumuvcs ¢ napacpagpamu 48, 49, 50 u 51 5 Inaswvr «Inacony 1 Yacmu «Hacmu
Peuu 6 Anenutickom szvike» Ilepgoco moma Eounoco Ipammamuyeckoeo Komniekca.
Bcio neobxooumyro Bam cnpagounyro ungpopmayuro Bl moowceme natimu 6o Bmopom
mome 6 Ilpunosxcenusx «Tabruya Bpemen Axmuenoco u Ilaccusnozo 3ano2o6x.
IIposepums ynompeonenue gopm npuuacmuti 1 u 2 (Participles 1 & 2) (emopas,
mpemvsi U uemeepmas opmul 2nazonos) modxcro no Tabauyam  “Cnpsoicerue
Henpasunvnoix enaconos». Obpawaio eéHumanue Ha mo, umo madauy ose. 8 OOHOU
0aemcsi CNUCOK HeNpAasuibHulX 21a20]108 8 AlPAGUMHOM HOPSAOKe — ee 51 PeKOMEHOYI0
NpUMeHAmMb 0Jis1 OLICMPO2O NOUCKA He0OXO00UMO20 Cl08d, 80 6MOPOL 21A20/bl 0aHbl NO
munam oopazoeanuss Gopmvl — HA My MAOIUYY HEOOXO0OUMO OPUEHMUPOBAMbC NPU
3ayYUBAHUU HAUZYCIND:
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Assignment # SiX — 3aoanue N 6

Haiioume 6 mexcme e6ce Ilpeonoxcenus ¢ I'epynouem (Gerund). Cm. uncmpyxyuu x
AHANO2UYHBIM 3A0AHUAM NPEObLOYUUX PA30ETLO08.

Assignment # Seven — 3adanue Ne 7

Hszmenume cmpykmypy npeonodxcenuss makum o0pazom, 4moovl 6 Hux Obll NPUMEHEeH
Cmpaoamenvuwiil 3an102 (Passive Voice):

1) I’'m going to give her three lessons a week.

2) At the end of the week Delia put fifteen dollars on the table.
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3) Joe sold one of his pictures to a man from Washington.

4) She spilled a lot of hot water over Delia’s hand.

5) About 5 o'clock this afternoon Joe sent some oil up to the ironing room.

Assignment # Eight — 3ao0anue Ne 8

Haiioume 6 mexcme 6ce npeonocenus, cooepocawue Ilpsmyro peus (Direct Speech) u
nepedenaume ux 6 Koceennyio peun (Indirect Speech). [Ilepeo ewvinonnenuem
Ynpaoicnenusa Bam neobxooumo oznaxomumucs ¢ napazpagamu 69, 70 u 71 «llpamasn u
Koceennas peuvy 5 Inasvr «lnazony 1 Yacmu «Hacmu Peuu 6 Anenuiickom s3vikey
Ilepeoco moma Eounoeo [ pammamuueckoeo xomniexca. Bcio neobxooumyio Bam
cnpagounyto ungopmayuro Bul mosiceme natimu 6o Bmopom mome 6 Ilpunoswcenusx.

Assignment # Nine — 3aoanue Ne 9

Ilepeckasicume paccxas om auya: 1) Hoco, 2) /[iauu.

Assignment # Ten — 3aoanue Ne 10

Iloocomosbmecv Kk 06Cyacoenuo ¢ npenooasamenem u opy2umu uienamu Baweti epynnol
crnedyrowux mem. Cocmagovme niau:

1. Explain the meaning of the phrase "When one loves one's Art, no service seems too hard." Do you
agree with it? Give your grounds.

2. Why do you think Delia shortened this phrase and said, "just — when one loves"?

3. Why did the author name the story "A Service of Love"?

4. What kind of people, to your mind, can sacrifice something for the good of others?

Assignment # Eleven — 3adanue Ne 11

Kpamxko nepeckasicume pacckas. Bvl 0ondwcnbl ynoscumocs 6 15 npednodcenui.
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Unit 10
THE BOY NEXT DOOR by J.

London

Sladen Morris is the boy next door. He has grown very tall now, and all the girls think he is
wonderful. But | remember when he refused to comb his hair and to force him to wash his face. Of
course, he remembers me too; whenever | appear in a new dress and special hair-do, he says, "Well,
well, look at Betsy, she's almost grown-up. But | remember her first party, when she was so excited that
she dropped her ice-cream on her best dress, and she ran home crying."

So when | say that Sladen Morris didn't mean anything to me, | am quite serious. But | had known
him so long that | felt | had to take care of him — just as | feel towards Jimmy, my little brother. That's
the only f eeling | had — neighbourly friendship —when | tried to save Sladen from Merry Ann Milburn.

Merry Ann — I'm sure her real name was simply Mary; but Mary wasn't poetic enough for her. She
came to Springdale to visit her aunt and uncle; her aunt brought her to our house f or tea. She looked
wonderful — | always tell the truth — with her bright, blonde hair and big blue eyes. And she said many
high, fine things. But as soon as her aunt and mother left the room, Merry Ann changed, as T. knew she
would. "What do people do f or entertainment in this dead town?" That was the first thing she said. And
then —"It's so far from New York!"

"Oh!" | said, "we have dances at the Country Club every Saturday, and swimming and tennis
and..."

She interrupted me: "Are there any interesting men?"

| had never before thought of them as "interesting," or as "men" either. But | started naming all
the boys in town. "There is Benny Graham," | said, "and there is Carter Williams, and Dennis Brown, and
Bill Freeman. All quite interesting." That was a lie, but not a very big one. | did not name Sladen Morris,
because | had already decided to save him from that terrible girl.

At that moment, Merry Ann looked out of our window, just as Sladen came across the grass
towards our house — probably to invite me to play a game of tennis, as usual. He came in without asking
for permission. "Ah!" he said, his eyes on blonde Merry Ann — he didn't even notice me — "where did you
come from, my beauty?"

"From New York," she answered, "but | don't want to go back there — not now!"

Not too clever, | think, but he seemed happy to hear it. "l don't remember why | decided to come
here," he said. "But now I'm sure a good angel brought me."

"And did the good angel push that tennis racket into your hand?" | asked.

"Oh, yes, my tennis racket," he said, looking foolish. He still didn't look at me. "Do you play
tennis?" he asked Merry Ann.

“Very little”, Merry Ann said. “I will need help”.
“What about a game now?” Sladen asked.

"I'd love a game — but I'll have to go home and change my clothes."
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"I'll take you home and wait for you," Sladen offered.

"Good-bye, Betsy," Merry Ann said. "Please, tell your mother how much | enjoyed this afternoon
at your house."

"And please come often," | said — and | thought to myself, I'd like to give you a cup of tea next
time with a little poison in it.

Well, the result of this conversation was that suddenly | f elt very bad, and | ran to my bedroom
and threw myself on my bed, and | cried. Mother can hear tears through three walls and soon | heard
her voice at the door. "Betsy, dear," she said, "May | come in?"

"Of course," | answered. "But I've got a terrible headache."
"I have an idea," Mother began. "Perhaps you'd like to invite your friends to a party here?"

A party. For a whole year | had asked Mother to let me give a party, and she had always
answered, "It will cost too much," or "Wait until you are eighteen," and a dozen other reasons; now she
was suggesting a party herself.

Well, after that everywhere | went, there was Merry Ann with Sladen Morris behind her, like a big
dog. | had always played tennis with Sladen whenever the weather wasn't wet; now | had to look for a
partner, and | had to watch him playing with Merry Ann. She was a terrible player: she didn't even hold
her racket correctly. But she wore those little white tennis dresses that cinema actresses wear in the
pictures and, to tell the truth, she looked very nice.

| knew that the party would be a mistake with Merry Ann among the guests; but it was Mother's
favourite subject. So | invited all the "nice young people", as Mother calls them, to come to our house
for dinner before the Country Club dance.

They all agreed to come — six boys who wanted a chance to be with Merry Ann, and five girls,
including me, who came because they didn't want anybody to think they were afraid of the Merry
enemy.

Mother bought me a new dress, with a very wide skirt: it was not the simple, girlish dress that my
mother usually chooses for me. And my father bought me flowers to wear in my hair, which was
combed up. Before the guests arrived, | looked forward to the dinner with more bravery than | had
expected, because the new dress and the hair-do gave me strength. But that was before they arrived.
When they came and | saw Merry Ann holding Sladen's arm, my courage left me. My dress was nothing,
compared with the clouds of red chiffon that hung on Merry Ann's shoulders and swam around her.

"Well, well, look at Betsy," Sladen started. "But | remember her when..."

"I remember also," | interrupted coldly, "so you needn't spend your time telling us about that
incident a hundred years ago."

Merry Ann monopolised the conversation, and she talked only with the boys — turning her big
blue eyes first on one then another. "What's the Country Club like?" she asked. "I have gone dancing
only at New York clubs, so | don't know much about small-town clubs."

The dinner was as uninteresting as | had expected. When it was over, everybody went to the
Country Club, feeling a little ashamed that it couldn't compare with anything in New York.

All the boys danced with me — they had to, because they were my guests. The evening was very
warm, and little by little everybody began to go outside to sit around the swimming pool. Dennis Brown
and | went out too, and we walked up and down in front of their chairs.
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It was just in front of Merry Ann that it happened. Perhaps it was an accident — | don't say she did
it on purpose — but | wasn't so near her chair, and her foot was pushed out very far. Of course | couldn't
see her foot in the dark, and | fell over it and into the pool. As | sent down, | could hear Merry Ann
laughing, and | hoped | would drown. But | knew that anybody who swam as well as | did couldn't
seriously hope for such an end to her suffering. | did not come up — | knew they were all standing there
laughing — so | swam under water to the iron ladder at the other end of the pool. | planned to run up the
ladder and then as fast as | could to the dressing-room. From there, | would go home.

When | found the ladder with my hand, | began to pull myself up. But then | discovered that my
dress was caught in the ladder. | pulled and pulled (I was still under water) but | couldn't free the dress.
And then everything became black.

When | came to myself, | was lying on my face and Sladen was pumping the water out of me. At
first | was too uncomfortable to notice anything; but then | began to take more interest in the scene. |
saw that several of the boys had offered themselves as the hero of the incident; not only Sladen’s best
suit was full of water; it was running from the suits and hands and faces of Dennis and Bill and Carter.
Even Janet, who is an athlete like me, had jumped in to pull me out.

"I'm sorry," | said, as soon as | could talk again. "It was my fault."
"No, it wasn't, but don't talk, you little fool," Sladen ordered angrily.

"Yes, keep quiet," Merry Ann said. "Everybody was so worried about you. Why did you hide at the
bottom of the pool?"

And then Sladen said something that showed he wasn't a gentleman at all. But | shall love him for
it as long as | live. "Hit her, Nora!" he said. "l am a gentleman, and besides, I'm busy."

"Oh —you terrible people!" Merry Ann cried. "l won't stay here another minute!"

"You boys can choose who is the unlucky one that takes her home," Sladen said. "Perhaps Benny
and Joe will both go in the car with her. She is too dangerous to be alone with the driver."

He rose to his feet. "Get up, Betsy," he ordered. "l think you will probably go through life all right,
if you choose a more practical swimming costume in future." The way Sladen said it made me feel
comfortable and warm, which was foolish: there was nothing especially pleasant in is words.

All of us, the wet and the dry, got into the cars. Sladen put his coat around me and took me home.

"Listen you," he said on the way. "l see that I'll have to stay nearer to you — you simply can't take
care of yourself. Better not go out of the house unless | go with you. Don't you think that's a good idea?"

For the first time in my life, | felt my strength as a weak woman, though my hair-do was wet and
ruined.

"Sladen, you saved my life. You are terribly strong and you always know what to do. And if you
want me to be with you, I'll be glad." | looked at him with an expression that | thought might have an
effect.

"You know, Betsy," Sladen continued, very seriously, "it's strange, sometimes you don't see
something that's under your own nose. It has just come to my mind that you are the best girl | know,
and I've lived next door to you for seventeen years."

He stopped the car and kissed me. It wasn't the best kind of a kiss, because we were both still wet.
But for some reason it was very romantic, and sud- denly | felt beautiful and interesting. | sat there
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looking at Sladen Morris with new eyes, probably because he suddenly didn't look at all like the boy
next door.

NOTES:

poison —Aaga,;

drown — TOHYTb;

ladder — nectHuua;
pump out — BblKaunBaTh.

PN PRE

Exerciges and Aggignments on the
Text

Yopaxnenus u 3agaHus no TekcTy

Assignment # One — 3aoanue No 1

Haiioume 6 mexcme aHenuiickue 35K8UBANEHMbl CIeOVIOWUX ClO6, BbIPANCEHUN U
000pomos:

3aCTaB/1ATb YMbIBATbCA — ;

no4yTn B3pocCnan — ;

YPOHW1a MOPOXKEHOE — ’

HUWYEero ana MeHA HE 3Ha4YnI — ;

Ha4daszia nepevyncnaTb — ’

He CnpocCus pa3peweHna — ’

c rnynbim BUg0Om — ;

1
2
3
4
5. HeAocTaToyHo 61aro3By4HO — ;
6
7
8
9

nepeoaeTbCAa — ;

10. 6pocunack Ha KpoBaTb — ;

11. y meHs yKacHo 60auT rosioBa — ;

12. TbICAYM JPYTUX NPUUUH — ;

13. npugasanm mHe cMenocTn — ;

14. caenana 3TO HAPOYHO — ;

15. cnoTKkHynacb — ;

16. KoHew, cTpagaHMAam — ;

17. nnaTbe 3aUennaochL — ;

18. npuwna B cebna — ;

19. 3anHTEepecoBasnacb nponcxoaawmm — ’
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20. He OCTaHYCb HY MUHYTbI — ;

21. KTO TOT HEeCYacTHbIN — ;

22. corpeno v yCrnoKouao MeHA — ;

23. npoxKun no coceacrtey 17 net — ;

24. NnOCMOTpPETb APYrMMU F1a3amu —

Assignment # Two — 3adanue Ne 2

atime pycckue 2x8u8anenmol c1e0yiouwux clos, 8blpadceHuti U 000pomos us mexcmad,
Cocmasbme no mpu npeodiodHCeHuUs: ¢ KAHCObIM UX IMUX 000POMO8:

take care of smb. — ;

do smth. for entertainment — ;

interrupt smb. — ;

as usual — ;

suggest smth. — ;

to tell the truth — ;

look forward to smth. — ;
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compared with — ;

feel ashamed — ;

be smb’s fault — ;

Assignment # Three — 3aoanue Ne 3

Ckaoicume, ucmuHubl U credyiowue ymeepoicoenus. Ecnu ymeepowcoenus nesephbi,
ucnpagome ux:

1. 1. Betsy and Sladen had known each other since childhood.

Yes, No

2. Betsy was sure she had the same feeling towards Sladen as towards her younger brother.

Yes, No

3. Merry Ann came on a visit to the place where Betsy lived.

Yes, No

4. Sladen fell in love with Merry Ann the moment he saw her.

Yes, NO

5. Merry Ann was a very modest girl, never sure of herself, so Betsy had to introduce her to her friends.

Yes, NO

6. Mother suggested a party as she saw that Betsy spent too much time on visits to her friends.

Yes, NO

7. Betsy's friends all looked forward to her party.

Yes, No
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8. Merry Ann wasn't invited to the party.

Yes, No

9. After dinner everybody went to the club.

Yes, No

10. Betsy enjoyed dancing.

Yes, No

11. Betsy fell into the swimming pool by accident.

Yes, No

12. Betsy, being a very good swimmer, had no difficulty in getting out of the water.

Yes, No

13. Merry Ann enjoyed her joke.

Yes, No

14. Merry Ann's aim was to win more popularity.

Yes, No

15. Betsy's friends were real friends.

Yes, No

16. Everybody liked Merry Ann even more after the party.

Yes, No

17. The incident made Sladen see everything in a new light.

Yes, No

Assignment # Four — 3aoanue No 4

Omeemvme Ha Cﬂedyiou;ue 680Nnpocyvl.

1) Describe Merry Ann. Why did she come to Springdate?

2) How did she get acquainted with Sladen Morris?

3) What happened after Sladen’s conversation with Merry Ann?

4) Who was invited to the party?
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5) How did Betsy prepare for it?

6) Why was the party uninteresting?

7) What happened in the evening?

8) Betsy was good at swimming, was not she? Why could not she get out of the water?

9) Who came to Betsy’s rescue?

10) Why was Merry Ann annoyed?

11) What did Sladen suggest?

12) What made Betsy's life interesting and beautiful again?

Assignment # Five — 3aoanue Ne 5

Hartioume 6 mexcme 6ce I'nazonvl HenpasunvHozo cnpsodiceHus u 3anonnume maobauyy,
oasas ux opmol. Ileped evinonnenuem Ynpasxcnenuni 5 u 6 Bam Heobxooumo
osHakomumucs ¢ napazpagamu 48, 49, 50 u 51 5 I'nasvr «lnacon» 1 Yacmu «HYacmu
Peuu 6 Anenutickom szvike» Ilepsoco moma Eoumoco Ipammamuyeckoeo komniekca.
Bcio neobxooumyro Bam cnpagounyro unghopmayuto Bl moowceme natimu 60 Bmopom
mome 6 Ilpunosxcenusx «Tabruya Bpemen Axmuenoco u Ilaccusnozo 3ano2o6x.
IIposepums ynompeonenue gopm npuuacmuti 1 u 2 (Participles 1 & 2) (emopas,
mpemvsi U uemeepmas opmul 2nazonos) modxcho no Tabauyam  “Cnpsoicerue
Henpasunvnoix enaconos». Obpawaio eéHumanue Ha mo, 4mo madauy osee. 8 OOHOU
0aemcsi CNUCOK HEeNpAasuUibHuIX 21420108 8 AlPABUMHOM HOPSOKe — ee sI PeKOMEHOYVI0
NpUMeHAmMb 07151 OLICMPO2O NOUCKA He0DOXO00UMO20 Cl08d, 80 6MOPOL 21A20bl 0aHbl NO
munam obpazoeanuss Gopmvl — HA My MAOAUYY HEOOXO0OUMO OPUEHMUPOBAMbC NPU
3ayYUBAHUU HAUZYCIND:
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Assignment # Six — 3aoanue Ne 6

Hatioume 6 mexcme ece Ilpeonosicenus, cooepocawue Ilpuuacmus (Participles). Bcro
Heobxooumyto Bam cnpasounyio unghopmayuro Bul moswceme naiimu 6o Bmopom mome 6
Ipunosxcenusx « Tabnuya Bpemen Akmusnozo u Ilaccugnozo 3a10208».

Assignment # SiX — 3aoanue Ne 6

Hatioume 6 mexcme ece Ilpednooicenus, coodepocawue CpasrHumenvubvle KOHCMPYKYUU
(Comparative constructions).

Assignment # Seven — 3aodanue Ne 7

3aoaiime 6onpocul Kk c108aM, 8blOEIEHHLIM NOOUEPKHYMbIM HAKIOHHBIM UPUDIMOM

1) His mother had to force him to wash his face.
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2) Betsy had always played tennis with Sladen whenever the weather wasn't wet.

3) Merry Ann has gone dancing only at New York clubs.

4) Benny and Joe will both go in the car with her.

Assignment # Eight — 3aoanue Ne 8

Haiioume 6 mexcme ece npeonoscenus, cooepacawue Ilpsmyro peus (Direct Speech) u
nepedenaume ux 6 Koceennyio peun (Indirect Speech). [Ilepeo ewvinonnenuem
Ynpaoicnenusa Bam neobxooumo oznaxomumucs ¢ napazpagamu 69, 70 u 71 «llpamasn u
Koceennas peuvy 5 Inasvr «lnazon» 1 Yacmu «Yacmu Peuu 6 Anenutickom s3vike»
Ilepeoco moma Eounoeo [ pammamuueckoeo xomniexca. Bcio neobxooumyio Bam
cnpagounyro ungopmayuro Bol mosiceme navimu 6o Bmopom mome 6 Ilpunosicenusx.

Assignment # Nine — 3aoanue Ne 9

Ilepeckasicume pacckaz om auya: 1) Cnatodena Moppuca; 2) Mopu Oun; 3) bamcu; 4)
00H020 U3 MATLYUKOB.

Assignment # Ten — 3aoanue Ne 10

Iloocomosbmecv Kk 06Cyacoenuo ¢ npenooasamenem u opy2umu uienamu Baweti epynnol
crnedyrowux mem. Cocmagovme niau:

What do you think were Betsy's feelings to Sladen and Merry Ann, though she didn't show them?

Do you agree that Merry Ann's joke was a mean one? Give your grounds.

“A friend in need is a friend indeed”. lllustrate this proverb by the episode from the story.

Is it important sometimes to look at somebody or something with new eyes? Why? Have you ever
tried to? Give examples.

E

Assignment # Eleven — 3adanue Ne 11
Kpamxo nepeckasxcume pacckas. Bol 0onoichbl yiosxxcumocs 6 15 npednodcenuil.
Assignment # Twelve — 3ao0anue Ne 12

Ilepeckasicume pazeosop bemcu u Cnstioena no nymu OOMOU HOCIe UHYUOEHMA,
ucnonv3zys Koceennyio peus (Indirect Speech).
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Unit 11
SURPRISE by J. Galsworthy

There was a time when geniuses sometimes starved. But there is no reason why a genius must
starve in our modern times. The following story of my friend, Bruce, proves that this is true. He was
almost sixty when | met him, and he was the author of about fifteen books. The few people who really
understood serious realistic literature called him 'a genius'. But Bruce was not interested in what people
thought of him or his work. He never read criticism of his books in the newspapers or magazines. He
lived alone in his small, dark, dirty room. From time to time he disappeared for several months; and
then he appeared again and began to write.

He was a tall, thin man with a face like mark Twain's: black eyebrows, a grey moustache and grey
hair. His eyes were dark brown and sad; they seemed not to belong to his face or to the world around
him. He had never married, and lived quite alone. He never had much money; and the year | am writing
about had been even worse than usual for him. His last book had been a hopeless failure. Besides, he
had had an operation, which had cost him much money and left him too weak to work. The day | went
to see him, | found him in a gloomy mood, half lying on two chairs, smoking strong cigarettes, which |
hated.

"Hello!" he said, and then continued without giving me a chance to ask after his health: "Last
night | went into a place that they call a cinema. Have you ever been in once?"

"Ever been? Do you know how long the cinema has existed? Since 1900!"

"Is that so? A terrible place, and terrible people in it. Well, last night they showed a film — what a
thing! I've never read such an idiotic story or seen such idiotic characters. How can people look at it? I'm
writing a parody on it."

"A parody on an idiotic film?"

"Yes! My heroine is one-quarter black, three quarters white. She is unbelievably beautiful, and all
the men run af ter her. Her brother, a man with a heart of stone, wants her to marry a millionaire, who
is as bad as he is. All the characters have deep, dark secrets in their lives." He laughed.

"How can you spend your time on such foolishness?" | asked.

"My time!" he answered angrily. "Who needs my time? Nobody buys my books. I'll probably
'starve to death!" He took a page of scenario and laughed again as he read it. "In that film last night they
had a race between a train and a car. I've done better: | have a race between a train, a car, an airplane
and a horse."

| began to be interested. "May | look at your scenario when you have finished it?" | asked.

"It's already finished. | enjoyed writing it so much that | couldn't sleep until | had come to the
end." He gave me the papers. "Take it, you'll have a good laugh, | hope. The heroine's secret is that she
isn't black at all. She is part Spanish, part French, and she is a southern aristocrat. And the bad brother
isn't really her brother, and the millionaire in reality is a poor man, and the man she loves, who seems to
be poor, is really rich." And he laughed until his face was red and his eyes were full of tears.

| went away worried about him, about his health and his penniless condition. How could | help
him? How could anybody help him?
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After dinner that evening, | began to read the scenario. There were thirty-five pages, and as soon
as | had read ten of them, it was clear to me that he had written a masterpiece. | knew that any good
film company would be glad to pay whatever he wanted to ask for it. "But," | thought. "if | go to him and
tell him what | am planning to do with his scenario, he'll throw it in the fire. He'll never agree to be
known as the author of such a thing. | remember how he laughed at it. How can | make him allow me to
do whatever | like with the scenario?"

| went to see him again the next day. He was reading.

| interrupted him. "Must | give you back the scenario, or can | keep it?"
"What scenario?"

"The one that you gave me to read yesterday."

"Oh! What do | need it for? Throw it away."

"All right," I said. "I'll throw it away. Excuse me,| see you're busy."

"No, I'm not," he said. "l have nothing to do. It's f oolish to try to write anything: | get less and less
for every book | publish. I am dying of poverty."

"It's your own fault," | said. "You refuse to think about what the public wants."
"How can | know what they want?"

"You don't try to. If | tell you how to make some money by writing something that the public
wants, you’ll throw me out of the room."

| returned home and did a little work on the scenario. It was very easy; it was a fine scenario. |
wanted to write his name on it, but | was afraid to. At last | decided not to write his name, but to say it
was written by 'a genius'. That's a wonderful word; everybody respects it and fears it a little. | knew that
after they read the scenario, they would feel it really was written by a genius.

| took it to a leading film company the next day with a note saying: "The author, a recognised
literary genius, f or his own reasons prefers to remain unknown." The company was silent for two
weeks, but | wasn't worried. | knew they would come to me: they had to — the scenario was too good, it
couldn't f ail. And when they appeared, | refused their first offers. | made them come three times. At last
| gave them an ultimatum. They agreed to all my demands, as | knew they would: they knew how much
the scenario was worth.

Now | had come to the last and greatest difficulty. How could | give the money to Bruce? Many
wild ideas came to my mind. At last | decided that | would say | had sold the scenario, because | wanted
to make some money f or myself. "He'll be angry with me, but he won't be able to refuse to take the
money," | thought.

When | came to his room, | found him lying on two chairs, as usual, smoking his black cigarettes
and playing with an old cat that he had found in the street. | asked after his health, and then said:
"There's something | must tell you — I'm afraid you may think it rather unpleasant."

"Go on!" he ordered.
"Do you remember that scenario that you wrote and gave me about six weeks ago?"
"Yes, you do. About the beautiful black aristocrat."

"Oh," he laughed. "That foolish thing!"
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“'Well, I sold it."

"What? Who wants to publish a thing like that?"

"Itisn't published. They are making a film out of it. A superfilm, they call it."
His eyes opened wide.

"Don't argue," | said. "It's done — I've sold it and here is the money — three thousand pounds. | had
to do some work on it, so if you want to pay me ten per cent, | won't refuse."

"My God!" he said.

"Yes, yes," | went on, speaking more quickly. "I know what you are thinking. | know your high
ideas about art and literature and culture. But that's all nonsense, Bruce. The story may be vulgar, |
agree. But we're vulgar, it's foolish to pretend we are not. vl don't mean you, of course, but people in
general. The film will be good entertainment."

| couldn't look at the f ire in his eyes, and | hurried to defend myself.

"You don't live in the world, Bruce. You don't understand what ordinary people want; something
to make their grey lives a little brighter. They want blood, excitement of any kind. You haven't hurt them
by this film, you have been kind to them. And this is your money, and | want you to take it!"

The cat suddenly jumped down. | waited, expect- ing the storm to begin at any moment. Then |
began again. "l know that you hate the cinema and everything connected with it..."

His voice interrupted me. "Nonsense!" he roared. "What are you talking about? Who said | hate
the cinema? | go there three times a week!"

This time, | cried, "My God!" | pushed the money into his hand and ran away, followed by the cat.

Exerciges and Aggignments on the
Text

YnopaxHeHnus v 3agaHus 1o TekcTy

Assignment # One — 3aoanue Ne 1

Haiioume 6 mexcme aHenutickue 35K6UBANEHMbL CLeOVIOWUX CO8, BbIPANCEHUN U
000pomos:

ronogatb — ;

YNTATb KPUTUYECKUNE CTAaTbU — ;

cegble ycbl — ;

XyXe, yem 06blYyHO — ;

B MPa4YHOM HaCTpOeHUUN — ;

He AaB BO3MOXHOCTU CNpPaBUTbCA O 340pOBbE — ;

N o v s~ w DN oe

HeobbluyalHO KpacmBa — ;
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8. CKameHHbIm cepauem — ;

9. Tbl 340POBO NOBECENNLIBLCA — ;

10. wepesp — ;

11. 3annatuna 6bl NOOYIO LEHY — ;

12. ymupatb OT HULWETbI — ;

13. Tbl cam BMHOBAT — ;

14. BbIWBbLIPHYTb N3 KOMHATbIl — ;

15. nognpasua cueHapuii — ;

16. BeayLwaa KWHOKOMNAHUA — ;

17. npuHAAM BCE MOU YCNOBUA — ;

18. xoTen HemHoro 3apaboTaTtb — ;

19. Bce aTo yenyxa — ;

20. rayno npuTBOpPATLCA — ;

21. npocTble noau —

Assignment # Two — 3adanue Ne 2

atime pycckue 2x8u8aieHmol C1e0yIOuWUx Clo8, 8blpaANCeHUll U 000POMOo8 U3 mexKcma,
Cocmasbme no mpu npeodioHceHuUs: ¢ KAHCObIM UX IMUX 000POMO8:

be (not) interested in smth. — ;

from time to time — ;

be a failure — ;

be worried about smb. — ;

allow smb. to do smth. — ;
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interrupt smb. — ;

it's foolish to do smth. — ;

refuse on offer (help) — ;

be connected with — ;

respect smb. — ;

Assignment # Three — 3adanue Ne 3

Omeemvme Ha clledyroujue 60npochl.

1) Describe Bruce (appearance, habits, financial position).

2) Why was Bruce in a gloomy mood when the author came to visit him?

3) What made Bruce write a parody on the film he had seen the night before?

4) What was the plot of the scenario?
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5) What did the author think of the scenario after having read part of it?

6) What idea occurred to him?

7) Why did the author make the film company come several times?

8) Why didn't he write Bruce's name on the scenario?

9) What was the greatest difficulty for the author?

10) What did the author oppose to Bruce’s high ideas about art?

11) The author expected the storm, did not he? But what did he hear instead?

Assignment # Four — 3aoanue No 4

Hatioume 6 mexcme ece npeonoocenus, cooepocawue IIpsmyro peus (Direct Speech) u
nepeoenraume ux 6 Koceennyro peun (Indirect Speech). [Ilepeo ewvinonnenuem
Ynpaoicnenusa Bam neobxooumo oznakomumucs ¢ napazpagamu 69, 70 u 71 «llpamas u
Kocsennas peuvy 5 Inasvt «lnazony 1 Yacmu «Hacmu Peuu 6 AHenutickom s3viKey»
Illepeoco moma Eounoeo [ pammamuueckoeo xomniexca. Bcio neobxooumyio Bawm
cnpagounyto ungopmayuro Bol mosceme natimu 6o Bmopom mome 6 Ilpunoswcenusx.

Assignment # Five — 3a0anue Ne 5

Ilepeckascume pacckaz om auya: 1) bproca;, 2) Asmopa; 3) Ilpeocmasumens
KUHOKOMNAHUU.

Assignment # Six — 3adanue Ne 6
Iloocomosbmecs Kk 00OCyHcOenuIo ¢ npenooasamenem u opyeumu wieHamu Bawei epynnol

Cﬂedyiomux mem. Cocmasome niam:

1. Bruce was a talented writer. Explain why his books were not published.

2. "There is no reason why a genius must starve in our modern times." Comment on the phrase. Do
you agree with it? Name some unrecognised geniuses.

3. "People need entertainment". What do you think of it? Is it enough for a person? What about you?
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Assignment # Seven — 3adanue Ne 7

Kpamxo nepeckasxcume pacckas. Bol 0onoichbl yrosxcumuvcs 6 15 npednoscenuil.
Assignment # Eight — 3aoanue Ne 8

Ilepeckanxcume paseosop asmopa u bpioca, ucnonvzys Koceennyro peus (Indirect
Speech).

Assignment # Nine — 3adanue Ne 9

Hartioume 6 mexcme e6ce I'nazonvl nHenpasunvno2o cnpsdiceHus u 3anonnume maobauyy,
oasas ux ¢oopmwi. Ilepeo evinonnenuem Ynpasicnenus Bam neobxooumo oznakomumuocs ¢
napazpagamu 48, 49, 50 u 51 5 I'naswvr «Inazon» 1 Yacmu «Hacmu Peuu 6 Anenutickom
azvikey Ilepsoco moma Eounoco I'pammamuueckoco komniexca. Bcio neobxooumyro Bam
cnpagounyro ungopmayuro Bol moowceme natimu 6o Bmopom mome 6 Ilpunoscenusix
«Tabnuya Bpemen Axmusnozo u Ilaccusnozco 3anozosy. I[Iposepumv ynompebienue
Gopm npuuacmuii 1 u 2 (Participles 1 & 2) (smopas, mpemvs u uemsepmas gopmol
enazonos) moxcno no Tabauyam “Cnpsocenue Henpasunvnvix enaconos». Obpawaio
BHUMAHUe HA Mo, Ymo madiuy 0ee: 8 0OHOU 0aemcsi CHUCOK HENPABUTIbHBIX 2l1A20I08 8
angasumuom nopsioke — ee s PEeKOMEeHOYI0 NpumMeHsamv O0as Oblcmpoco NoUcKa
He0OX00UMO20 Cl08A, 80 8MOPOU 21A20/bl OAHbL NO MUNAM 00pA308aHUs POPMbL — HA
amy mabauyy HeobXo0UMO OPUESHMUPOBAMbCS NPU 3AYVYUBAHUU HAUZYCMb.!
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Assignment # Ten — 3aoanue Ne 10

3aoaiime 6onpocel Kk c108am, 8blOEIeHHLIM NOOYEPKHYMbIM HAKIOHHBIM UPUDMOM

1) Bruce was not interested in what people thought of him or his work.

2) After dinner that evening the author began to read the scenario.

3) When they appeared, he refused their first offers.

Assignment # Eleven — 3adanue Ne 11

Haiioume 6 mexcme 6ce npeonoocenus, cooepocawue IIpsmyro peus (Direct Speech) u
nepeoeraume ux 6 Koceennyio peun (Indirect Speech). Ilepeo ewvinonnenuem
Ynpaosicnenus Bam neobxooumo oznakomumucs ¢ napazpagpamu 69, 70 u 71 «llpamas u
Kocsennas peuvy 5 Inasvt «lnazony 1 Yacmu «Hacmu Peuu 6 AHenutickom s3viKey»
Ilepeoeco moma Eounoeo [ pammamuueckoeo xomniexca. Bcio neobxooumyio Bam
cnpagounyro ungopmayuro Bol mosiceme navimu 6o Bmopom mome 6 [Ipunosicenusx.
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Unit12

HOME by E. Hughes

This is a story about a young Negro musician, who returns to the USA after the years that he had
spent abroad learning to play the violin and giving concerts in different European cities. The action of the
story takes place in 1932 in the USA. This was the time of the world economic crisis.

Roy Williams had come home from abroad to visit his mother and sister and brothers who still
remained in his native town, Hopkinsville. Roy had been away seven or eight years, travelling all overthe
world. He came back very well dressed, but very thin. He wasn't well.

It was this illness that made Roy come home. He had a feeling that he was going to die, and he
wanted to see his mother again. This feeling about death started in Vienna, where so many people were
hungry, while other people spent so much money in the night clubs where Roy's orchestra played.

In Vienna Roy had a room to himself because he wanted to study music. He studied under one of
the best violin teachers.

"It's bad in Europe," Roy thought. "I never saw people as hungry as this."

But it was even worse when the orchestra went back to Berlin. Hunger and misery were terrible
there. And the police were beating people who protested, or stole, or begged.

It was in Berlin that Roy began to cough. When he got to Paris his friend took care of him, and he
got better. But all the time he had the feeling that he was going to die. So he came home to see his
mother.

He landed in New York and stayed two or three days in Harlem. Most of his old friends there,
musicians and actors, were hungry and out of work. When they saw Roy dressed so well, they asked him
for money.

"It's bad everywhere," Roy thought. "l want to go home."

That last night in Harlem he could not sleep. He thought of his mother. In the morning he sent her
a telegram that he was coming home to Hopkinsville, Missouri.

"Look at that nigger," said the white boys, when they saw him standing on the station platform in
the September sunlight, surrounded by his bags with the bright foreign labels. Roy had got off a Pullman
— something unusual for a Negro in that part of the country.

"God damn!" said one of the white boys. Suddenly Roy recognised one of them. It was Charlie
Mumford, an old playmate — a tall red-headed boy. Roy took of f his glove and held out his hand. The
white boy took it but did not shake it long. Roy had for- gotten he wasn't in Europe, wearing gloves and
shaking hands with a white man!

"Where have you been, boy?" Charlie asked.
"In Paris," said Roy.

"Why have you come back?" someone asked. "l wanted to come and see my mother."
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"l hope she is happier to see you than we are," another white boy said.

Roy picked up his bags, there were no porters on the platform, and carried them to an old Ford
car that looked like a taxi. He felt weak and frightened. The eyes of the white men at the station were
not kind. He heard someone say behind him: "Nigger." His skin was very hot. For the first time in the last
seven or eight years he felt his colour. He was home.

Roy's home-coming concert at the Negro church was a success. The Negroes sold a lot of tickets
to the white people for whom they worked. The front rows cost fifty cents and were filled with white
people. The rest of the seats cost twenty-five cents and were filled with Negroes. There was much noise
as the little old church filled. People walked up and down, looking for their seats.

While he was playing Brahms on a violin from Vienna in a Negro church in Hopkinsville, Missouri,
for listeners who were poor white people and even poorer Negroes, the sick young man thought of his
old dream. This dream could not come true now. It was a dream of a great stage in a large concert hall
where thousands of people looked up at him as they listened to his music.

Now he was giving his first concert in America for his mother in the Negro church, for his white
and black listeners. And they were looking at him. They were all looking at him. The white people in the
front rows and the Negroes in the back.

He was thinking of the past, of his childhood. He remembered the old Kreisler record they had at
home. Nobody liked it but Roy, and he played it again and again. Then his mother got a violin for him,
but half the time she didn't have the money to pay old man Miller for his violin lessons every week. Roy
remembered how his mother had cried when he went away with a group of Negro-musicians, who
played Negro songs all over the South.

Then he had a job with a night-club jazz-band in Chicago. After that he got a contract to go to
Berlin and play in an orchestra there.

Suddenly he noticed a thin white woman in a cheap coat and red hat, who was looking at him
from the first row.

"What does the music give you? What do you want from me?" Roy thought about her.

He looked at all those dark girls back there in the crowd. Most of them had never heard good
classical music. Now for the first time in their life they saw a Negro, who had come home from abroad,
playing a violin. They were looking proudly at him over the heads of the white people in the first rows,
over the head of the white woman in the cheap coat and red hat....

"Who are you, lady?" he thought.

When the concert was over, even some of the white people shook hands with Roy and said it was
wonderful. The Negroes said, "Boy, you really can play!" Roy was trembling a little and his eyes burnt
and he wanted very much to cough. But he smiled and he held out his hot hand to everybody. The
woman in the red hat waited at the end of the room.

After many of the people had gone away, she cameup to Roy and shook hands with him. She
spoke of symphony concerts in other cities of Missouri; she said she was a teacher of music, of piano
and violin, but she had no pupils like Roy, that never in the town of Hopkinsville had anyone else played
so beautifully. Roy looked into her thin, white face and was glad that she loved music.

"That's Miss Reese," his mother told him after she had gone. "An old music teacher at the white
high school."
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"Yes, Mother," said Roy. "She understands music.

Next time he saw Miss Reese at the white high school. One morning a note came asking him if he
would play for her music class some day. She would accompany him if he brought his music. She had
told her students about Bach and Mozart, and she would be very grateful if Roy visited the school and
played those two great masters for her young people. She wrote him a nice note on clean white paper.

"That Miss Reese is a very nice woman," Mrs. Williams said to her boy. "She sends for you to play
at the school. | have never heard of a Negro who was invited there for anything but cleaning up, and |
have been in Hopkinsville a long time. Go and play for them, son."

Roy played. But it was one of those days when his throat was hot and dry and his eyes burnt. He
had been coughing all morning and as he played he breathed with great difficulty. He played badly. But
Miss Reese was more than kind to him. She accompanied him on the piano. And when he had finished,
she turned to the class of white children and said, "This is art, my dear young people, this is true art!"

The pupils went home that afternoon and told their parents that a dressed-up nigger had come to
school with a violin and played a lot of funny music which nobody but Miss Reese liked. They also said
that Miss Reese had smiled and said, "Wonderful!" and had even shaken hands with the nigger, when he
went out.

Roy went home. He was very ill these days, getting thinner and thinner all the time, weaker and
weaker. Sometimes he did not play at all. Often he did not eat the food his mother cooked for him, or
that his sister brought from the place vrhere she vrorked. Sometimes he was so restless and hot in the
night that he got up and dressed and then walked the streets of the little town at ten and eleven o'clock
after nearly every one else had gone to bed. Midnight was late in Hopkinsville. But for years Roy had
worked at night. It was hard f or him to sleep before midnight now.

But one night he walked out of the house for the last time.

In the street it was very quiet. The trees stood silent in the moonlight. Roy walked under the dry
falling leaves towards the centre of the town, breathing in the night air. Night and the streets always
made him f eel better. He remembered the streets of Paris and Berlin. He remembered Vienna. Now like
a dream that he had ever been in Europe at all, he thought. Ma never had any money. With the greatest
difficulty her children were able to finish the grade school. There was no high school for Negroes in
Hopkinsville. In order to get further education he had to run away from home with a Negro show. Then
that chance of going to Berlin with a jazz-band. And his violin had been his best friend all the time. Jazz
at night and the classics in the morning at his lessons with the best teachers that his earnings could pay.
It was hard work and hard practice. Music, real music! Then he began to cough in Berlin.

Roy was passing lots of people now in the bright lights of Main Street, but he saw none of them.
He saw only dreams and memories, and heard music. Suddenly a thin woman in a cheap coat and red
hat, a white woman, stepping out of a store just as Roy passed, said pleasantly to him, "Good evening."

Roy stopped, also said, "Good evening, Miss Reese," and was glad to see her. Forgetting he wasn't
in Europe, he took off his hat and gloves, and held out his hand to this lady who understood music. They
smiled at each other, the sick young Negro and the middleaged music teacher in the light of Main Street.
Then she asked him if he was still working on the Sarasate.

Roy opened his mouth to answer when he saw the woman's face suddenly grow pale with horror.
Before he could turn round to see what her eyes had seen, he felt a heavy fist strike his face. There was
a flash of lightning in his head as he f ell down. Miss Reese screamed. The street near them filled with

white young men with red necks, open shirts and fists ready to strike. They had seen a Negro talking to a
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white woman — insulting a White Woman — attacking a White Woman! They had seen Roy take off his
gloves and when Miss Reese screamed when Roy whs struck, they wee sure he had insulted her. Yes, he
had. Yes, sir!

So they knocked Roy down. They trampled on his hat and cane and gloves, and all of them tried to
pick him up — so that someone else could have the pleasure of knocking him down again. They struggled
over the privilege of knocking him down.

Roy looked up from the ground at the white men around him. His mouth was full of blood and his
eyes burnt. His clothes were dirty. He was wondering why Miss Reese had stopped him to ask about
the Sarasate. He knew he would never get home to his mother now.

The young Negro whose name was Roy Williams began to choke from the blood in his mouth. He
didn't hear the sound of their voices or the trampling of their feet any longer. He saw only the
moonlight, and his ears were filled with a thousand notes, like a Beethoven sonata...

NOTES:

1. nigger —uyepHOMa3bIif;
2. God dawn! —YepT BO3bMU;
3. Kreisler — Kpeiicnep, Bbigatowwminca aBCTPUNCKMIA CKpMNay.

Exerciges and Aggignments on the
Text

YnopaxHeHnus v 3agaHus 1o TekcTy

Assignment # One — 3aoanue No 1

Haiioume 6 mexcme aHenuiickue 35K6UBANEHMbl CLeOVIOWUX ClO8, BbIPANCEHUN U
000pomos:

UrpaTb Ha CKpUnNke —

XOPOLLO 04eTbIN —

y4ynncay ogHoro n3 nyqyuwmnx npenop,aBaTeneﬁ -

rofoa u HuWeTa —

TOBapUL OETCKUX UTP —

BnepsBble 3a nocneaHne cemMmb neT —

He MOr/1a OCyWwecCTBuUTbCA —

1
2
3
4
5. 6bITb 6e3paboTHbIMK —
6
7
8
9

He HpaBWaacb HUKOMY, Kpome Pos —

10. c ropAocCTblo CMOTPEIN Ha Hero —
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11. HMKTO HMKOrAA TaK He urpan — ;

12. akkomnaHmMpoBaTb — ;

13. cTpyaom Ablwan — ;

14. UCTMHHOE NCKYCCTBO — ;

15. pasopeTblii YepHOMaA3bIiN — ;

16. B nyHHOM cBeTe — ;

17. BAbIXasi HOYHOM BO3AYX — ;

18. 3aKOHYMTb HaYa/IbHYIO LWKOAY — ;

19. Ha KOTOpbIX He XBaTaso AeHer — ;

20. 3a6bIB, 4TO OH He B EBpone — ;

21. NPOH3UTEeNbHO BCKPUKHYNA — ;

22. pactonTtanu ero wnany — ;

23. 6oponnch 3a NpUBUAETUIO — ;

24. ypapuTb ero — ;

25. 3ax1ebHYTbCA B KPOBU —

Assignment # Two — 3adanue Ne 2

atime pycckue 2K8u8aieHmol C1e0yIowWuUx Clo8, 8blpadCeHUll U 000pOMmMos U3 mexKcma,
Cocmasbme no mpu npeoiodAHceHUs: ¢ KAHCObIM UX IMUX 000POMOo8:

be (come from) abroad — ;

make smb. do smth. — ;

be surrounded by smth. — ;

be a success — ;
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shake hands with smb. — ;

be grateful to smb. — ;

with the greatest difficulty — ;

grow pale — ;

insult smb. — ;

be filled with. — ;

Assignment # Three — 3adanue Ne 3

Omeemvme Ha Cﬂedyiou;ue 680Nnpocyvl.

1) Who was Roy Williams and why did he return to Hopkinsville?

2) Roy visited many countries with his orchestra. What was the life of people like there?

3) Who was the first person Roy met on the platform?
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4) What struck Roy? What were his first feelings?

5) Describe Roy’s home-coming concert at the Negro church.

6) What was Roy thinking about while playing?

7) Whom did he notice in the first row?

8) What did Roy and Miss Reese speak about after the concert?

9) Where did Miss Reese invite Roy and what was the pupils’ impression of Roy’s visit?

10) Describe Roy’s state of health.

11) What did Roy remember walking along the streets one night?

12) What happened that night?

Assignment # Four — 3aoanue No 4

Ilepeckasicume pacckaz om auya: 1) Pos Buniuamca;, 2) Mamepu Pos Buniuamca, 2)
Mucc Puus.

Assignment # Five — 3a0anue Ne 5

Iloocomosbmecs Kk 006CyHcoenuio ¢ npenooasamenem u opyeumu 4ienamu Baweti epynnol
credyiowux mem. Cocmagome niamu:

1. Why were the Negro people proud of Roy?

2. Miss Reese could defend Roy, could not she? Why do you think she did not do it?

3. “They had seen a Negro insulting a white Woman”. Comment on this phrase. Was it true? What was
the only and real reason why the white people beat Roy Williams?

Assignment # Six — 3aoanue Ne 6
Kpamxo nepeckasxcume pacckas. Bol 0onoichvl yioscumocs 6 20 npednoscenutl.
Assignment # Seven — 3adanue Ne 7
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Hatioume 6 mexcme e6ce I'nazonvl nenpasunvno2o cnpsdcenus u 3anoanume maobauyy,
oasas ux ¢oopmwi. Ilepeo evinonnenuem Ynpasicnenus Bam neobxooumo oznakomumucs ¢
napazpagamu 48, 49, 50 u 51 5 I'naswr «Inazon» 1 Yacmu «Hacmu Peuu 6 Anenutickom
azvikey llepsoco moma Eounozo I’ pammamuueckoeo komniexca. Bcio neoboxooumyro Bam
cnpagounylo ungopmayuro Bul moowceme natimu 6o Bmopom mome 6 Ilpunoscenusix
«Tabnuya Bpemen Axmusnoeo u Ilaccuenozo 3anozosy. Ilposepums ynompebieHue
Gopm npuuacmuii 1 u 2 (Participles 1 & 2) (emopas, mpemvsi u uemeepmas ¢hopmol
enazonos) moxcno no Tabnuyam “Cnpsocenue Henpasunvnvix enaconos». Obpawaio
BHUMAHUE HA Mo, 4mo mabauy 0ee: 8 0OHOU 0aemcs CNUCOK HeNpAasuibHbLX 21a20J108 8
angasumuom nopsioke — ee s PEeKOMEeHOYI0 HNpumMeHsmv Oas Oblcmpoco NoUcKa
He0OX00UMO020 Cl108A, 80 8MOPOU 21A20bl OAHbI NO MUNAM 00pA308aHUs OPpMbl — HA
amy maoauyy Heobxo0uUMo OPUEHMUPOBAMbCS NPU 3AYYUSAHUU HAUZYCIb.
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Assignment # Eight — 3aoanue Ne 8

Haiioume ¢ mexcme ece Ilpednoscenus Ilpoweowem Ilpooonscennom epemenu (Past
Continuous). Ilepeo evinonnenuem Ynpasicnenusi Bam neobxooumo oznakomumscs c
napaepagamu 52, 53, 54 u 55 «Bmopas epynna Bpemen — Continuous Tensesy 5 I iaswvi
«lnacony 1 Yacmu «Hacmu Peuu 6 Anenuiickom sazvike» Ilepsoco moma Eounoco
I'pammamuueckozo komnaexca. Bcro nHeobxooumyto Bam cnpasounyro ungopmayuro Boi
Mmooiceme Havumu 60 Bmopom mome 6 Ilpunoscenusx «Tabruya Bpemen Axmusnoco u
Ilaccusnozco 3a10206».

Assignment # Nine — 3aoanue Ne 9

Haivioume ¢ mexcme 6ce Ilpeonoscenus ¢ Byoywem-6-Hacmoswem epemenu (Future-in-
the-Past Tense). Bcio neobxooumyio Bam cnpasounyio ungpopmayuio Bet modiceme natimu
60 Bmopom mome 6 Tabnuyax Ipunosicenusn «I naconvl HenpaguibHO20 CNPANCEHUSLY.

Assignment # Ten — 3aoanue Ne 10

Ilepeseoume cnedyrouue npednoxcenus na Pycckuil s3vik:

1. It was this illness that made Roy come home.

2. It was in Berlin that Roy began to cough.

?

3. It was one of those days when his throat was hot. Practise this model in the sentences of your own.

?

Assignment # Eleven — 3aoanue Ne 11

3a0aiime K yKA3AHHOLIM  HUdCE  NPEONIONCEHUAM  BONPOCHL,  HAYUHAIOWUECS — C
sonpocumenvuvix cioé Who wiu what:

1) Roy was passing lots of people in the bright lights of Main Street.

2) Roy's concert at the Negro church was a success.

3) They were all looking at him.

4) He had a job with a jazz-band in Chicago.
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5) One morning a note came inviting him to the music class at the high school.

Assignment # Twelve — 3aoanue Ne 12

Haiioume 6 mexcme 6ce npeonoxcenus, cooepacawue [lpsmyro peus (Direct Speech) u
nepeoenraume ux 6 Koceennyio peun (Indirect Speech). [Ilepeo ewvinonnenuem
Ynpaosicnenus Bam neobxooumo oznakomumucs ¢ napazpagamu 69, 70 u 71 «llpamasn u
Koceennas peuvy 5 Inasvr «lnazony 1 Yacmu «Hacmu Peuu 6 Anenuuickom s3vikey
llepeoco moma Eounoeo [pammamuueckoco romniexca. Bcio Hneobxooumyro Bam
cnpasounyto ungopmayuro Bol mosceme navimu 6o Bmopom mome 6 Ilpunoswcenusx.
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Unit 13

PLEDGER'S WAY HOME
(from The Great Midland by A. Saxton)

Pledger gave part of his pay for a ticket to Chicago. Through the long night he lay asleep, with his
head against the arm of his seat, thinking how it would be when he stepped down from the train and
Sarah came towards him along the platform. The cold of the winter night came through the windows.
Pledger wrapped himself up in his coat.

Towards morning the train stopped in an Indian town. He woke up and got down to the platform,
where he began to walk up and down. He felt cold. He walked fast across the street from the station for
a cup of coffee. A few people were in the restaurant eating breakfast and Pledger felt the American
smell of coffee and toast and bacon. Smiling happily, he sat down at the counter and took the menu.

The counterman was standing over him, young, white and self-important.
“What do you want here?”
“Coffee and fried eggs”, Pledger said calmly.

“We do not serve coloured here”.

Pledger looked at the man attentively for a moment before he understood. Getting up from the
chair, Pledger lifted his brown hands in the air. Then he let them fall. He was making an effort to control
himself. He saw the other people in the restaurant watching him with expressionless faces. The door
closed behind him. He was no longer hungry and now he did not even feel angry. He crossed the street
and walked down to the end of the train.

He felt empty and bitter and hurt because of what had been done to him. For a moment he
remembered that a Marshal of France had pinned to the flag of his regiment the Cross of War, he
remembered the French girls who had kissed the Negro soldiers and cried over them, and the Mayor of
New York standing with his hat in his hands. But now he was waking up; it seemed that the people who
had been his friends had gone. He found himself alone in the winter daylight, among the snow-covered
fields.

He got on the train and took his set. He sat deep in thought through the long hours as the train
ran towards Chicago.

Exercises and Agsignments on the
Text

Ynpaxuenus u 3aganus 1o Tekcry

Assignment # One — 3aoanue No 1
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Hatioume 6 mexcme e6ce I'nazonvl nenpasunvno2o cnpsdcenus u 3anoanume maobauyy,
oasas ux ¢oopmwi. Ilepeo evinonnenuem Ynpasicnenus Bam neobxooumo oznakomumucs ¢
napazpagamu 48, 49, 50 u 51 5 I'naswr «I'nacon» 1 Yacmu «Hacmu Peuu 6 Anenutickom
azvikey llepsoco moma Eounozo I’ pammamuueckoeo komniexca. Bcio neoboxooumyro Bam
cnpagounylo ungopmayuro Bol moowceme natimu 6o Bmopom mome 6 Ilpunoscenusix
«Tabnuya Bpemen Axmusnoeo u Ilaccuenoco 3anozosy. Ilposepumsv ynompebienue
Gopm npuuacmuii 1 u 2 (Participles 1 & 2) (emopas, mpemvsi u uemeepmas ¢hopmol
enazonos) moxcno no Tabauyam “Cnpsocenue Henpasunvuvix enaconos». Obpawaro
BHUMAHUE HA Mo, 4mo mabauy 0ee: 8 0OHOU 0aemcs CNUCOK HeNpAasuibHbLX 21a20J108 8
angasumuom nopsioke — ee s PEeKOMEeHOYI0 HNpumMeHsmv Oas Oblcmpoco NoUucKa
He0OX00UMO020 Cl108A, 80 8MOPOU 21A20bl OAHbI NO MUNAM 00pA308aHUs OPpMbl — HA
amy mabauyy Heobxo0uUmMo OpUEeHMUPOBAMbCsL NPU 3AYYUBAHUU HAUSYCMb!
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Assignment # Two — 3aoanue Ne 2

Iloozomosbmecs Kk 006cysHcoenuto ¢ npenooasamenem u opy2umu dieHamu Baweti epynnol
cneoyiowux mem. Cocmagome niam.:

1. Compare the main characters of the three stories. What do they have in common?

2. All the three texts are devoted to the same problem — the problem of race discrimination. What is
the essence of the discrimination theory? When and why did it appear? Do you think it just?

3. Is this problem acute nowadays? Does it exist in this country? Give examples.

Assignment # Three — 3aoanue Ne 3

Kpamko nepeckasicume pacckas. Bvl 0ondrcnel ynoscumscs 6 8 npednosscenull.
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Unit 19

NO STORY by O. Henry

| was doing work on a newspaper.

One day Tripp came in and leaned on my table.

Tripp was something in the mechanical department. He was about twenty-five and looked forty.
Half of his face was covered with short, curly red whiskers that looked like a door-mat. He was pale and
unhealthy and miserable and was always borrowing sums of money from twenty-five cents to a dollar.
One dollar was his limit. When he leaned on my table he held one hand with the other to keep both
from shaking. Whisky.

"Well, Tripp," said |, looking up at him rather impatiently, "how goes it?" He was looking more
miserable than | had ever seen him.

"Have you got a dollar?" asked Tripp looking at me with his dog-like eves.

That day | had managed to get five dollars for my Sunday story. "l have," said |; and again | said, "I
have," more loudly, "and four besides. And | had hard work getting them. And | need them all."

"I don't want to borrow any," said Tripp, "l thought you'd like to get a good story. I've got a really
fine one for you. It'll probably cost you a dollar or two to get the stuff. | don't want anything out of it
myself."

"What is the story?" | asked.

"It's girl. A beauty. She has lived all her life on Long Island and never saw New York City before. |
ran against her on Thirty-fourth Street. She stopped me on the street and asked me where she could
find George Brown. Asked me where she could find George Brown in New York City! What do you think
of that?! | talked to her. It's like this. Some years ago George set off for New York to make his fortune.
He did not reappear. Now there's a young farmer named Dodd she's going to marry next week. But Ada
— her name's Ada Lowery — couldn't forget George, so this morning she saddled a horse and rode eight
miles to the railway station to catch the 6.45 a.m. train. She came to the city to look for George. She
must have thought the first person she inquired of would tell her where her George was! You ought to
see her! What could | do? She had paid her last cent f or her railroad ticket. | couldn't leave her in the
street, could I? | took her to a boarding-house. She has to pay a dollar to the landlady. That's the price
per day."

"That's no story," said I. "Every ferry-boat brings or takes away girls from Long Island."

Tripp looked disappointed. "Can't you see what an amazing story it would make? You ought to get
fifteen dollars for it. And it'll cost you only four, so you'll make a profit of eleven dollars."

"How will it cost me four dollars?" | asked suspiciously.

"One dollar to the landlady and two dollars to pay the girl's fare back home."

"And the fourth?" | inquired.

"One dollar to me," said Tripp. "Don't you see," he insisted, "that the girl has got to get back home

today?"
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And then | began to feel what is known as the sense of duty. In a kind of cold anger | put on my
coat and hat. But | swore to myself that Tripp would not get the dollar.

Tripp took me in a street-car to the boarding-house. | paid the fares.

In a dim parlour a girl sat crying quietly and eating candy out of a paper bag. She was a real
beauty. Crying only made her eyes brighter.

"My friend, Mr. Chalmers. He is a reporter," said Tripp "and he will tell you, Miss Lowery, what's
best to do."

| felt ashamed of being introduced as Tripp's friend in the presence of such beauty. "Why — er —
Miss Lowery," | began feeling terribly awkward, "will you tell me the circumstances of the case?"

"Oh," said Miss Lowery, "there aren't any circumstances, really. You see, everything is fixed for me
to marry Hiram Dodd next Thursday. He's got one of the best f arms on the Island. But last night | got to
thinking about G — George —"

"You see, | can't help it. George and | loved each other since we were children. Four years go he
went to the city. He said he was going to be a policeman of a railroad president or something. And then
he was coming back for me. But | never heard from him any more. And | — | — liked him."

"Now, Miss Lowery," broke in Tripp, "you like this young man, Dodd, don't you? He's all right, and
good to you, isn't he?"

"Of course | like him. And of course he's good to me. He's promised me an
automobile and a motorboat. But somehow | couldn't help thinking about George.
Something must have happened to him or he would have written. On the day he left, he
got a hammer and a chisel and cut a cent into two pieces. | took one piece and he took
the other, and we promised to be true to each other and always keep the pieces till we
saw each other again. I've got mine at home. | guess | was silly to come here. | never
realised what a big place it is.”

Tripp broke in with an awkward little laugh. "Oh, the boys from the country forget a lot when they
come to the city. He may have met another girl or something. You go back home, and you'll be all right."

In the end we persuaded Miss Lowery to go back home. The three of us then hurried to the ferry,
and there | f ound the price of the ticket to be but a dollar and eighty cents. | bought one, and a red, red
rose with the twenty cents for Miss Lowery. We saw her aboard her ferry-boat and stood watching her
wave her handkerchief at us. And then Tripp and | f aced each other.

"Can't you get a story out of it?" he asked. "Some sort of a story?"
"Not a line," said I.

"I'm sorry," he said quietly. There was disappointment in his tone. Tripp unbuttoned his shabby
coat to reach for something that had once been a handkerchief. As he did so | saw something shining on
his cheap watch-chain. It was the half of a silver cent that had been cut in halves with a chisel.

"What?!" | exclaimed looking at him in amazement.

"Oh yes," he replied. "George Brown, or Tripp. What's the use?"
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Exercises and Aggignments on the
Text

YnpaxHeHus v 3a1aHus o TekcTy

Assignment # One — 3aoanue No 1

Haiioume 6 mexcme aHenuiickue 35K8UBANEHMbl CIeOVIOWUX ClO8, BbIPANCEHUN U
000pomos:

COTPYyAHMUYaTL B raseTe — ;

pbixkune 6akeHbapabl — ;

4yTObbI OHW He ApOorXKanu — ;

C HeETepneHnem — ;

no-cobaybu npegaHHbIMU rnasamm — ’

yTOObI NnoNny4ynTb matepunan — ;

OH He BepHy/ica — ;

nepBbli BCTPEYHbIN — ;

L 0 N o Uk~ W N

Y KOTOPOro OHa CnpocuT — ;

[
o

. Napom — ;

[EEY
[EEY

. No403pUTENIbHO — ;

[
N

. OnNnaTUTb 06paTHbLIN buner — ;

[
w

. 4yBCTBO A0Jira — ;

=
S

. noKknanca cebe — ;

[EY
%]

. TpamBai — ;

=
(o)}

. obcTosTenbCTBa Aena — ’

[
~

. BCE rOTOBO K XeHuTbbe — ;

[E
0o

. Heé mory agymatb O... — ;

=
Yol

. ybeannu — ;

N
o

. pPaccTterHyn noTpenaHHoe NaabTto — ;

21. 6e3 KonebaHUn —

Assignment # Two — 3aoanue Ne 2

Hatime pycckue dK8uU8aieHmMbl C1e0VIOWUX CILO8, 8bIPANCEHUN U 0O0POMO8 U3 MeKCma,
Cocmasbme no mpu npeoioHceHUs ¢ KAHCObIM UX IMUX 000POMO8:

look pale (miserable, unhealthy) — ;
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borrow smth. —

run against smb. —

make one’s fortune —

look disappointed —

make a profit of —

feel ashamed of smth. (doing smth.) —

hear from smb. —

be true to smb. —
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look at smb. in amazement — ;

feel awkward — ;

Assignment # Three — 3adanue Ne 3

Omeembme Ha cedyoujue 60npocs.

1) Describe Tripp and say how he made his living.

2) What was Tripp in the habit of?

3) Why did Chalmers look up at Tripp impatiently when he came in?

4) What did Tripp tell Chalmers about the girl he had met in the street?

5) Why did Chalmers refuse to write a story about the girl?

6) Describe Ada and explain why Chalmers felt ashamed in her presence?

7) Prove that Ada really loved George.

8) Why did Tripp ask Ada if Dodd was good to her?

9) What made Chalmers give Tripp the dollar in the end?

Assignment # Four — 3adanue No 4

Ilepeckasicume paccxaz om auya. 1) Tpunna, 2) I'-na Yanmepsa; 3) Aowt Jloyspu.
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Assignment # Five — 3aoanue Ne 5

Iloocomosbmecs Kk 006CyaHcoenuto ¢ npenooasamesnem u opyeumu dieHamu Baweii epynnoi

cnedyrouux mem. Cocmagovme niaw.

1. Why did not Tripp tell Ada who he was? What do you think prevented him from returning to his
native village? Do you consider his behaviour in this situation right? Give your grounds.

2. Do you think this story happy or sad? Is the unexpected end of the story typical of O. Henry? Could
you think of another end of the story?

3. Comment on the title of the story.
4. Describe Tripp’s life in New York during those four years.

Assignment # Six — 3adanue Ne 6
Kpamxo nepeckasxcume pacckaz no naawny. Bui donichst ynoscumscs 6 15 npednooicenuil.
Assignment # Seven — 3adanue No 7

Hatioume 6 mexcme e6ce I'nazonvl nHenpasunvHozo cnpsdiceHus u 3anonnume maobauyy,
oasas ux ghopmwi. Ilepeo evinonnenuem Ynpasicnenus Bam neobxooumo o3naxomumscs ¢
napaepagamu 48, 49, 50 u 51 5 I'naswvr «Inazon» 1 Yacmu «Hacmu Peuu 6 Anenutickom
azvikey Ilepsoco moma Eounoco I pammamuueckoco komniexca. Bcio neobxooumyro Bam
cnpagounyro ungopmayuro Bul moowceme natimu 6o Bmopom mome 6 Ilpunoscenusix
«Tabnuya Bpemen Axmuenoco u Ilaccusnozo 3anocos». Ilpoeepumv ynompebieHnue
Gopm npuuacmuii 1 u 2 (Participles 1 & 2) (smopas, mpemovs u uemseepmas gopmol
enaeonog) modcho no Tabnuyam “Cnpsocenue Henpasunvnvix enaconos». Obpawaio
BHUMAHUe HA MO, 4mo mabauy 0e: 8 0OHOU 0aemcs CHUCOK HeNnpasuibHulX 21420108 8
angasumuom nopsioke — ee s PEeKOMEeHOYI0 NpuMeHsmv O0as Oblcmpoco NoOUcKa
He0OX00UMO020 Cl08A, 80 8MOPOU 21A20/bl OAHbL NO MUNAM 00pA308aHUs POPMbL — HA
amy maoauyy Heobxo0UMo OPUESHMUPOBAMbCS NPU 3AYYUBAHUU HAUZYCIDb.!
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Assignment # Eight — 3aoanue Ne 8

Hatioume 6 mexcme e6ce Ilpednoscenus c¢ I'epynouem. Ommemvme 21azonvl, nocie
komopwlx ucnoavzyemcs 1Iepynouti. Hatioume 6 mexkcme 6ce Ilpednooicenus c
Ipuyacmusamu. Ilepeo evinonnenuem Ynpasicnenus Bam Heo6X00UMO O3HAKOMUMBCA C
napazpagamu 48, 49, 50 u 51 u ¢ napaepagpamu 110, 111, 112, 113 u 114 «Ilpuvacmue —
Henuunvie ghopmvr enaconar5 I[naswvr «lnacony 1 Yacmu «Hacmu Peuu 6 Amenutickom
azvikey Ilepsoco moma Eounoco I pammamuueckozo komniekca. Bero neobxooumyro Bam
cnpagounyro ungopmayuro Bul moowceme natimu 6o Bmopom mome 6 Ilpunoscenusx
«Tabnuya Bpemen Axmuenoco u Ilaccusnozo 3anocosey». Ilpoeepumv ynompebieHue
Gdopm npuuacmuii 1 u 2 (Participles 1 & 2) (smopas, mpemovs u wemseepmas Gopmol
enaeonog) modcno no Tabnuyam “Cnpsaocenue Henpasunvnvix enaconos». Obpawaio
BHUMAHUe HA MO, 4mo mabauy 0e: 8 0OHOU 0aemcs CNUCOK HeNnpasuibHuIX 21a20/108 8
anrgasumuom nopsioke — ee s PEeKOMEeHOYI0 NpumMeHsmv O0as Oblcmpoco NOUCKa
He0OX00UMO20 Cl08d, 80 8MOPOU 21A20bl OAHbL NO MUNAM 00pPA308aHUsL HOpMbl — HA
amy maobauyy Heobxo0UMo OPUESHMUPOBAMbCS NPU 3AYYUBAHUU HAUZYCIb.!

Assignment # Nine — 3aoanue Ne 9

Omxpoiime ckobku u ucnonvsyime npasuivhyio popmy I'epynous (Gerund). Haiioume 6
mexcme 6ce Ilpednoosicenusn ¢ Ipuuacmuamu. Ilepeo evinonnenuem Ynpasicnenus Bam
HeoOxX00uUMo o3nakomumucs ¢ napazpapamu 48, 49, 50 u 51 u ¢ napaepagpamu 110, 111,
112, 113 u 114 «Ilpuuacmue — Henuunvie ghopmel enaconard Inaswt «Inazony 1 Yacmu
«Hacmu Peuu 6 Awnenuiickom sazvikey Ilepsoco moma Eounoeo [ pammamuueckoeo
Komniexca. Bcio neobxooumyro Bam cnpagounyro ungopmayuro Bol mosceme naiimu 8o
Bmopom mome 6 Ipunoocenusix « Tabauya Bpemen Axkmuenozo u Ilaccusnoco 3ano2osy.
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IIposepums ynompeonenue gopm npuuacmuti 1 u 2 (Participles 1 & 2) (smopas,
mpemusi U uemeepmas Qopmel 21a2on08) MmoxcHo no Tabauyam “Cnpsoicenue
Henpasunvuvix enaconos». Obpawaio enumanue Ha mo, umo mabauy 06e. 8 00HOU
0aemcst CNuUCOK HeNnpasusibHbIX 2l1a20N08 8 AlhasumHOM NopsoKe — ee 5 PeKOMEHOYIO
NpUMEHAMb 0Jis1 OLLICMPO20 NOUCKA He0OX00UMO20 Cl08d, 80 8MOPOLL 21A20bl 0aHbl NO
munam obpazoeanuss Gopmvl — HA dmMy MaAodIUYY He0OXO0OUMO OPUEHMUPOBAMbCS NPU
3ayuuUBaHUU HAU3YCMb:

1) | hate (borrow) money, | prefer (lend) money.

2) Chalmers avoided (lend) money to Tripp.

3) Chalmers could not help (feel) awkward when he was introduced to Ada.

4) It's no use (try) to persuade him.

5) He was ashamed of (behave) like this.

6) To Tripp's disappointment the reporter said the stuff was not worth (put) in a story.

7) When Ada spoke about George she couldn't help (cry).

8) Ada was looking forward to (meet) George in New York.

Assignment # Ten — 3aoanue Ne 10

Haiioume 6 mexcme sce npeonosicenust, cooepacawue Ilpsamyro peun (Direct Speech) u
nepeoenaume ux 6 Koceennyio peuv (Indirect Speech). [Ilepeo evinonnenuem
Ynpaswicnenus Bam neobxooumo o3naxkomumscs ¢ napacpagpamu 69, 70 u 71 «llpsamasn u
Koceennasa peuv» 5 [naswvr «lnazony 1 Yacmu «Hacmu Peuu 6 Anenuiickom s3zvikey
Ilepeoeco moma Eounoco [ pammamuueckoeo xomniexca. Bcio neobxooumyio Bam
cnpagounyro ungopmayuro Bol mosiceme navimu 6o Bmopom mome 6 [Ipunosicenusx.

Assignment # Eleven — 3ao0anue Ne 11

Ilepeckascume ucmopuio Mucc Jloyapu, ucnonvsys Koceennyro peus (Indirect Speech).
Ilepeo evinonnenuem Ynpasicnenus Bam neodxooumo oznaxomumscs ¢ napazpagpamu 69,
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70 u 71 «llpsamaa u Koceennasa peuvy 5 [naevi «lnacony 1 Yacmu «Hacmu Peuu 6
Amnenutickom szvikey Ilepsoco moma Eoumozo [ pammamuueckoeo xomniexca. Bcro
Heobxooumyto Bam cnpasounyio unghopmayuro Bul mosceme naiimu 6o Bmopom mome 6

Ipunoowcenusx.
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Unit 14

THE EXPLOSION
from The Citadel by A. J. Cronin

Adnrew Manson, a young inexperienced doctor, has come to work in a small miners town in
Wales. His very first case proves to be typhoid. Andrew is terribly anxious, especially when the disease
begins to spread. He is at a loss what to do and turns for advice to Philip Denny, a doctor who has been
living in the town for some time.

Andrew gazed at Denny, burning to ask a dozen questions.

"You've got cases too?" he asked anxiously.

"Four! All in the same area as yours," Denny paused. "One day, very soon, we're going to have an
outbreak of an epidemic. It's the main sewer that's to blame. It leaks like the devil, and poisons half the
wells of the town. I've hammered at the Health Officer about it till I'm tired." His tone was cold and
bitter.

"It's shame!" Andrew burst out. "l wish he were here and knew what we know."
Denny shrugged his shoulders, "It's no use."
There was a silence. Andrew got up from his seat at the table and moved towards the door.

"I'm much obliged f or the information. From now on every drop of water in the area is going to
be boiled."

"It's the Health Office who ought to be boiled," muttered Denny.

During the weeks that followed Andrew slaved joyfully. He loves his work and counted himself
fortunate to have such an opportunity so early in his career. He worked tirelessly with all the fire of his
passionate nature. He only wished he could do more.

Then, unexpectedly, Denny rargh imu p." Manson! Can you come to my place at three o'clock? It's
important."

Denny received him in silence with a gloomy eye and a darkened forehead. "One of my patients
died this morning. | have two new cases of typhoid." He spoke quietly, with a still, cold rage.

"We must write to the Ministry of Health," said Andrew.

"We could write a dozen letters," Denny said bit- terly. "It's a waste of time No! I've thought it all
out. There's only one way to make them build a new sewer."

"How?" asked Andrew eagerly.
"Blow up the old one!"

For a second Andrew wondered if Denny had taken leave of his senses. He stared at him in
terrified astonishment, then he muttered, "There'll be no end of trouble — if it's found out."

Denny glanced up a him, "You needn't come in with me, if you don't want to."
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"Oh, I'm coming in with you," Andrew answered slowly. Immediately he wished he had not said
those words.

All that afternoon Andrew went about his work regretting the promise he had given. He was a
madman, this Denny, who would, sooner or later, get him into serious trouble. It was a terrible thing
that he now proposed. If discovered, they might get struck off the Medical Register. Andrew was seized
with horror at the thought of his beautiful career suddenly cut short, ruined. He cursed Denny violently,
swore a dozen times that he would not go.

Yet, for some strange reason, he would not, could not draw back.

At eleven o'clock that night Denny and he started out in company with Hawkins, Denny's dog, for
the main manhole of the sewer.

The two men and the dog moved along the deserted street. In the pocket of his overcoat Denny
had six sticks of dynamite. Andrew carried six empty tins, each with a hole in the lid, an electric torch,
and a length of fuse.

Immediately they reached the manhole they set to work, raising the rusty iron cover which had
not been disturbed for years.

They slipped a stick of dynamite in each tin, cutting fuses and attaching them. One by one the tins
were dropped into he ill-smelling depths. In the light of a match Andrew saw Denny's pale hard face, his
own shaking hands.

As the last tin went in with its short fuse burning, the dog took it into its head to hunt a rat. They
chased the dog and captured it, expecting an explosion beneath their feet. Then swiftly the cover was
flung back, and they raced madly up the street.

They had scarcely reached the corner when bang! the first tin exploded.
"By God! We've done it!" exclaimed Andrew.
Then swiftly the explosions followed: two, three, four, five, and the last.

Doors and windows were flung open, people ran out of their houses. In a minute the street was
crowded. A party of men set out with lanterns to explore. Under cover of the darkness and the noise
Denny and Manson slipped away. Before eight o'clock next morning the Health Officer arrived upon the
scene by car, nervous and frightened.

Wiping his forehead he approached Denny who, with Manson, stood amongst the crowd. For a
moment Andrew felt uncomfortable.

But it did not enter the Officer's mind to suspect anybody.

"It's a mystery to me how it all happened. We'll have to get that new sewer for you straight off
now," was all he said.

NOTES:

1. sewer — KaHa/nM3aLMOHHan Tpy6a;
2. to be struck off the Medical Register — to have no further right to practise as a doctor.
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Exerciges and Agsignments on the
@ext

YnpaxHeHus v 3a1aHus o TekcTy

Assignment # One — 3aoanue No 1

Haiioume 6 mexcme aHenuiickue 35K8UBANEHMbl CIeOVIOWUX ClO8, BbIPANCEHUN U
000pomos:

LIAXTEePCKNI TOPOSOK — ;

o4yeHb obecrnoKoeH — ;

Heo4HOKpaTHO coobLan — ;

becnonesHo — ;

TPYAUNCA CyO40BO/IBCTBNEM — ;

B CaMOM Ha4a/sie Kapbepbl — ;

6es3 ycTanu — ;

1
2
3
4
5. C3TOro MOMeHTa — ;
6
7
8
9

nycraAa TpaTa BpemMeHU — ;

10. B3opBaTh — ;

11. He cowen M OH Cc yma — ;

12. rpexa He obepeLbcs — ;

13. paHO uAn No034HO — ;

14. no HEeNoOHATHOM NPUYNHE — ;

15. prkaBad KenesHasA KpblwKa — ;

16. cobake NpuLLNO B rosioBy — ;

17. noberKanm Kak cymacwegwmne — ;

18. eaBa oHM ycnenun aobexatb 40 yraa — ;

19. pacnaxmBanncb — ;

20. noa NOKPOBOM HOYM — ;

21. BTONNE — ;

22. He NPULNO B rON0BY —

Assignment # Two — 3aoanue Ne 2

Hatime pycckue 2K8uU8aieHmMbl C1e0VIOWUX CILO8, 8bIPANCEHUN U 0O0POMO8 U3 MeKCma,
Cocmasbme no mpu npeodioHCeHUs ¢ KAHCObIM UX IMUX 000POMO8:

be at a loss — ;
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turn to smb. for advice (help) —

itis ... thatis to blame —

shrug one’s shoulders —

to have an opportunity to do smth. —

regret smth. —

get smb. into trouble —

be/feel nervous (frightened, uncomfortable) —

suspect smb. —
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cut smb.(smth.) short — ;

be seized with horror — ;

Assignment # Three — 3aoanue Ne 3

Omeembme Ha cedyoujue 60npocsl:

1) Who was Andrew Manson?

2) What troubled Andrew and made him turn for advice to Philip Denny?

3) What was the real cause of the spreading of the disease in the town?

4) Andrew insisted that every drop of water should be boiled. Could it put an end to the epidemic?

5) Why did Denny refuse to write a letter to the Ministry of Health?

6) Why did Andrew think that Denny had taken leave of his senses?

7) Why did Andrew regret that he had given the promise to go with Denny? lllustrate
your answer by the text.

8) What do you think made Andrew go with Denny in the end?

9) What did they both risk in case they were discovered?

10) What was the result of their “experiment”?
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Assignment # Four — 3aoanue No 4

Ilepeckasicume pacckaz om auya: 1) [ounu; 2) Suopro; 3) Habarwooamens no eonpocam
30pasooxpanenus.

Assignment # Five — 3aoanue Ne 5

Ilooecomosbmecs Kk 006CyaHcoenuto ¢ npenooasamenem u opy2umu dienamu Baweti epynnol

cnedyrouux mem. Cocmagovme niam.

1. Denny and Andrew risked their careers. What do you think make them run such a great risk? Can
you call them real doctors?

2. Who was responsible for the situation in the town? What can you say about the role of the Health
Officer in the described events? Compare his behaviour with the behaviour of the young doctors.

3. Compare the characters of Denny and Andrew. What did they have in common? What did they
differ in? Who to your mind was a stronger personality? Give your grounds.

Assignment # Six — 3adanue Ne 6
Kpamxo nepeckasxcume pacckaz no naawny. Bui donichst ynoxcumscs 6 15 npednooicernuil.
Assignment # Seven — 3adanue Ne 7

Hartioume 6 mexcme e6ce I'nazonvl nHenpasunvnozo cnpsoiceHus u 3anonnume maobauyy,
oasas ux ghopmwi. Ilepeo evinornenuem Ynpasicnenus Bam neobxooumo o3nakomumuvcs ¢
napaepagamu 48, 49, 50 u 51 5 I'naswvr «Inazon» 1 Yacmu «Hacmu Peuu 6 Anenutickom
azvikey Ilepsoco moma Eounoco I pammamuueckoco komniexca. Bcio neobxooumyrwo Bam
cnpagounyro ungopmayuro Bol mooiwceme Hatimu 6o Bmopom mome 6 Ilpunosicenusix
«Tabnuya Bpemen Axmuenozco u Ilaccusnozo 3anocosey». Ilpoeepumv ynompebienue
Gdopm npuuacmuii 1 u 2 (Participles 1 & 2) (smopas, mpemovs u wemseepmas Gopmol
enaeonog) modcho no Tabnuyam “Cnpsocenue Henpasunvnvix enaconos». Obpawaio
BHUMAHUE HA MO, Ymo mabauy 08e: 8 0OHOU 0aemcs CNUCOK HENnPAaGUIbHbIX 2114207108 8
anrgasumuom nopsioke — ee s PEeKOMEeHOYI0 NpumMeHsmv O0as Oblcmpoco NOUCKa
He0OX00UMO20 C08d, 80 8MOPOU 21A20/bl OAHbL NO MUNAM 00pPA308aHUA POPMbL — HA
amy mabauyy Heobxo0UMo OPUESHMUPOBAMbCS NPU 3AYYUBAHUU HAUZYCMb.!
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Assignment # Eight — 3aoanue Ne 8

Haiioume ¢ mexcme ece I[lpeonodicenuss ¢ Ycnosnom naxnonenuu (Subjunctive Mood)
nocie enazona Wish.  Ilpoananusupyiime ynompebienue 6peMenHblx Gopm 8
NPeONONCEHUAX C Y C08HbIM HAKIIOHEHUEM.

Assignment # Nine — 3aoanue Ne 9

3aoaiime 6onpocul K c108am, 8blOEIeHHLIM NOOUEPKHYMbIM HAKIOHHbIM UPUDIMOM

1) Andrew was seized with horror at the thought of his career suddenly cut short.

2) In the pocket of his overcoat Denny had six sticks of dynamite.

3) A party of men set out with lanterns to explore.

4) Before eight o'clock the Health Officer arrived upon the scene by car.

Assignment # Ten — 3adanue Ne 10
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Haiioume 6 mexcme ece npeonoxcenus, cooepacawue Ilpsmyio peus (Direct Speech) u
nepederaume ux 6 Koceennyio peun (Indirect Speech). [Ilepeo ewvinonnenuem
Ynpaoicnenus Bam neobxooumo oznakomumucs ¢ napazpagamu 69, 70 u 71 «llpamasn u
Kocsennas peuvy 5 Inasvr «lnacony 1 Yacmu «Hacmu Peuu 6 Anenuuckom szvikey
llepeoco moma Eounoeo [pammamuueckozo xomniexca. Bcio neobxooumyro Bam
cnpagounyto ungopmayuro Bol mosceme navimu 60 Bmopom mome 6 Ilpunosrcenusix.

Assignment # Eleven — 3aoanue Ne 11

Ilonpaxmuxytimeco 6 ynompeoaenuu ciedyrowux mooeneti.

1) It never entered my mind...

2) You'll get into trouble if...

3) From now on...

4) | count myself fortunate to...

5) We were at a loss...

Assignment # Twelve — 3a0anue Ne 12

Hzmenume npednosicenus makum oo6pazom, umoowl 6 Hux Ovll npumerer 2nazon Wish:

1) Andrew regretted that he had agreed to help Denny.

2) “Itis impossible to stop the epidemic”, Andrew thought.

3) It is a pity the Health Officer did not respond to their information.

4) Andrew regretted that he did not have enough time for work.

5) Andrew was sorry that Denny had suggested such a plan.

?

6) When the Health Officer approached Andrew, the young man regretted everything he had done.
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Unit 15

LHEeE SHIPWRECK

from Kidnapped by R. L. Stevenson

David Bal four, a sixteen-year-old boy, is on board a brig bound for America. The brig meets with a
violent storm off the coast of Scotland. During the shipwreck that follows David is cast overboard. He
cannot swim and is being carried along by the waves and choked until, fortunately, he manages to get
hold of a floating board. After a desperate struggle he is flung upon the shore.

He spends the first night walking to and fro upon the beach for fear he might be
frozen. At dawn he finds to his horror that he has been cast on a rocky island, cut off
from the mainland by a strait. All his attempts to get across the strait end in failure.
Completely exhausted, David gives himself up for lost.

In all the books | have read of people cast away on a desert island, they had either
their pockets full of tools or a chest of things would be thrown upon the beach as if on
purpose. My case was very different. What with the cold and hunger, | felt more
miserable than words can tell. |1 stood shivering in the rain, wet and bare foot, and
wondered what to do till it occurred to me that shellfish, of which there were plenty on
the island, might be good to eat. | ate them cold and raw; and they seemed to me
delicious. They must have poisoned me, for | had no sooner eaten my first meal, than
felt miserably sick and lay for a long time no better than dead.

In fact as long as | was on the island | never could distinguish what particular shellfish it was that
hurt me: sometimes the shellfish restored my strength, and sometimes | felt sick for hours.

The second day | explored the entire island and chose a place on a hillside to be my home. | had a
good reason for my choice: from there | could distinguish the top of a great ancient church and the roofs
of houses on the mainland. Morning and evening | saw smoke go up. | used to watch this smoke when |
was wet and cold and lonely. It kept hope alive and saved me from the sense of horror | had when | was
alone with the dead rocks and the rain, and the sea.

It seemed impossible that | should die on the shores of my own country and within view of men's
houses.

But the second day passed; and though | kept a look out for boats or men, no help came. It had
been raining for more than twenty-four hours. My clothes were beginning to rot; my throat was so sore
that | could hardly swallow; the very sight of shellfish sickened me. | f elt completely exhausted.

It did not clear until the afternoon of the third day; this was the day of incidents. As soon as the
sun came up, | lay down on the top of the rock to dry myself. My mood changed, | was hopeful and
searched the sea with a fresh interest. All of a sudden a boat with a pair of fishers came flying round the
corner of the isle. | shouted out and ran along the shore from rock to rock.

There was no doubt they had observed me, for they cried out something and laughed. But the
boat never turned aside and flew on. It was unbelievable that they should have seen me and left me to
die! | could not believe in such wickedness! Even after they were out of reach of my voice, | still cried
and waved to them; | thought my heart would burst. But all was in vain. If a wish could kill men, those
fishers would have died.
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On the fourth day of this horrible life of mine | observed a boat heading for my island. Unable to
hold myself back, with my heart beating wildly and my legs shaking under me, | ran to the seaside. It was
the same boat with the same men as yesterday. But now there was a third man with them. As soon as
they were within hearing, they let down their sail and lay quiet. They drew no nearer and, what
increased my fear, the new man roared with laughter as he looked at me. Then he addressed me,
speaking fast and waving his hand towards the mainland. Was he suggesting that | should try and make
my way across the strait? | picked out the word "tide." | had a flash of hope! "Do you mean when the
tide is out..." | cried and could not finish.

"Yes, yes," said he. "Tide."

At that | set off running as | had never run in my life. Before long | came out on the shore of the
strait; and sure enough, it had become a little stream of water, through which | dashed, splashing, not
above my knees, and landed with a shout on the mainland.

A sea-bred boy would not have stayed a day on the isle which is only a tidal islet, and can be
entered and left twice in every twenty-four hours.

Even |, if | had sat down to think, might have guessed the secret. But for the fishers, | might have
left my bones there.

| have seen wicked men and fools; and | believe they both get paid in the end; but the fools first.

Exerciges and Aggignments on the
Text

YopaxHeHnus u 3agaHus 1o Tekcry

Assignment # One — 3aoanue Ne 1

Haiioume 6 mexcme aHenuiickue 35K6UBANEHMbl CLeOVIOWUX ClO8, BbIPANCEHU U
000pomos:

KopabnekpyweHue — ;

BblOpoOLIEH Ha beper — ;

CXBATUTbCA 3a 6peBHO - ’

OoT4YasHHas 6opbba — ;

4YeM MOXHO OnncaTb C1I0BaMu — ;

NpULWIOo B rosioBy — ;

Kasanncb HeobbIKHOBEHHO BKYCHbIMU — ;

1
2
3
4
5. HeobwTaemblii OCTPOB — ;
6
7
8
9

HUKOrga He mor OoT/INYnNTb — ’

10. sTo noabaapuBano meHna — ;

11. cTpygom rnotan — ;
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12. 6bIn coBepLUeHHO 6e3 cnn — ;

13. He morau cablWwaTb MOM ronoc — ;

14. HanpacHo — ;

15. He B cunax caeprkatb ceba — ;

16. ycnanno mow ctpax — ;

17. npuams — ;

18. npobneck Hagexabl — ;

19. He BbilWe KONEH — ;

20. MafbyMK, BbIPOCLWIMI Ha Mope — ;

21. ecnu 6bl He pblibakn — ;

22. nTem, n opyrmm AOCTaeTca nNo 3acayram —

Assignment # Two — 3adanue Ne 2

atime pycckue 2K8u8aieHmol C1e0yIOuWUx Clo8, 8blpaAdCeHUll U 000pPOMo8 U3 mexKcma,
Cocmasbme no mpu npeodioHceHuUs: ¢ KAHCObIM UX IMUX 000POMO8:

on board a brig (ship) — ;

at dawn — ;

to one’s horror — ;

end in failure — ;

on purpose — ;
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no sooner ... than ... — ;

used to do smth. — ;

there is (was) no doubt that... —

address smb. — ;

suggest that smb. should do smth. —

Assignment # Three — 3aoanue Ne 3

Omeemovme Ha Cﬂedyiow;ue 680Nnpocyvl.

1) Explain how David found himself on a desert island.

2) What made him feel miserable?

3) What did the boy feed on and why was this food dangerous for health?

4) Why did David choose a place on a hillside for his home?

5) What kept David’s hope alive?
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6) Describe the weather on the third day of David’s stay on the islet.

7) What did the boy feel when the fishermen sailed past the islet without stopping?

8) Why did the third fisherman roar with laughter when he saw David?

9) What word did David pick out from what the man was saying?

10) What idea occurred to him?

11) Explain the words “a sea-bred boy” and “a tidal islet”.

12) What would have happened to David if the fisherman had not seen him?

Assignment # Four — 3aoanue No 4

Ilepeckasicume paccxas om auya. 1) [peuoa; 2) o0Hoeo uz Peibakos.

Assignment # Five — 3aoanue Ne 5

Iloocomosbmecs Kk 006CyaHcOenuo ¢ npenooasamenem u opy2umu 4ienamu Baweti epynnol

creoyrouux mem. Cocmagome niam.

1. Was David observant? What makes you think so? What did he himself think about the incident? Did
it teach him a lesson?

2. Would "pockets full of tools" have been of any use to David? Why? What would you do under these
circumstances?

3. What books do you think David remembered when he was cast away on the island? Have you read
any books which describe similar events? What are they?

4. Have you read the book "Kidnapped" by R.L. Stevenson? What other books by this author do you
know? Why are children of many generations fond of Stevenson's books?

Assignment # Six — 3adanue Ne 6
Kpamio nepeckasxxcume pacckaz no naawy. Boi 0onichst ynosxcumscs 6 15 npeonooicenuil.
Assignment # Seven — 3adanue No 7

Hatioume 6 mexcme 6ce I'nazonvl HenpasuivHozo cnpsdiceHus u 3anonnume maoauyy,

oasas ux ¢popmul. Ilepeo gvinonnenuem Ynpasicrnenus Bam HeoOX00UMO 03HAKOMUMBCA C

napazpagpamu 48, 49, 50 u 51 5 ['naswr «Inaconry 1 Yacmu «Hacmu Peuu 6 Anenutickom
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azvikey llepsoco moma Eounozo I’ pammamuueckoeo komniexca. Bcio neoboxooumyro Bam
cnpagounylo ungopmayuro Bol moowceme navimu 6o Bmopom mome 6 Ilpunoscenusix
«Tabnuya Bpemen Axmusnoco u Ilaccuenozo 3anozoey. Ilposepumsv ynompebnenue
Gopm npuuacmuii 1 u 2 (Participles 1 & 2) (emopas, mpemvsi u uemseepmas Gopmol
enazonos) moxcuo no Tabauyam “Cnpsocenue Henpasunvnvix enaconos». Obpawaio
BHUMAHUE HA MO, 4Ymo madauy 0ee: 8 0OHOU 0aemcs CNUCOK HENnpPAaGUIbHbIX 271a207108 8
angasumuom nopsioke — ee s pPEeKOMEeHOYI0 HNpumMeHsmv Oas Oblcmpoco Noucka
He0OX00UMO020 Cll08A, 80 8MOPOU 21A20bl OAHbL NO MUNAM 00pA308aHUs OPpMbL — HA
amy maoauyy Heobxo0UMo OPUESHMUPOBAMBCS NPU 3AYYUBAHUU HAUZYCMb.

Assignment # Eight — 3aoanue Ne 8
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Haiioume 6 mexcme e6ce Mooanvusie enaconvt (Modal verbs). Ileped evinonnenuem
Ynpaosicnenus Bam Heobxooumo oznakomumucs ¢ napazpagamu 88-94 «Mooanvhsie
enazonvl 8 Cogpemennom anenuiickom sasvike» 5 Inasol «Inazony 1 Yacmu « Hacmu Peuu
8 Amnenutickom azvixe» Illepeoco moma Eounoco I'pammamuueckoeo komniekca. Bcro
Heobxooumyto Bam cnpasounyio ungopmayuto Bui mosceme naiimu 6o Bmopom mome 6
Lpunoocenusix « Tabauya Bpemen Axkmusnoeo u I[laccusrnozo 3an0206».

Assignment # Nine — 3adanue Ne 9

Haiioume 6 mexcme 6ce npeonodicenus, navunarowuecs ¢ obopoma “It is necessary, that
you should... ”.

Assignment # Ten — 3adanue Ne 10

Ompabomauvime cnedyroujue mooeu, ucnoivys Yciosnoe HaxloneHue (Subjunctive
Mood):

1) It seemed impossible that...

2) Is not it natural that... ?

3) It was unbelievable that...

4) It seems strange that...

5) It was absolutely necessary that...

6) Why is it so important that... ?

Assignment # Eleven — 3adanue Ne 11

3aoaiime 6onpocwl K c108am, 8blOEIeHHLIM NOOUEPKHYMbIM HAKIOHHbIM UPUDIMOM

1) The second day he explored the entire island.

2) As soon as the sun came up, David lay down on the top of the rock to dry himself.

3) The new man reared with laughter as he looked at the boy.

Assignment # Twelve — 3ao0anue Ne 12

Haiioume 6 mexcme ece npeonoxcenus, cooepaicawue [lpsimyro peus (Direct Speech) u
nepedenaume ux 6 Koceennyio peus (Indirect Speech). [Ilepeo ewvinonnenuem
Ynpaswcnenus Bam neobxooumo o3naxkomumscs ¢ napacpagpamu 69, 70 u 71 «llpsamvasn u
Koceennas peuvy 5 Inaswvr «Inazony 1 Yacmu «Hacmu Peuu 6 Anenuiickom s3zvikey
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llepeoco moma Eounoeco [pammamuueckoco romniexca. Bcio neobxooumyro Bam
cnpagounyto ungopmayuro Bol mosceme navimu 6o Bmopom mome 6 Ilpunoswcenusx.
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Unit 16

Z—Hé J/\/ VJSJBLé M)A/\/ (extract) by
H. G. Wells

The hero of the novel is Griffin, a young gifted scientist. He invents a substance that makes a person
invisible and tries it on himself. Wishing to continue his experiments, Griffin comes to the quiet
provincial town of Iping and stops at a local inn. His secluded way of life and strange occupation
arouse the suspicion of the narrow-minded Mr. and Mrs. Hall — keepers of the inn. They begin spying

on Griffin. Finally things come to an open quarrel.

The stranger returned to his room about half-past five in the morning, and there he remained
until near midday, the blinds down and the door shut. All that time he must have been hungry. Three
times he rang his bell, but Mrs. Hall would not answer it, as she was angry with him for his rudeness.
What the stranger was doing was unknown. He must have occupied himself with some experiments at
his table. Several times his cursing, the tearing of paper and violent smashing of bottles were heard.
About noon he suddenly opened the door and stood staring at the people in the bar. "Mrs. Hall," he
called. Mrs. Hall came forward holding in her hand an unsettled bill. "Is it your bill you want, sir?" she
asked.

"Why wasn't my breakfast served? Why haven't you answered my bell? You must have thought |
can live without eating. What!"

"You should have paid my bill, sir," said Mr. Hall.

"l told you three days ago | was expecting a remittance"

"I am not going to wait for any remittances."

"Look here, my good woman —" he began in a pleading tone.

"Don't good woman me," said Mrs. Hall, "and before | get any breakfasts, you've got to tell me
one or two things | don't understand. Your room was empty but how did you get in again? You must
have climbed in through the window. | suppose you know that people who stop in this house come in by
the doors — that's the rule."

"You might have been more polite, at least," the stranger interrupted her in an angry voice
stamping his foot. "You don't understand who | am. I'll show you!" He took off his spectacles and
everyone in the bar gasped: there was — nothing behind them! He began to remove the bandages that
covered the rest of his face. Mrs. Hall shrieked and fell down unconscious as she saw that the stranger
had no head. The people in the bar made for the door. The news of the headless man spread all the way
down the street in no time and soon a crowd of perhaps forty people gathered round the door of the
little inn. A little procession pushed its way through the crowd: first Mr. Hall, then Mr. Bobby Jaffers, the
village constable, and then the blacksmith who lived across the street. Mr. Hall must have been to the
police to bring help. They all marched up the steps and entered the stranger's room at once. They saw
the headless figure sitting at the table.

135



"What's this?" came an angry voice from above the collar of the figure.

"You're a strange person," said Jaffers, "but head or no head I'll have to arrest you." And he
produced a pair of handcuffs. At the next moment the stranger's gloves came off and dropped on the
floor. He ran his arm down his waistcoat, and the buttons to which his empty sleeves pointed, became
undone. Then he bent down and began doing something with his shoes and socks.

"Why!" said Jaffers, "that's no man at all. It's just empty clothes. Look!" He held out his hand and
it seemed to meet something in the air.

"Can't you be more careful? You might have hurt my eye," said the angry voice. "As a matter of f
act, I'm invisible. It's strange, perhaps, but it's not a crime."

"I've got my instructions =" Jaffers said holding his handcuffs ready.
"Well," said the stranger, "I'll come. But no handcuffs."

"Pardon me, but — Suddenly the figure sat down. Before anyone could realise what was
happening, the shoes, socks and trousers had been kicked of f under the table. Then the stranger
jumped up and threw off his coat.

"Hold him," cried Jaffers, "once he gets the things off —" There was a rush at the white shirt which
was fluttering in the air. Jaffers grasped at it, and only helped to pull it off.

"You could have held him faster," one of the men said to the policeman, "why did you let him
go?" "Here he is!" another man cried out. The struggling crowd was moving down the stairs and towards
the house door.

"I got him!" shouted Jaffers. He held fast his unseen enemy, he must have been hit suddenly as he
cried out with pain and fell heavily on the ground. There were excited cries of "hold him!" "Invisible!"
Half way across the road a woman screamed as something pushed by her. A dog must have been kicked
by an invisible foot as it ran howling into the yard nearby. And the invisible man was gone forever from

Iping.

NOTES:

1. substance — BelecTBO;
2. secluded — ckpbITHbIN;
3. remittance — geHexKHbIl NepeBos,

Exercises and Aggsignments on the
Text

Yupaxuenus u 3aganus 1o Tekcry
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Assignment # One — 3aoanue Ne 1

Haiioume 6 mexcme aHenulickue 3K8UBANEHMbl CNeOVIOWUX ClO8, BbIPANCEHU U
000pomos:

O, apPEHHbIN YyYeHbIN — ;

UCMbITbIBAET Ha cebe — ;

MeCTHaA roCTHnUa — ’

AO/IKHO BbITb MPOAE/bIBAN KaKMe-To OMbITbl — ;

Heon/layeHHbIN cyeT — ;

morau 6bl 6bITb M NOBEXANBEE — ’

pa3buHTOoBaTL — ;

notepAsa CO3HaHWe — ’

L 0 N o U B~ W N

[0CTaN HaPYYHUKN — ;

=
o

. A4€N0o B TOM, 4TO — ;

[y
[y

. npexae 4yem KTO-n1Mbo ycnen NOHATb, 4TO NPOUCXo4UT — ;

12. 3akpuyan ot 6oam — ;

13. ncues HaBcerga —

Assignment # Two — 3adanue Ne 2

atime pycckue 2K8uU8aieHmMyl C1e0VIOWUX CILO8, 8bIPANCEHUL U 0O0POMO8 U3 MeKCma,
Cocmasbme no mpu npeodioHCeHuUs ¢ KAHCObIM UX IMUX 000POMO8:

arouse suspicion (much talk, interest) — ;

spy on smb. — ;

stare at smb. —

in an angry (pleading) voice — ;
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spread in no time — ;

push one’s way through the crowd —

let smb. go— ;

shriek with joy — ;

hold smb./smth. fast —

Assignment # Three — 3adanue Ne 3

Omeemvme Ha clledyoujue 80npocyl.

1) Who is the main character of the story?

2) Why did he come to a small provincial town?

3) Why did Griffin's behaviour arouse the suspicion of the inn-keepers?

4) What was Griffin occupied with one day?

5) Why did not Mrs. Hall answer the bell?
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6) What did she bring Griffin instead of breakfast? In what manner did she speak?

7) What were Mrs. Hall’s claims?

8) Describe the behaviour of the people in the bar when Griffin took off his spectacles and removed the
bandages?

9) Who entered the stranger's room some minutes later?

10) What instructions did the constable have?

11) In what way did Griffin manage to escape from the hands of the police?

Assignment # Four — 3aoanue No 4

Ilepeckasicume pacckaz om auya: 1) Ipupguua; 2) I-ocu Xoan, 3) oonoco u3
Ilocemumeneui 6apa.

Assignment # Five — 3a0anue Ne 5

Iloocomosbmecs Kk 006CyaHcOenuo ¢ npenooasamenem u opy2umu uienamu Baweti epynnol
crnedyrowux mem. Cocmagovme niam:

1. The society of a small provincial town was very marrow-minded. Give the facts from the text to
prove it.

2. Do you agree that it was difficult for a progressive scientist like Griffin to work and create among
such people? Give your grounds.

Assignment # SiX — 3aoanue Ne 6

Kpamio nepeckasxxcume pacckaz no naawy. Boi 0onichsl ynosxcumscs 6 15 npeonooicenuil.

Assignment # Seven — 3adanue Ne 7

Paszviepatime ouanoeu mescoy: 1. I'-nom Xoanom u Hesumaxomyem; Ipugpgpunom u
KOHCcmeobeM.

Assignment # Eight — 3aoanue Ne 8
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Hatioume 6 mexcme e6ce I'nazonvl nenpasunvno2o cnpsdcenus u 3anoanume maobauyy,
oasas ux ¢oopmwi. Ilepeo evinonnenuem Ynpasicnenus Bam neobxooumo oznakomumucs ¢
napazpagamu 48, 49, 50 u 51 5 I'naswr «I'nazon» 1 Yacmu «Hacmu Peuu 6 Anenutickom
azvikey llepsoco moma Eounozo I’ pammamuueckoeo komniexca. Bcio neoboxooumyro Bam
cnpagounylo ungopmayuro Bul moowceme natimu 6o Bmopom mome 6 Ilpunoscenusix
«Tabnuya Bpemen Axmusnoeo u Ilaccuenozo 3anozosy. Illposepums ynompebieHue
Gopm npuuacmuii 1 u 2 (Participles 1 & 2) (emopas, mpemvs u uemseepmas Gopmol
enazonos) moxcno no Tabnuyam “Cnpsocenue Henpasunvnvix enaconos». Obpawaio
BHUMAHUE HA Mo, 4mo mabauy 0ee: 8 0OHOU 0aemcs CNUCOK HeNpAasuibHbLX 21a20J108 8
angasumuom nopsioke — ee s PEeKOMEeHOYI0 HNpumMeHsmv Oas Oblcmpoco NoUcKa
He0OX00UMO020 Cl108A, 80 8MOPOU 21A20bl OAHbI NO MUNAM 00pA308aHUs OPpMbl — HA
amy maoauyy Heobxo0uUMo OPUEHMUPOBAMbCS NPU 3AYYUSAHUU HAUZYCIb.
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Assignment # Nine — 3adanue Ne 9

Haiioume 6 mexcme ace IIpeonooicenus ¢ Moodanvnvimu enaconamu (Modal Verbs), nocne
komopuwix udym Coseputennvie Ungpunumuewl (Perfect Infinitive).

Assignment # Ten — 3aoanue Ne 10
Cocmasvme 15 ynpexos na ocnose mooenu. You might have been more polite.
Assignment # Eleven — 3aoanue Ne 11

3aodaiime 6onpocwl K c108aM, 8b10€NEHHBIM NOOYEPKHYMbIM HAKIOHHBIM WUPUGDMOM:

1) Several times violent smashing of bottles was heard.

2) Mrs. Hall shrieked and fell down unconscious as she saw that the man had no head.

3) The news of the headless man spread all the way down the street in no time.

4) Mr. Hall must have been to the police to bring help.

Assignment # Twelve — 3a0anue Ne 12

Hatioume 6 mexcme ece npeonoocenus, cooepocawue IIpsmyro peus (Direct Speech) u
nepeoeraume ux 6 Koceennyio peun (Indirect Speech). [Ilepeo ewvinonnenuem
Ynpaosicnenus Bam neobxooumo oznakomumucs ¢ napazpagamu 69, 70 u 71 «llpamas u
Kocsennas peuvy 5 Inasvt «lnazony 1 Yacmu «Hacmu Peuu 6 AHenutickom s3viKey»
Illepeoco moma Eounoeo [ pammamuueckoeo xomniexca. Bcio neobxooumyio Bawm
cnpagounyro ungopmayuro Bol mosceme natimu 6o Bmopom mome 6 Ilpunoswcenusx.
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Unit 27

tHe HAPPOeEST MAN ON

EARTH
by A. Maltz

Jesse felt ready to weep. He was waiting for Tom. Tom was his brother-in-law. Jesse knew he
looked terrible.

True, they hadn't seen each other for five years; but Tom looked five years older, that was all. He
was still Tom. God! was he so different? Brackett finished his telephone call. He leaned back in his chair
and glanced over at Jesse with small, clear blue eyes that were suspicious and unfriendly. He was a
heavy man of forty-five. He looked like a capable businessman — which he was. He surveyed Jesse with
cold indifference, unwilling to spend time on him.

"Yes?" Brackett said suddenly. "What do you want?"

"I guess you don't recognise me, Tom", said Jesse. "l am Jesse Fulton. Ella sends you her love."
Brackett rose and walked over to the counter until they were face to face.

"Yes, | believe you are", Brackett said finally, "but you sure have changed".

"By God, it's five years, ain't it?" Jesse said. "You only saw me a couple of times anyway. What if |
have changed? Don't everybody?"

"You was solid looking," Brackett continued softly, in the same tone of wonder. "You lost weight, |
guess?"

Jesse kept silent. He needed Brackett too much to risk antagonising him. The pause lengthened,
became painful. Brackett flushed and burst out in apology.

"Come in. Take a seat. Good God, boy" — he grasped Jesse's hand and shook it — "l am glad to see
you; don't think anything else!"

"It's all right," Jesse murmured. He sat down, thrusting his hand through his curly, tangled hair.
"Why are you limping?"

"I stepped on a stone; it jagged a hole through my shoe," Jesse pulled his feet back under the
chair. He was ashamed of his shoes.

Brackett kept his eyes off Jesse's feet. He knew what was bothering the boy and it filled his heart
with pity.

"Well, now listen," Brackett began, "tell me things. How's Ella?"

"Oh, she's pretty good," Jesse replied absently. He had a soft, pleasing, rather shy voice that went
with his soft gray eyes.

"And the kids?"
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"Oh, they're fine... Well, you know," Jesse added, becoming more attentive, "the young one has
to wear a brace. He can't run around, you know. But he's smart. He draws pictures and he does things,
you know."

"Yes," Brackett said. "That's good." He hesitated. There was a moment's silence. "Ella didn't tell
me things were so bad for you, Jesse. | might have helped."

"Well, goodness," Jesse returned softly, "you have your own troubles haven't you?"
"Yes," Brackett leaned back.

"Tom, listen," Jesse said, "I come here on purpose." He thrust his hand through his hair. "l want
you to help me."

Brackett had been expecting this. "I can't much. | only get thirty-five a week and I'i damn grateful
forit."

"Sure, | know," Jesse emphasised excitedly. "I know you can't help us with money. But we met a
man who works for you! He was in our city! He said you could give me a job!"

"Who said?"

"Oh, why didn't you tell me?" Jesse burst out reproachfully. "Why, as soon as | heard it | started
out. For two weeks now | have been pushing ahead like crazy."

Brackett groaned aloud. "You come walking from Kansas City in two weeks so | could give you a
job?"

"Sure, Tom, of course. What else could | do?"

"Jesse! It's slack season. And you don't know this oil business. It's special. | got my friends here
but they couldn't do nothing now. Don't you think I'd ask for you as soon as there was a chance?"

Jesse cried, "But listen, this man said you could hire! He told me! He drives trucks for you! He said
you always need men!"

"Oh! ...You mean my department?" Brackett said in a low voice.
"Yes, Tom. That's it!"

"Oh, no, you don't want to work in my department," Brackett told him in the same low voice.
"You don't know what it is."

"Yes, | do," Jesse insisted. "He told me all about it, Tom. You're dispatcher, ain't you? You send the
dynamite trucks out?"

"Who was the man, Jesse?"

"Everett, Everett, | think."

"Egbert? Man about my size?" Brackett asked slowly

"Yes, Egbert."

"Sure, there's job. There's even Egbert's job if you want it."
"He's quit?

"He's dead!"

"On the job, Jesse. Last night if you want to know."
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"Oh! ... Then, | don't care!"

"Now you listen to me!" Brackett said. "I'll tell you a few things that you should have asked before
you started out. It ain't dynamite you drive. It's nitroglycerin!"

"But | know," Jesse told him reassuringly. "He advised me, Tom. You don't have to think | don't
know."

"Shut up a minute," Brackett ordered angrily. "Listen! You just have to look at this soup, see? You
just cough loud and it blows!"

"Listen, Tom "

"Now, wait a minute, Jesse. | know you had your heart set on a job, but you've got to understand.
This stuff goes only in special trucks! 3t night! They got to follow a special route! They can't go through
any city! Don't you see what that means? Don't that tell you how dangerous it is?"

"I'll dive careful," Jesse said. "l know how to handle a truck. I'll drive slow."

Brackett groaned. "Do you think Egbert did not drive careful or didn't know how to handle a
truck?"

"Tom," Jesse said earnestly, "you can't scare me. | got my mind fixed on only one thing: Egbert
said he was getting a dollar a mile. He was making five to six hundred dollars a month for half a month's
work, he said. Can | get the same?"

"Sure, you can get the same," Brackett told him savagely. "A dollar a mile. It's easy. But why do
you think the company has to pay so much? It's easy — until you run over a stone that your headlights
didn't pick out, like Egbert did. Or get something in your eye, so the wheel twist and you jar the truck!
Or any other God damn thing that nobody ever knows! We can't ask Egbert what happened to him.
There's no truck to give any evidence. There's no corpse. There's nothing! Not even a finger nail. All we
know is that he don't come in on schedule. Then we wait for the police to call us. You know what
happened last night? Somethingwent wrong on the bridge. Maybe Egbert was nervous. Only there's no
bridge any more. No truck. No Egbert. Do you understand now? That's what you get for your God damn
dollar a mile!"

There was a moment of silence. Jesse sat twisting his long thin hands. His mouth was open, his
face was agonized. then he shut his eyes and spoke sof tly. "l don't care about that, Tom. You told me.
Now you got to be good to me and give me the job."

Brackett slapped the palm of his hand down on his desk.

"Listen, Tom" Jesse said softly, "you just don't understand." He opened his eyes. They were filled
with tears. They made Brackett turn away. "Just look at me, Tom. Don't that tell you enough? Tom, | just
can't live like this any more."

"You're crazy," Brackett muttered. "Every year there's one out of five drivers gets killed. That's the
average. What's worth that?"

"Is my life worth anything now? We're just starving at home, Tom."

"Then you should have told me," Brackett exclaimed harshly. "I'll borrow some money and we'll
telegraph it to Ella."

"And then what?"
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"And then wait. You're no old man. You got no right to throw your life away. Sometime you'll get
ajob."

"No!" Jesse jumped up. "No, | believed that too. But | don't now," he cried passionately. "You're
the only hope | got."

"You're crazy," Brackett muttered. "l won't do it. For God's sake think of Ella for a minute."
"Don't you know I'm thinking about her?" Jesse asked softly. He plucked at Brackett's sleeve.

Brackett leaped to his feet. "You say you're thinking about Ella. How's she going to like it when
you get killed?"

"Maybe | won't," Jesse pleaded. "I've got to have some luck sometime."

"That's what they all think," Brackett replied scornfully. "When you take this job your luck is a
guestion mark. The only thing certain is that sooner or later you get killed."

"Okay then," Jesse shouted back. "But meanwhile | get something, don't I? | can buy a pair of
shoes. Look at me! | can buy a suit. | can smoke cigarettes. | can buy some candy f or the kids. | can eat
some myself. Yes, by God, | want to eat some candy. | want a glass of beer once a day. | want Ella
dressed up. | want her to eat meat three times a week, four times maybe. | want to take my family to
the movies."

Brackett sat down. "Oh, shut up," he said.

"No," Jesse told him softly, passionately, "you can't get rid of me. Listen, Tom", he pleaded. "l got
it all figured out. On six hundred a month look how much | can save! If | last only three months, look
how much it is — a thousand dollars — more! And maybe I'll last longer. Maybe a couple years, | can fix
Ella up for life!"

"You said it," Brackett interposed, "l suppose you think she'll enjoy living when you're on a job like
that?"

"I got it all figured out," Jesse answered excitedly. "She don't know, see? | tell her | make only
forty. You put the rest in a bank account for her, Tom.

"Oh, shut up," Brackett said. "You think you'll be happy? Every minute, waking and sleeping, you'll
be wondering if tomorrow you'll be dead."

Jesse laughed. "I'll be happy! Don't you worry, I'll be so happy, I'll be singing. Good Lord, Tom, I'm
going to feel proud of myself for the first time in seven years!"

"Oh, shut up, shut up," Brackett said.
Again there was silence.
"Tom, Tom =" Jesse said.

Brackett sighed. "Oh," he said finally, "all right, I'll take you on, God help me. If you're ready to
drive tonight, you can drive tonight." Jesse didn't answer. He couldn't. Brackett looked up. The tears
were running down Jesse's face.

"Come back here at six o'clock," Brackett said. "Here's some money. Eat a good meal."
"Thanks," Jesse said. "Thanks, Tom."

"What?"
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"l just =" Jesse stopped. Brackett saw his face.
The eyes were still glistening with tears, but the face was shining now.
Brackett turned away. "I'm busy," he said.

Jesse went out. The whole world seemed to have turned golden. "I'm the happiest man in the
world," he whispered to himself. "I'm the happiest man on the whole earth."

Exerciges and Aggignments on the
Text

Ynpaxuaenus v 3a1aHus o TekcTy

Assignment # One — 3aoanue No 1

Haiioume 6 mexcme aHenuiickue 35K8UBANEHMbl CIeOVIOWUX ClO8, BbIPANCEHUN U
000pomos:

6b11 roToB pacniakaTbCA — ;

noao3puTenbHblE U Hep,pymemo6Hb|e - ’

CrnocobHbI BusHecmeH — ;

JIMLOM K Ny — ;

HO Tbl, KOHEYHO, USMEHWNNICA — ;

TOJ/IbKO Mapy pas — ;

paccbinanca B USBBUHEHUAX — ’

XpoOMaTb — ;

W 00 N o U~ W N

KOTOprﬁ rapmoHuposanc... — ;

[
o

. y Teba cBon 3ab60TbI — ;

[N
[EEY

. YepTOBCKM BnrarogapeH — ;

[E
N

. HAHATb Ha pa60Ty— ’

[E
w

. OH yBO/INACA? — ;

=
S

. MHe BCe paBHO — ’

[E
(%2}

. CTOUT TO/ZIbKO KAaWNAHYTb — ’

[E
(92}

. exaTb No onpeaeneHHOMY MapLUpyTy — ;

=
~N

. HE MOTY HM O Yem APYrom AymMaTb — ;

=
0o

. Heé MOory Tak 6o/blUe KUTb — ’

=
O

. ronogaTtb — ’

N
o

. €0UHCTBEHHAA HaaexXda — ;

N
=

. AO/IXKHO Xeé MHe NoBe3Tn —
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Assignment # Two — 3aodanue Ne 2

Hatime pyccxue 5K8u8aieHmvl C1e0VIOWUX CIL08, 8bIPANCEHUN U 0O0POMO8 U3 MmeKcma,
Cocmasgvme no mpu npeodnoAHceHUs: ¢ KAHCObLM UX IMUX 060poOmos:

be different — ;

be (un)willing to do smth. — ;

lose weight — ;

keep silent — ;

be ashamed of smth. — ;

do smth. on purpose — ;

say smth. in a low voice — ;

give some (no) evidence — ;
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sooner or later — ;

get rid of smb. — ;

feel proud of smb. — ;

set one's heart on smth. — ;

Assignment # Three — 3aoanue Ne 3

Omeemovme Ha Cﬂedyiow;ue 680Nnpocyvl.

1) Who was Jesse and why did he come to speak with his brother-in-law?

2) Why was Tom suspicious and unfriendly at first?

3) Who had told Jesse that Tom could give him a job?

4) What kind of job was it?

5) Find in the text the sentences which prove that the job was very dangerous.

6) What did Tom tell Jesse about Egbert?
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7) Why did Jesse insist on taking the job?

8) Prove by the text that Jesse’s only care was his wife and the children.

9) Did Tom agree in the end?

Assignment # Four — 3adanue Ne 4

Ilepeckasicume paccxas om auya. 1) Howceccu @ynmon; 2) Tom bpakemm.

Assignment # Five — 3aoanue Ne 5

Iloocomosbmecv Kk 06CyaHcOenuro ¢ npenooasamenem u opyumu 4ienamu Baweti epynnoi
cneodyrouux mem. Cocmagome niam.

1) Speak about the conditions in which Jesse's family lived.

2) Explain what Jesse understood by “luck”.

3) Explain why people took the dangerous job of truck drivers.

4) Why do you think Tom gave Jesse the job. Did he realise the degree of risk? What would have
happened if Tom had not agreed?

Assignment # SiX — 3aoanue Ne 6
Kpamio nepeckasxcume pacckaz no naawy. Bui 0onichst ynoscumscs 6 15 npednooicenuil.
Assignment # Seven — 3adanue Ne 7

Hartioume 6 mexcme 6ce I'nazonvl HenpasunvHozo cnpsdiceHus u 3anonnume maoauyy,
oasas ux ¢hopmwi. Ilepeo evinonnenuem Ynpasicnenus Bam neobxooumo o3nakomumuvcs ¢
napaepagamu 48, 49, 50 u 51 5 I'naswvr «Inazony 1 Yacmu «Hacmu Peuu 6 Anenutickom
sazvikey Ilepsoco moma Eounoco I pammamuueckoco xomniexca. Bcio neobxooumyro Bam
cnpagounyro ungopmayuro Bul moowceme natimu 6o Bmopom mome 6 Ilpunoscenusx
«Tabnuya Bpemen Axmusnozo u Ilaccusnoeo 3anocos». Ilpoeepumv ynompebienue
Gopm npuuacmuii 1 u 2 (Participles 1 & 2) (emopas, mpemovs u uemeepmas ¢hopmul
enaeonog) modcho no Tabnuyam “Cnpsocenue Henpasunvnvix enaconos». Obpawaio
BHUMAHUE HA MO, 4mo mabauy 08e: 8 0OHOU 0aemcs CNUCOK HeNpAasUIbHbIX 21a20/108 8
anrgasumuom nopsioke — ee s PEeKOMEeHOYI0 NpuMeHsmv O0as Oblcmpoco NOUCKa
HEe0OX00UMO20 Cl08d, 80 8MOPOU 21A201bl OAHbLL NO MUNAM 00PA308aHUsL POPpMbL — HA
amy maoauyy Heobxo0UMo OPUESHMUPOBAMbCS NPU 3AYYUBAHUU HAUZYCIDb.!

149



Assignment # Eight — 3aoanue Ne 8

Hatioume 6 mexcme ece Ilpeonoocenus ¢ Mooanonvimu enazonamu (Modal verbs) u
nepeseoume ux Ha pycckuil asvik. Ileped evinonrnenuem Ynpasxcuenus Bam Heobxooumo
o3Hakomumuvcs ¢ napazpagamu 88-94 «MooanvHvie enazonviy 5 Inasvr «lnacony 1
Yacmu «YHacmu Peuu 6 Anenutickom  sazvikey  Ilepgoeco  moma  Edunoco
I'pammamuyeckoeo komniexca. Bcro Heobxooumyto Bam cnpasounyro ungopmayuro Bol
Modceme Haumu 60 Bmopom mome 6 [lpunoscenusx «Tadbnuya Bpemen Axmugnozo u
Ilaccusnoeo 3a10206».

Assignment # Nine — 3aoanue Ne 9

Havioume 6 mexcme ece Ilpeonooicenuss ¢ Hacmoswem u Ilpoweowem CogepuieHnvix
spemenax (Present & Past Perfect Tenses) u ¢ Hacmosuwem u Ilpoweowem
Cosepuennuvix [Ipooonscennvix epemenax (Present & Past Perfect Continuous Tenses) u
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nepeseoume ux Ha pycckuil sA3vik. O0viAcHUmMeE CMbICIO8YI0 PASHUYY, KOMOPYIO 0aem ux
ynompebnenue. lleped evinonrnenuem Ynpasicnenus Bam neobdxooumo oznaxomumucs c
napaepagamu 57, 58, 59 u 60 «Tpemvs epynna spemen Perfecty u ¢ napacpagpamu 61,
62, 63 u 64 «Yemeepmasn epynna epemen Perfect Continuousy 5 Inaswt «lnacon» 1
Yacmu «YHacmu Peuu 6  Awnenutickom  sa3vike»  Ilepgoco  moma  Eounoco
I'pammamuyeckozo komnaexca. Bcro nHeobxooumyto Bam cnpagounyro unghopmayuro Boi
Mmooiceme Haumu 60 Bmopom mome 6 Ilpunoowcenusx «Tabruya Bpemen Axmusnoco u
Ilaccusnoco 3anozoey. llposepums ynompeonenue gpopm npuuacmuui 1 u 2 (Participles 1
& 2) (smopas, mpemvs u uemeepmas ¢opmvl 21az2onos) moxcHo no Tabauyam
“Cnpsocenue Henpasunvrolx enazonosy. Obpawaio HuManue Ha mo, 4mo maoauy ose:
6 O0OHOU Oaemcs CHNUCOK HENpAasUibHbIX 2la20N08 6 alh)asumHoMm nopsioke — ee s
PpeKomMenoyo npumeHams ONsi ObICMpPO20 NOUCKA HE0OX0O0UMO20 Cl08d, 60 6MOPOU
2N1a20Nbl 0aHMbl NO Munam oopazosauvusi Gopmvl — Ha 5my mMadIUyy HeoOXoOUMO
OPUEHMUPOBAMBCS NPU 3AYHUBAHUU HAUZYCIb.

Assignment # Ten — 3adanue Ne 10

3aoatime sonpocwl K C108aM, 8bl0€NEHHBIM NOOUEPKHYMbIM HAKIIOHHLIM WUPUDIMOM:

1) This stuff goes only in special trucks.

2) Egbert said he was getting a dollar a mile.

3) They had not seen each other for five years.

4) Brackett rose and walked over to the counter until they were face to face.

Assignment # Twelve — 3a0anue Ne 12

Hatioume 6 mexcme sce npeonosicenus, cooepacawue Ilpsamyro peun (Direct Speech) u
nepeoenaume ux 6 Koceennyio peus (Indirect Speech). [Ilepeo evinonnenuem
Ynpaswcnenus Bam neobxooumo o3znaxkomumscs ¢ napacpagpamu 69, 70 u 71 «llpsamasn u
Koceennasa peuvy 5 Inaswvr «lnazony 1 Yacmu «Hacmu Peuu 6 Anenuiickom s3zvikey
Ilepeoeco moma Eounoeo I pammamuueckoeo xomniexca. Bcio neobxooumyio Bam
cnpagounyro ungopmayuro Bol mosiceme natimu 6o Bmopom mome 6 Ipunoswcenusix.

Assignment # Thirteen — 3aoanue Ne 13

Kaxue eonpocer Tom 3adasan Jucecc. I[lepeckasicume coodepxcanue ux 6eceodvl 8
Kocsennoti peuu (Indirect Speech). Ilepeo svinoanenuem Ynpasxcnuenuss Bam neobxooumo

151



osHakomumucsi ¢ napazpagamu 69, 70 u 71 «llpamas u Koceennas peuv» 5 Inasvl
«lnacony 1 Yacmu «Hacmu Peuu 6 Anenuiickom sazvike» Illepsoco moma Eounoco
I'pammamuueckozo komnuexca.
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Unit 1

THeE ADVENTURE OF THE

DYVING DETECTIVE by A Conan
Doyle
One day in the second year of my married life Mrs. Hudson, the landlady of Sherlock Holmes,

came to my rooms and told me he was very ill.

"He is dying, Dr. Watson," she said. "He hasn't eaten and hasn't drunk anything for three days and
he wouldn't allow me to get a doctor. This morning when | saw his thin and white face | could stand no
more of it. 'Mr. Holmes,' | said, 'I'm going for a doctor, whether you like it or not."' 'Let it be Watson,
then,' said he. So | have come to you."

| rushed for my coat and hat. On our way to Baker Street Mrs. Hudson told me that Holmes had
been working on a case near Rotherhithe close by the river and had brought this disease back with him.

When | entered his room Holmes was lying in bed. He was looking very ill. When he saw me he
cried:

"Stand back! Stand back!"

"But why?" | asked.

"Because it is my wish. Is that not enough?"

"l only wanted to help," | explained.

"Exactly! You will best help by doing what you are told."
"Certainly, Holmes."

“I know what is the matter with me. It is a coolie disease from Sumatra. It is deadly and very
contagious”. Contagious by touch, Watson. So keep your distance and all is well."

“Good heavens”, Holmes! Do you imagine this would prevent me from doing my duty to so old a
friend?"

Again | tried to come nearer. He got very angry.

"If you stand where you are I'll talk to you. If not, you must leave the room."

"Do you think I'll stand here and see you die without helping you?"

"You mean well, Watson, but you can do nothing. You don't know tropical diseases."

"Possibly not. But | know Dr. Ainstree, the greatest specialist in tropical diseases. I'm going to
bring him here." | turned to the door.

Never have | had such a shock! The dying man jumped from his bed and locked the door. The next
moment he was in bed again looking very tired.

"Now, Watson, it's four o'clock. At six you can go. Will you wait?"

"l seem to have no choice."
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"None in the world, Watson. If you want to help me you must bring me the man that | choose. I'll
explain everything to you at six o'clock."

| stood for some minutes looking at him. He fell asleep. Then | walked slowly round the room. |
saw a small ivory box4 on the mantelpiece' and | was going to take it in my hand when Holmes gave a
loud cry: "Put it down, Watson! Put it down at once, | say! | don't like when people touch my things."

This incident showed me how ill my friend was. | sat in silence looking at the clock. He seemed to
be watching the clock too. Before six he began to talk in great excitement. | understood that he was
raving.' He was shaking with fever. He asked me to light the gas and to put some letters and papers on
the table near his bed.

"Thank you. Take those sugar-tongs' now and kindly raise that small ivory box with them. Put it
here among the papers. Be careful! Good! You can now go and bring Mr. Culverton Smith, of 13 Lower
Burke Street."

"l have never heard the name," | said.

"Possibly not. He is not a doctor but a planter from Sumatra, now visiting London. Some time ago
people fell ill in his plantation and there were no doctors in the neighbourhood. So he began to study
this disease himself. | am sure he can help me. He is a very methodical person and | did not want you to
start before six because | knew you would not f ind him in his study. He does not like me but if you tell
him how ill | am he will certainly come. But don't come with him. You must return here before he
comes. Don't forget."

To tell the truth | did not want to leave Holmes, be- cause his appearance had changed for the
worse during the f ew hours | had been with him. But he begged' me to go.

"He can save me —only he."

Mr. Smith did not want to see me at all. The servant told me he was very busy. However, |
thought of Holmes lying ill in bed and | pushed the door and came into the room. When Mr. Smith heard
| had come from Holmes, he was no longer angry with me. He was an unpleasant looking little man with
a yellow face and cruel grey eyes.

"What about Holmes? How is he?" he asked.
"He is very ill. That is why | have come."

"I am sorry to hear it. | have great respect for his talents and character. He is an amateur' of crime
as | am of disease. For him the criminal, for me — the microbe. These are my prisons," he continued
pointing to the bottles which stood on a table.

"Mr. Holmes has a high opinion" of you and thought that you were the only man in London who
could help him."

The little man started:

"Why?" he asked. "Why does he think | can help him?"

"Because you know Eastern diseases."

"But why does he think that the disease which he has contracted is Eastern?"
"Because he has been working at a case among Chinese sailors."

Mr. Smith smiled pleasantly.
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"Oh, that's it." How long has he beenill?"

"About three days."

"Is he raving?"

"Sometimes."

"That sounds serious. | will come with you at once, Dr. Watson."

| told him I could not come with him because | had another appointment.
"Very good. I'll go alone. I've got Mr. Holmes's address."

It was with a sad heart that | entered Holmes's bedroom again. | was afraid he might be worse.
But he felt much better.

"Well, did you see him, Watson?" he asked.

"Yes, he is coming."

"Excellent, Watson! Excellent! Did he ask what was the matter with me?"
"It old him about the Chinese in the East End."

"Exactly! Well, Watson, you have done all that a good friend could do. You can now disappear
from the scene."

"I must wait and hear his opinion, Holmes."

"Of course you must. But | suppose his opinion will be much franker" if he imagines that we are
alone. So you'd better hide behind my bed."

"My dear Holmes!"

"I'm afraid there is no alternative, Watson. There isno other place in the room where you can
hide."

Suddenly he sat up listening.

"Quick, Watson! There are the wheels. Don't speak and don't move whatever happens. Just listen
with all your ears."

| hid behind the bed. | heard the opening and the closing of the bedroom door and then to my
surprise there followed a long silence. | could imagine that our visitor was standing and looking at
Holmes. At last he cried:

"Holmes, Holmes, can you hear me?"

"Is that you, Smith?" Holmes whispered. "l had little hope that you would come."
The other laughed.

"And yet, you see, | am here."

"It is very good of you. | have a high opinion of your special knowledge."

Our visitor laughed again.

"Do you know what is the matter with you?"

"The same," said Holmes.
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"Well, I am not surprised that it is the same. PoorVictor was dead on the fourth day — a strong
young fellow. It was certainly, as you said, very surprising that he contracted an Asiatic disease in
London — a disease of which | have made a special study. Strange coincidence, Holmes."

"I knew that you did it."

"Oh, you did, did you? Well, you couldn't prove it, anyhow. But what do you mean by saying that |
did it and then asking me for help the moment you are in trouble?"

| heard the heavy breathing of Holmes.
"Give me some water," he whispered.

"You are near your end, my friend, but | don't want you to die before | have a word with you. So
I'll give you water."

"Do what you can for me," begged Holmes, "and I'll forget it."
"Forget what?"
"Well, about Victor Savage's death. You almost said just now that you had done it. I'll forget it."

"You can forget it or remember, as you like. It doesn't matter now." You will die very soon. The
fellow who came for me said you had contracted this disease among the Chinese sailors."

"I think so. | am soill. Please, help me!"

"Yes, | will help you. | would like you to know something before you die. Listen now. Can you
remember any unusual incident just about the time" when you fell ill?"

"No, nothing."

"Well, then, I'll help you. Did anything come by post?"

"By post?"

"A box, perhaps."

"Oh, I'm fainting."

"Listen, Holmes!"

| heard that Smith was shaking the dying man but | couldn't leave my hiding-place.

"You must hear me," the man shouted. "So you remember an ivory box? It came on Wednesday.
You opened it — do you remember?"

"Yes, yes. | opened it. There was a spring inside it. Some joke."

"It was no joke. Who asked you to cross my path? If you had left me alone | wouldn't have hurt
you.

"I remember," said Holmes. "This box, this box on the table."

"Yes, it is this box. And it may as well leave the room in my pocket. You know the truth now, and
you can die with the knowledge that | killed you. You know too much about the death of Victor Savage
so | had to kill you too. You are very near your end, Holmes. I'll sit here and watch you die."

"Holmes's voice was very weak now. He asked Smith to turn up the gas. Our visitor crossed the
room and soon it was quite light.

"Is there anything else | can do for you, my friend?" he asked.
157



"Give me a match and a cigarette."

| nearly cried out in my surprise. Holmes was speak- ing in his usual voice, the voice | knew. There
was a long silence and | f elt that Smith was looking with surprise at his companion.

"What is the meaning of this?" | heard him say at last.

"I am a good actor. The best way of acting a part successfully is to live it. | give you my word that
for three days | haven't eaten and drunk anything because | wanted to feel and look ill. It was cigarettes
that | missed most. Ah, here are some cigarettes»

He struck a match.

"That's much better. Halloa! halloa! Do you hear the steps of a friend?"

The door opened and Inspector Morton appeared.

"This is your man," said Holmes.

"l arrest you on the charge of murdering" Victor Savage," said the Inspector.

"And you might add of the attempted murder" of Sherlock Holmes," said Holmes smiling. "To save
me the trouble, Inspector, Mr. Culverton Smith was good enough to give our signal by turning up the
gas. By the way," the prisoner has a small box in his pocket. It would be well to take it from him. Thank
you. But be very careful. Put it down here. It may be of use" in the trial."

Smith tried to struggle with the Inspector. A minute later, however, | heard the sound of the
closing handcuffs.

"A nice trap!" cried Smith. "He asked me to come to help him. | was sorry for him and | came. Now
he will

Lie as you like, Holmes, my word is as good as yours."

"Good heavens!" cried Holmes. "I have forgotten about him. My dear Watson, | am so sorry. |
needn't introduce you to Mr. Culverton Smith because you met earlier in the evening. Have you a cab,
Inspector? I'll follow you when | am dressed because | may be of some use at the Police Station."

When the inspectar and the prisoner had left his room Holmes asked me if | was angry with him.

"You see," he said. "I had to make Mrs. Hudson and you believe that | was really ill. If you had
known the truth you wouldn't have been able to make Smith come to me. You are not good at
pretending."

"But Holmes, you really looked ill."
"Well, you can't look well if you haven't eaten for three days."
"But why didn't you allow me to come near you?"

"Can you ask, Watson? Do you imagine | have no respect for your medical talents? If you had come
nearer, you would have known | was not dying at all. But don't touch the box, Watson. It was a box
like this that brought death to Victor Savage. | am always very careful with all my correspondence. It
was, however, clear to me that only by pretending" that Smith had really succeeded with his plan |
could make him tell me the truth. And | have succeeded. Thank you, Watson. You must help me with
my coat. When we have finished at the police station, we shall go to a restaurant and have our
dinner."
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NOTES:

1. contagions — 3apasHas;

2. keep your distance — gepxutecb noaanblue;

3. Good heavens! — boxe moit!

4.ivory box — WKaTy/Ka N3 CTI0HOBOW KOCTY;

5. mantelpiece — KamuH;

6. he was raving — oH bpegun;

7. sugar-tongs — caxapHble Wunubl;

8. begged — ymonsan;

9. an amateur — nobuTens;

10. has a high opinion of you — Bbicokoro mHeHus o Bac;

11. Oh, that's it. — Tak BOT B 4em aeno;

12. much franker — ropa3go oTKpoBeHHeE;

13. strange coincidence — cTpaHHOe coBNafeHNe 3HAYEHUS;
14. just about the time — npumepHoO B TO e Bpems;

15. that | missed most —4yero mHe 60nbLUe BCEro He xBaTaerT;
16. on the charge of murdering — no o68MHeHUIO B yOMIACTBE;
17. the attempted murder — nonbITKa y61incTBa;

18. by the way — KctaTn roeops;

19. may be of use — moxeT npuroanTbCa;

20. only by pretending — ToNbKO NPUTBOPUBLLMCD.

Exerciges and Aggignments on the
Text

YopaxHeHnus v 3agaHus 1o TekcTy

Assignment # One — 3aoanue Ne 1

Omeemvme Ha clledyroujue 80npocyl.

1. Why did Mrs. Husdon come to Watson's place one day?

2. Why was Watson shocked when he saw Holmes? What did Holmes tell him?

3. Whom did Holmes ask Watson to call?

4. Why did Holmes think that he had an Eastern disease?
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5. What did Holmes and Smith speak about?

6. Why did Inspector Morton suddenly come and what did Holmes tell him about Smith?

7. How did Holmes explain his behaviour to Watson?

Assignment # Two — 3adanue Ne 2

Hartioume 6 mexcme 6ce I'nazonvl nHenpasunvnozo cnpsdiceHus u 3anonnume maobauyy,
oasas ux opmul. Ilepeo evinonnenuem Ynpasxcnenuu 5 u 6 Bam Heobxooumo
osHakomumucsi ¢ napazpagamu 48, 49, 50 u 51 5 I'nasvr «lnacon» 1 Yacmu «Hacmu
Peuu 6 Amnenutickom szvikey Ilepeoco moma Eodunozo I pammamuueckoeo xommniexca.
Bcio neobxooumyro Bam cnpasounyro ungopmayuio Bui moowceme natimu 6o Bmopom
mome & Ilpunooicenusx «Tabauya Bpemen Axmusnoco u Ilaccusnozo 3an0206».
IIposepums ynompebnenue gopm npuuacmuii 1 u 2 (Participles 1 & 2) (emopas,
mpemvsi U uemeepmas opmul 2nazonos) modxcho no Tabauyam  “Cnpsowcenue
Henpasunvnvix enaconos». Obpawaro enumanue Ha mo, umo mabauy 06e. 8 00HOU
0aemcsi CHUCOK HenpasuibHbIX 21d20Nl08 8 AlpasumnHom nopsoke — ee s PeKoMeHOYI0
NpUMEHAmMb OJisL OLICMPO20 NOUCKA He0OX00UMO20 Cl08d, 80 8MOPOI 211a20bl OAHbL NO
munam obpazoeanuss Gopmvl — HA dMy MaAOIUYY He0OXOOUMO OPUEHMUPOBAMbC NPU
3ayUUBAHUU HAUZYCIND:
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Assignment # Three — 3aoanue Ne 3

Haiioume 6 mexcme 6ce npeonoxcenus, cooepacawue IIpsimyro peus (Direct Speech) u
nepeoenraume ux 6 Koceennyio peun (Indirect Speech). [Ilepeo evinonnenuem
Ynpaosicnenus Bam neobxooumo oznakomumucs ¢ napaepagamu 69, 70 u 71 «llpsamasn u
Koceennas peuvy 5 Inasvr «lnazony 1 Yacmu «Hacmu Peuu 6 Anenuuickom s3vikey
Ilepeoco moma Eounoeo [ pammamuueckoeo xomniexca. Bcio neobxooumyio Bam
cnpagounyto ungopmayuro Bul mosiceme natimu 6o Bmopom mome 6 Ilpunoswcenusx.
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Unit 2

THE ADVENTURE OF THReE
STUDENTShy A. Conan Doyle

Some time ago Mr. Sherlock Holmes and | spent a few weeks in one of our great university towns.
We lived near a library where Sherlock Holmes was carrying out some historical research. Here it was
that Mr. Hilton Soames, lecturer at St. Luke's College, came to see us one evening. He was a tall man of
nervous temperament.

"I hope, Mr. Holmes," he said, "that you can spare me a few hours' of your valuable time. We
have had a very unpleasant incident at our college."

"I am very busy just now," my friend answered, "but you can go to the police and ask them for
help."

"No, no my dear sir, you are the only man in the world who can help me. | beg you, Mr. Holmes,
do what you can."

And our visitor told us his story.

"I must explain to you, Mr. Holmes, that tomorrow is the first day of the examination for the
Fortescue Scholarship. | am one of the examiners. My subjects is Greek. The candidates have to
translate into English a passage from Greek which they have not seen before. The passage is printed on
the examination paper. Today about three o'clock this paper arrived from the printers. | began to read
it. At four o'clock, however, | left the paper on my desk and went out to have tea with my friends. | came
back an hour later and | was surprised to see a key in the door. For a moment | thought it was my key
but | put my hand into my pocket and | felt that it was there. The only duplicate' belonged to my
servant, Bannister, and he told me he had come into my room to ask if | wanted tea and very carelessly
lef t his key in the door.

"The moment | looked at the table | realised that someone had been in the room. | had left the
papers all together. Now | found that one of the sheets was lying on the floor, one was on the small
table near the window, the third was where | had left it."

Holmes stirred for the first time.

"The first page was on the floor, the second in the window, the third where you had left it," he
said.

"Exactly, Mr. Holmes. How could you possibly know that?"
"Continue your story, please."

"I asked Bannister if he had examined the papers. He said he had not, and | was sure he was
speaking the truth. The alternative was that someone passing had observed the key in the door and,
knowing that | was out, had entered to look at the papers.

"Bannister was very much upset4 by the incident. | gave him a little brandy and left him sitting on
a chair. Then | examined the room carefully. On the table there were some cuttings of a pencil which
had been sharpened.' In my new writing table there was a cut three inches long. | also found a small ball
of black clay' on the table. There were no other marks left. Do help me, Mr. Holmes! | must find the man
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or the examination will have to be postponed' until new papers are prepared, and then a great scandal
will follow."

"I shall be happy to look into this incident and help you as much as | can," said Holmes putting on
his coat. "The case is very interesting. Did anyone visit you after the papers had come to you?"

"Yes, young Daulat Ras, an Indian student who lives on the same stair."
"And the papers were on the table?"

"Yes, but they were rolled up."

"Was anyone else in your room?"

"Did anyone know that these papers would be there?"

"No one except the printer."

"Did this man Bannister know?"

"No, certainly not. No one knew."

"Where is Bannister now?"

"He was very ill, poor fellow. | left him in the room. He was sitting on a chair. | was in such a hurry
to come to you."

"You left your door open?"
"But | locked up the papers first."

"Then it seems that the man who came to your room when you were having tea did not know
that the papers were there. He came upon them accidently."

"So it seems to me."
Holmes smiled.

"Well," said he, "let us go round. Come with us, Watson, if you want to. Now, Mr. Soames, we are
ready."

It was dark when we came to Mr. Soames's house.The sitting-room of our client opened by a long,
low window on to the old court of the college. On the ground-floor was the tutor's room. Above lived
three students, one on each floor. Holmes stopped and looked at the window. Then he came nearer and
looked into the room. Mr. Soames opened the door and we entered his room. We stood at the door
while Holmes examined the floor.

"I'm afraid there are no marks here," he said, "one could not hope for any upon so dry a day. Your
servant seems to be well again. You left him in a chair, you say. Which chair?"

"By the window there."

"I see. Near this little table. You can come in now. | have finished with the floor. Let us examine
the little table first. Of course what happened is very clear. The man entered and took the papers from
the central table. He carried them over to the little table by the window because from there he could
see if you were coming back and so he could run away."

“As a matter of fact, he could not”, said Soames, “Because | entered by the side door”.

"Ah, that's good. Well, anyhow, he thought he would see you. Let me see the papers. No signs" —

no. Well, he carried over this paper first and he copied it. How long did it take him to copy it? A quarter
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of an hour. Then he took the next page. While he was copying it, he heard your steps and he had no
time to put it back on the table. He wrote so quickly that he broke his pencil and had to sharpen it. The
pencil was not an ordinary one. It was very long and dark blue and the maker's name"

was printed in silver letters. Look for such a pencil, Mr. Soames, and you have got your man. He
also had a large knife."

Holmes held out a small piece of wood with the letters NN.
"You see?"

Mr. Soames did not understand.

"No, I'm afraid that even now —"

"What could this NN be?" Holmes continued. "It is at the end of a word. You know that Johann
Faber is the most common maker's name. Is it not clear that there is just as much of the pencil left as
usually follows the Johann?" He examined the small table carefully. "No, | see nothing. | don't think
there is anything more to be learned here. Now for the central table. Dear me, this is very interesting.
And the cut... | see. It began with a thin scratch and ended in a big hole. Well, where does that door lead
to, Mr. Soames?"

"To my bedroom."

"Have you been in it since your adventure?"

"No, | came straight away for you."

"I would like to have a look at it. What a nice room!

Perhaps you will kindly wait a minute, until | have examined the floor. No, | see nothing."
Suddenly Holmes turned away and took something from the floor.

"Halloa! What's this?" said he. It was a small ball of black clay like the one he had found upon the
table.

"It seems that your visitor has been in your bedroom as well as in your sitting-room, Mr. Soames."
"What did he want there?"

"I think it is clear enough. You came back by an unexpected way and so he did not know you had
entered the house until you were at the door. What could he do? He rushed into your bedroom to hide
himself."

“Do you mean to tell me that all the time | was talking to Bannister this man was in my
bedroom?”

“So | read it”.

“Surely there is another alternative, Mr. Holmes. | do not know if you saw my bedroom window?
The man might have come through the window”.

Holmes shook his head.

"Let's be practical," said he. "You have said that there are three students who use this stair, and
pass your door?"

"Yes, there are."

"And are they all for this examination?"
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"Yes."
"Do you suspect" anyone of them more than the others?"

"It is a very delicate question," said Mr. Soames, "I will tell you, in a few words, the character of
each of these three men. Gilchrist who lives on the first floor is a fine hardworking student. He plays in
the rugby cricket teams for the college. He is also a very good jumper. His father ruined himself" and left
the boy very poor. But Gilchrist is a good student and he will do well”

"Daublat Ras, from the second floor, is a quiet, methodical fellow though he is not good at Greek."

“The top floor belongs to Miles McLaren. He is a very intelligent boy but he does not like to work.
He must look forward with fear to the examination”.

“Then it is he whom you suspect?”

“I don't know, but of the three he is perhaps the most likely”.

“Exactly. Now, Mr. Soames, let us have a look at your servant, Bannister”.

He was a white-faced clean shaven little fellow of fifty.

"l understand," said Holmes to him, "that you left

your key in the door?"

"Yes, sir."

"When did you come into the room?"

"It was about half-past four. That is Mr. Soames' tea time."

"How long did you stay?"

"When | saw that he was absent | went out at once."

"Did you look at these papers on the table?"

"No, sir — certainly not."

"Why did you leave the key in the door?"

"I had the tea-tray" in my hand. | thought | would come back for the key. Then | forgot."
"When Mr. Soames returned and called for you, you were very upset."

"Yes, sir. Such a thing has never happened during the many years that | have been here."
"So | understand. Where were you when you began to feel ill?"

"Where was |, sir? Here, near the door."

"That is strange, because you sat down in that chair near the corner. Why didn't you sit on one of
the other chairs which were much nearer the door?"

"I don't know, sir. It didn't matter" to me where | sat."

"You stayed here after your master had left?"

"Only for a minute or so. Then | locked the door and went to my room."

"Thank you, that will do," said Holmes. "Now, Mr. Soames | would like to visit the students. It is

possible?"
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"Of course it is. Their rooms are the oldest in the college and many visitors come to see them.
Come along. | will go with you."

We knocked at Gilchrist's door. A tall fellow opened it. There were some interesting pieces of
architecture in his room. Holmes wanted to draw them in his notebook, but he broke his pen and had to
borrow" one from Gilchrist. He also borrowed a knife from him to sharpen his pencil. He did the same in
the rooms of the Indian student. Then we knocked at the door of the third student but he did not want
to openit.

"Tomorrow is the exam," he shouted in an angry voice, "and | have no time for visitors."

"A rude fellow," said our guide.

Holmes asked a strange question.

"Can you tell me how tall this boy is?"

"Really, Mr. Holmes, | don't know exactly. He is taller than the Indian and not so tall as Gilchrist."
"That's very important," said Holmes. "And now, | wish you good night, Mr. Soames."

Our guide cried in despair:" "Mr. Holmes, you are not going to leave me now! Tomorrow is the
examination. | must do something about it. The examinations cannot be held'4 if someone has seen the
papers."

"You must leave it as it is. I'll tell you tomorrow what to do. But now don't change anything at all."
"Very good, Mr. Holmes."

"I'll take the black clay with me, also the pencil cuttings. Good-bye."

When we were in the street, Holmes asked:

"Well, Watson, what do you think of it?"

"I suspect the man on the top who did not want to let us in."

“Why? If you were preparing for an examination, you wouldn't like to see any strangers in your
room, would you? But that fellow does puzzle me”.

IIWho?II
"Bannister, the servant."
"l think he is an honest man."

"So do I. That's the puzzle. Well, look, here's a large stationer's shop. We shall begin our
researches here."

There were four stationers in the town and at each Holmes showed his pencil cuttings and asked
for the same sort of pencil. All of them said it was a very unusual pencil and they had not any like it in
their shops. However, Holmes did not seem to be sorry at all, and we went home very pleased.

At eight in the morning next day he came into my room and said:
“Well, Watson, it's time we went to St. Luke's”.

"Have you anything to tell Mr. Soames?"

"Yes, my dear Watson, | have solved the mystery.

He held out his hand and showed me three small balls of dark clay.
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"Why, Holmes, you had only two yesterday."

"And one more this morning. Well, come along. Soames is waiting for us."

The tutor was certainly very upset when we found him in his rooms. He ran towards us and cried:
"Thank heaven you have come: What am | to do? What about the examination?"

"The examination can be held —tomorrow."

"But this rascal?"

“He will not sit for the examination”.

"Do you know him?"

"I think so. | will show him to you. Ring the bell, please."

Bannister came in.

"Will you kindly close the door?" said Holmes. "Now, Bannister, will you please tell us the truth
about yesterday's incident?"

The man became very pale.

"I have told you everything, sir."
“Nothing to add?”

"Nothing at all, sir."

"Well, then | will help you. When you sat down on that chair yesterday, you did it to hide
something."

Bannister's face was white.
"No, sir, certainly not."

"It is only a suggestion but it seems probable that when Mr. Soames' back was turned you let out"
the man who was hiding in the bedroom."

"There was no man, sir."

"That's a pity, Bannister. Up to now" you have spoken the truth but now you have lied."
"There was no man," repeated Bannister.

"Come, come, Bannister."

"No, sir, there was no one."

"So you can give us no more information. Would you please stand over there near the bedroom
door? Now, Mr. Soames, will you go up to the room of young Gilchrist and ask him to come here?"

A minute later the tutor returned bringing in the student. He was a fine tall man with a pleasant
open face. His blue eyes looked at each of us and at last rested with an expression of despair upon
Bannister.

"Just close the door," said Holmes. "Now, Mr. Gilchrist we are alone, and no one will know what
you will say here. We want to know why you, an honest man, came here yesterday to copy examination
papers."

The young man looked at Bannister.
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"No, no, Mr. Gilchrist, | have never said a word — not one word!" cried the servant.
"No, but you have now," Holmes said.
Gilchrist burst into tears."

"Come, come. Perhaps it weuld be easier if | told Mr. Soames what happened. Listen and see if |
am not wrong.

"Mr. Soames said to me that no one, not even Bannister, knew that the papers were in his room.
When the Indian boy called on Mr. Soames, they were in the roll and he could not possibly know what
they were. On the other hand" | was sure that the man who came into the room knew the papers were
there. How did he know?

"At first | examined the window. | was measuring" how tall a man would need to be to see what
papers were on the central table. | am six f eet high and | could do it with great difficulty. So you see, |
had reason to think that the tallest of your three students was the most suspicious one.

"While | was looking at the central table | remembered you said that Gilchrist was a long distance
jumper. Everything became clear to me. | only needed some proofs" which | soon got. What happened
was this:This young fellow spent all the afternoon in the playing field practising the jump. He returned
carrying his jumping shoes which, as you know, have several sharp spikes." As he passed your window
he saw these papers on the table. He could easily do so because he is very tall. He also noticed that the
key was left in the door. He came in and put his shoes on the table. What was it you put on that chair
near the window?"

"Gloves," said the young man.
Holmes looked triumphantly at Bannister.

"He put his gloves on the chair and took the papers to copy them. He thought Mr. Soames would
return by the main gate and he would see him. But Mr. Soames came back by the side gate. He suddenly
heard him at the door. It was too late to run away. He forgot his gloves but he took his shoes and rushed
into the bedroom. The clay from the spike was left on the table and another ball of clay fell in the
bedroom. | went to the playing field this morning and carried away some clay to see if it was the same
as we had found here. Have | told the truth, Mr. Gilchrist?"

"Yes, sir, it is true," answered the student.
"Have you nothing to add?" cried Mr. Soames.

"Yes, sir, | have. | have a letter here, Mr. Soames, which | wrote to you early this morning. Here it
is, sir. | have decided not to go in for the examination. | have been offered a post in the Rhodesian Police
and | am going away to South Africa at once."

"I am glad to hear it," said Soames, "but why have you changed your mind?"
Gilchrist pointed to Bannister.
“There is the man who set me in the right path”, said he.

"Come now, Bannister," said Holmes. "I have said that it was only you who could have let this
young man out" because you were left in the room. Can you tell us why you did it?"

"It is very simple, sir. | was a servant of sir Jaber Gilchrist, this young gentleman's father. When he
was ruined | came to the college as a servant but | never f orgot my old employer." When | came into
this room yesterday, the first thing | saw was Mr. Gilchrist's brown gloves lying in that chair. | knew
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those gloves well and | understood his danger. So | sat down on that chair and waited until Mr. Soames

went for you.Then | let Mr. Gilchrist out and | spoke to him as his dead father would have done. Wasn't

it natural that | wanted to save him? Could you blame" me, sir?"

"No, indeed," said Holmes. "Well, Soames, | think we have cleared your little problem up. Come,

Watson, let's have our breakfast now. As to you Mr. Gilchrist, | hope that a bright future awaits you in
Rhodesia. For once you have fallen low. Let's see how high you can rise."

NOTES:
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historical research — ucropmnyeckoe nccnenoBaHme;

spare me a few hours — yaennTb MHe HECKO/IbKO 4acoB;

duplicate — ay6nukaT (kntoua);

was very much upset — 6b11 04eHb OropY€eH, CUIbHO PACcCTPOUICSH;

some cuttings of a pencil which had been sharpened — 06pe30oK oT KapaHAaLla, KOTOpbI 3aTaunBany;
a ball of black clay — wapuk TemHoW rnnHbl;

the examination will have to be postponed — ak3ameH npugeTca nepeHecTy;

were rolled up — 6b1aK CBEPHYTHI;

came upon them accidently — HaTKHyACA Ha HUX CyYaliHO;

. as a matter of fact — no npasae rosops;

. by the side door —yepes 6okoByto ABepb;

. NO SigNS — HUKAKNX CNenoB;

. the maker's name — umsa nsrotosuTens;

. by an unexpected way — HeoxunaaHHbIM 06pa3om;

. might have come — mor BoliTy;

. suspect — non03peBaThb;

. ruined himself — pasopwuncs;

. he will do well — oH gobbeTcs ycnexa;

. the most likely — Hanbonee BepoaTHbIN;

. the tea-tray — yaitHbIli nogHoC;

. it did not matter — 6110 Bce paBHO;

. to borrow — of0MKUTb;

. in despair — B oTyasHuUu;

. cannot be held — He moryT npoBoAUTLCS;

. that fellow does puzzle me — 3TOT napeHb yaANBASAET MEHS;
. have solved the mystery — paspewunn 3araaky;

. will not sit for the examination — He 6yaeT caaBaTb 3K3aMeH;
. Nothing to add? — Bam Heuyero go6aBuTb?

. let out — BbINycTUAK;

. up to now — g0 cux nop;

. burst into tears — pacnnakaTbca, yaapuTbea B cesbl;
.on the other hand — c gpyro# cTopoHbl;
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33. was measuring — usmepwun,

34. the most suspicious — camblil NO403PUTE/NbHbIN;

35. proof — oKkasatenscTso;

36. several sharp spikes — HeckonbKO OCTpPbIX LWNNOB;

37. who set me in the right path — KoTopbIii HacTaBMn MeHA Ha NYTb UCTUHHDIN;

38. it was only you who could have let this young man — Tonbko Bbl MOran BbINyCTUTb MOJIOA0rO
YyenoBeKa;

39. my old employer — moi4 cTapblii X03UH;

40. to blame — 06BUHATS;

Exerciges and Aggignments on the
Text

Yopaxnenus u 3agaHus no TekcTy

Assignment # One — 3aoanue No 1

Omeemvme Ha cledyroujue 60npocy.

1) Who was Mr. Soames and why did he come to Sherlock Holmes one day?

2) What did Holmes find examining Mr. Soames's room?

3) What did Mr. Soames tell Holmes about the three students?

4) What were Holmes's steps in solving the mystery?

5) Why did he suspect Gilchrist?

6) What was the role of Bannister in the incident?

Assignment # Two — 3aoanue Ne 2

Hatioume 6 mexcme 6ce I'nazonvl HenpasuivHozo cnpsdiceHus u 3anonnume maoauyy,
oasas ux opmel. Ileped evinonnenuem Ynpasxcnenuti 5 u 6 Bam neobxooumo
o3Hakomumovcs ¢ napacpapamu 48, 49, 50 u 51 5 Inaswvr «Inacony 1 Yacmu «Hacmu
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Peuu 6 Amnenuiickom azvike» Ilepeoco moma Eoumozo I pammamuueckozo xomniexca.
Bcro neobxooumyro Bam cnpasounyro ungopmayuto Bul moowceme navimu 6o Bmopom
mome 6 Ilpunoocenusx «Tabauya Bpemen Axmusnoco u Ilaccusnozo 3an0206».
lIposepums ynompeonenue gopm npuuacmuti 1 u 2 (Participles 1 & 2) (smopas,
mpemovsi U uemeepmas Gopmel 21az2ono8) Mmoxcno no Tabnuyam “Cnpsocenue
Henpasunvnvix enaconos». Obpawaro enumanue Ha mo, 4mo mabauy 08e: 68 O0OHOU
0aemcsi CNUCOK HEeNpasusibHuIX 21a20J108 8 AlpAasUmHOM NOpSOKe — ee 51 PeKOMEHOYI0
NpUMEHAmMb O0JisL OLLICMPO20 NOUCKA He0OXO0O0UMO20 Cl08d, 80 6MOPOLL 21A20bl 0aHbl NO
munam obpazoeanuss Gopmvl — HA dmy MaodIUYy HeoOXO00UMO OPUEHMUPOBAMbCS NPU
3ayuU8AHUU HAUZYCND:

Assignment # Three — 3adanue Ne 3
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Haiioume 6 mexcme ece npeonoxcenus, cooepacawue Ilpsmyio peus (Direct Speech) u
nepederaume ux 6 Koceennyio peun (Indirect Speech). [Ilepeo ewvinonnenuem
Ynpaoicnenus Bam neobxooumo oznakomumucs ¢ napazpagamu 69, 70 u 71 «llpamasn u
Kocsennas peuvy 5 Inasvr «lnacony 1 Yacmu «Hacmu Peuu 6 Anenuuckom szvikey
llepeoco moma Eounoeo [pammamuueckozo xomniexca. Bcio neobxooumyro Bam
cnpagounyto ungopmayuro Bul mooiceme natimu 6o Bmopom mome 6 Ipunoswcenusx.
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